SRR
DEIEY e e o o ceene

03057120

2002 Annual Report
Ae 12310z

PR 100 (

PROCESSER
| APR 30 2009




ABOUT THE COMPANY
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A LEADING, LIMITED-SERVICE LODGING COMPANY

La Quinta Corporation (NYSE: LQI) is a provider of clean and comfortable éuest rooms at affordable prices

in convenient locations. One of the largest owner/operators of limited service hotéls in the US,, La Quinta Corporation
owns, operates or franchises 349 La Quinta Inns® and La Quinta Inn & Suites® in 33 states.

2000 2001 2002
Total Company®
Revenues® $ 812 $ 648 $ 537
Net Loss Available to
Common Stockholders® $ (352) $ (300) % (508)
Net Loss Per Share $(248) $(2.10) $(3.55)
Lodging
Revenues® § 604 $ 575 $ 524
Contribution® S 229 $ 210 $ 166
RevPAR® $39.73 $37.95 $35.53
Average Daily Rate $62.62 $60.98 $59.99
Occupancy i 63.4% 62.2% 50.2%
Company-Owned Hotels “ 299 292 284
Franchise Hortels — 11 65

(1) Reflects sale of non-strategir assets during 2000, 2001 and 2002.

(2) In millions.

(3) Lodging revenues less direet lodging operations, other lodging and general and administrative expenses.
(4) Revenue per available room.




Peon fllow Shareholers In a difficult industry environment, we

made several enhancements to our business and strengthened

our balance sheet.

The lodging industry experienced another challenging year in 2002.
For the first time, induscry RevPAR declined a second straight
year. While the U.S. economy exhibited growth in 2002, demand
for hotel rooms remained depressed. The weakness sterimed
primarily from a lack of business traveler demand. In addition,
the pricing environment was very competitive as full service
hotels lowered their rates to compete for the remaining business.
The good news for the lodging industry continues to be a
slowing of supply growth. In 2002, industry supply grew at only
half the rate experienced in the late 1990s. Industry analysts
expect a growth rate of only I 1o 2% for at least the next couple
of years. When demand returns to normal levels, the industry
stands to reap the benefits from the present low supply growth.
La Quinta suffered with the rest of the industry from the
travel slowdown. RevPAR for our company-owned hotels declined
6.4% 1n 2002, due, in part, to the poor perf-ormance of our top
ten markets—Dallas/Fr. Worth, Houston, Denver, San Antonio,
Austin, New Orleans, Atlanta, Orlando, Miami/Ft. Lauderdale
and Phoenix. In these markets—which accounc for approximately
40% of our owned hotel rooms—RevPAR of our direct comperi-
tors was down approximately 9% in 2002. While we experienced a
RevPAR decline in these markets similar to our compertitors’, we
were able to maintain a RevPAR premium. These are good horel
markets that we believe will ultimately turn around. When they

do, we expect to benefit from our strong presence.

For the year 2002, La Quinta recorded a net loss of $508
million, or $(3.55) per share. The loss includes non-cash
expenses of $259 million to reflect the effect of a change in
accounting principle, $197 million to establish a net tax liability
in conjunction with our rax and legal restrucruring and $30
million to reflect impairments of assets and goodwill, offsec by
gains on sales. For the year, La Quinta reduced debt from $1 bil-

lion to $665 million.

Successes During 2002
While the lodging environment has been extremely difficult, we
did have several successes. First, we completed the tax and legal
restructuring of La Quinta in early 2002. The restructuring,
which shareholders approved at the end of 2001, gives La Quinta
the ability to grow its lodging business. Second, we completed
our healthcare asset disposition program. These sales were com-
pleted ahead of schedule and at prices above what many thought
possible a few years ago. With healthcare asset sales and positive
cash flow, we were able to reduce debt by $2 billion over the last
three vears.

In addition, we made considerable progress improving
La Quinta’s operations. Qur hotel managers continued to do an
outstanding job of controlling expenses. Even wich cost pressures
and the number of rooms rented down substantially, our managers

were able to hold cost per rented room effectively flat, afrer actually

La Quinta Corporation 2002




LA QUINTA FOR THE BUSINESS TRAVELER

Sonciiiss ¢ Lomfontille

TAKING CARE OF OUR BUSINESS GUESTS by providing
spacious rooms and comfortable workspaces.

With 349 properties in 33 states, La Quinta is convenien[ly
located where business takes place. La Quinta Inns, typicaﬂy
situated along major highway routes, are the logical choice for the
seasoned road warrior. La Quinta Inn & Suites are near major
airports and office parks and provide a relaxing haven from the
hectic work day,

La Quinta Inns and Inn & Suites feature amenities desired
by the business traveler, including a spacious guestroom, dataport
telephone with voice mail, desk with a well-lit workspace and a
comforcable recliner. Selecced La Quinta hotels offer che Business
King room, designed -0 be a home office-on-the-road to the busi-
ness traveler. Business King rooms feature plush bedding with

Simmons® luxury bedding, microwave and refrigerator, cordless

and speaker telephone, enhanced workspace with built-in data
port and ergonomic chait Selected La Quinta hotels also offer
high-speed Internet access.

Business travelers can start their day out right at La Quinta
with a complimentary continental breakfast. In addition, at our
Inn & Suites, business tﬁavelcrs can get in a quick workout in
our fitness center,

La Quinta can host small meetings and events. With meeting
space for up to 70 people, our Inn & Suites are ideal for companies
hosting training sessions or business seminars.

Whether selling sockets in Cincinnati or training technicians

in Tampa, business travelers appreciate the comfort of La Quinta.

“I travel a lot and | always trust La Quinta for a good night’s stay.”
Greg Rogers, Frequent Traveler and Returns Member
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reducing cost per rented room in 2001. During 2002, we also
instituted a wage frecze for all employees and members of the
executive management team took a voluntary 10% salary reduction.

We continued to increase La Quinta’s market presence
through franchising. Our innovative approach to franchising is
reflected in our guest satisfaction rebate, Protcctcd territories and
owner/operator mcntalit/\n We believe franchisces should be
treated fairly and incentivized to rake care of our guests. As a
result, we are among the fastest-growing franchise organizations
in the lodging industry. At the beginning of 2002, we signed onc
of the largest franchise deals in the industry, converting 31 hotels
in the Pacific Northwest to the La Quinta brand. We added an
additional 23 hotels during the year bringing our franchise total
to 65 hotels or almost 5,800 rooms open at the end of 2002.

We continued to make Improvements in our information
systems. Many of the enhancements we made in 2002 were
related to improving the guest stay. For example, we provided our
guests with a speedier and more personalized check-in process by
introducing one-step check-in procedures as well as a new credit
card processing system, which authortzes transactions in less than
five seconds. In our rooms, we added Internet access, greater
movie and game selection and folio charge review.

We are also cnhancing our portfolio by selling selected
hotels, which no longer reflect the La Quinta brand image.
Twenty-five properties have been identitied for sale and 15 of these

properties have been sold.

I am particularly pleased with the improvement we made in

guest satisfaction. For each quarter in 2002, La Quinta’s guest
satisfaction rating improvcd over the prior year, even surpassing
our intc[’na‘ gOﬁL Ou]' im]:'rO\'Cl‘nCn[ iS even more I]O[C\\'O]\th/\’
considering that guest satisfaction levels for many of our peers
have actually deteriorated over the past few years. Qur guest sat-
isfaction improvements are the result of three initiatives we have
taken. Fiese, we have improved our product. In 2001, we initiated
the Gold Medal® Lite renovation program at our company owned
Inns, renovating our guest rooms with new carpet, wall coverings,
bedspreads and drapes as well as refurbishing our common areas.
In 2002, we accelerated ‘the program completing over 90% of our
Gold Medal Lite renovations. As a result, our rooms are among
the best in our segment. Second, in early 2002, we established a
quality assurance department, staffed by former hotel managers.
to inspect all of our propertics at least once a quarter. More than
just a "white glove inspection,” it is a time to share best practices
among our hotels. Third, we focused our management team by
tying a percentage of every bonus to improvements in guest satis-
faction. We believe satisfied guests translate into stronger brand

loyaley and RevPAR increases.

Focusing on Revenues

O\'Cf thc laS[ []‘ll‘(’_c l\"Cal'S, we I]SVE ]'ﬂﬁdc tren1cnd0‘.ls P]'OgI'CSS
strengthening La Quinta. The last part of our turnaround is rev-
enue growth. The foundartion

has been laid with product

improvements, enhanced guest
service and better informartion
systems. Future proﬁr improve-

ment will need to come from

revenue growth., We have taken a

number of steps to help us meec

this objective.

La Quinta Corparatien 2002



LA QUINTA FOR THE LEISURE GUEST

TAKING CARE OF OUR LEISURE GUESTS by providing
a good night's rest at an affordable price.

Family vacation in Orlando. Graduation in Colorado Springs.
Wedding in Memphis. Championship game in Atlanta. Whatever
the occasion, La Quinta has a place for leisure travelers to stay—
at their destination and along the way. More importantly, we provide
our leisure guests with a good value so they can enjoy the reason
they came in the first place.

La Quinta Inns and Inn & Suites feature amenities desired

ol

by leisure travelers, including spacious guestrooms and 25" tele-
visions with premium channels, movies on-demand and video

games. La Quinta also provides a hair dryer, coffee maker, iron

and ironing board in all guest rooms. For added value, La
Quinta Inn & Suites offer two-room suites with separate sit-
ting and sleeping areas, sleeper sofa and two televisions.

Leisure travelers appreciate the varied selections of our
complimentary continental breakfast. Our hotels also provide
sparkhng swimming pools and, at our Inn & Suites, a spa and fic-
ness center.

A great value and a name they can trust, La Quinta takes

care of the leisure traveler.

“There is nothing more important to us than making sure we take good care of our guests.”
Jack & Rita Bartels, 2002 General Managers of the Year
La Quinta Inn & Suites—Denver (Lakewocd)
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www.LQ.com. With

the new site, we brought the booking system in house and gave

In June, we launched our new website

our customer an improved reservation process, search features
and property information. As the travel industry continues to
shift from reservation call centers to electronic bookings, our new
website puts guests in charge of making their reservations at a
lower cost to La Quinta. We also expanded and improved our
positioning and participation on other electronic distribution
channels. We believe we can increase the amount of sales atcrib-
ured to electronic distribution by improving our production and
yield in these channels.

In September, we launched our enhanced frequent-stayer
program—La Quinta Returns®—improving the program to
reflect the changing needs of our customers. The new Returns
program allows members to earn points that can be redeemed for
airline miles, gift certificates, sporting event tickets and a variety
of other rewards, in addition to the former program’s benefit of
free room nights. Members can earn free nights faster and reach
elite status quicker in our program than any other in our seg-
ment. We believe the improved Returns program will entice new
members and improve bookings from our existing members.

We also strengthened our sales organization. We brought in
new management and made a significant investment by doubling
the size of our sales force. We gave our sales team better tools to

track account activity, enhanced our training and implemented a new

incentive program. Our sales team has been charged with increas-
ing our market share. The new sales team has only been in place a

short time but I am pleased with the progress they are making.

Corporate Governance

I'am also pleased to report that La Quinta ranks among the lead-
ing companies in strong corporate governance. According to
Institutional Stockholder Services (ISS), La Quinta ranked among
the top two percent of companies in the Russell 3000 Index
in corporate governance practices in 2002. In addition, HVS
Executive Search rated La Quinta fifth out of the 58 public lodg-

ing companies in its survey of board performance last year.

Business Outlook
Business and leisure travelers are concerned about the weakness in
the U.S. economy and the uncertainties surrounding world events
and terrorist threats. Until we see a stronger economy and recovery
in our local markets, 2003 will be another challenging year. For
2003, we anticipate funding our capital expenditures through
operating cash flow and having cash available for debt reduction.
From a balance sheet perspective, our debt-to-EBITDA ratio is
one of the more conservative among our lodging peers. In addition,
we recently refinanced a portion of our debt and now have no sig-
nificant maturities due until 2005. The enhancements to our
product, our focus on guest satisfaction and execution of
our revenue initiatives will help lead La Quinta to stronger
RevPAR performance.
Forecasting beyond 2003
is difficule given the uncer-
tainties affecting the lodging

industry. We remain focused

La Quinta Corporation 2002



LA QUINTA FOR THE FRANCHISEE

Call it opeoese i pasionale,
[iwe know is that the best names in the indusiry cal us thei own

To tind out why, cail 866-TEAM-LQ}

fnnchise finilly
TAKING CARE OF OUR FRANCHISEES by treating them as partners and
providing value-added services to improve guest satisfaction and hotel performance.

Since we oPened our first hotel in San Antonio in 1968, La
Quinta has grown into one of the leading limited-service hotel
companies in the U.S. In 2001, La Quinrta began providing inde-
pendent owner/operarors the opportunity to join the La Quinta
system through franchising.

As owner/operarors ourselves, we understand the needs of
our franchisees. Qur franchise service directors, all former hotel
managers, help franchisees with pre-opening activities as well as
on-going operations. We provide our franchisees with strong
training programs and support. Discounts we negotiate on furni-
ture or supplies are made available to franchisees. We are able
to help franchisees run cheir hotels berter because we operate

hotels ourselves.

Because our ultiméte customer js the guest, we believe
maintaining quality is essential. Franchise hotels, whether built
using La Quinta’s plans or converted from a competing brand,
must meet our quality specifications before opening. Franchise
service directors and our own quality assurance inspectors fre-
quently visit the pl‘operti¢5 to ensure quality standards are being
met. In addition, we believe so strongly in quality that we include
a unique feature in our franchise agreements. Franchise hotels
that maintain a high Ievei of guest rated quality scores receive a
rebate of a portion of their royalty fees,

A strong brand witb an owncr/operator's view, La Quinta

and its franchisees work together to take care of the guest.

“We converted to La Quinta for access to La Quinta’s distribution. La Quinjta has great brand loyalty.”
Roger Forni, CEQ of Pacific Inn LLC and La Quinta Franchisee




OUTSTANDING

INDEBTEDNESS
(i millions)
D~
[}
e
s
| 2
= "
~ N
j - 2
2000 200! 2002

Dircct to the Inn - 36%

Elecrronic 14% i

Call Cenrter 18% |
Walk-in 32% - /

on our long term strategy of returning our company-owned
hotels toward historic levels of profitability. growing our fran-
chise business and investing capital at attractive rates of return.
While the timing of achieving our growth goals is not clear, we
believe the tools and the people we have in place will enable us to
meet the current challenges and position us for success.

To return company-owned hotels toward historic levels of
profitability, La Quinta needs revenue growth. We are looking to
our sales force, electronic distribution channels and frequent-
stayer program to increase market share. In the current environ-
ment, we have the wind in our face. With a stronger economy,
return in business travel and recovery in our local markets, we
will have the wind at our back.

Qur franchise program is on target with our original expec-
tations. We anticipate adding another 4,000 rooms in 2003 to
the 5,800 rooms currently open. While financing for franchisees
is difficult in this environment, good franchise opportunities are
still coming our way—Dboth conversions and new builds. Qur fran-
chise program has now reached a size at which we anticipate it
becoming profitable in 2003.

In 2002, we opened wo redevelopment projects at the San

Antonio and Dallas/Fr. Worth airports. In 2003, we plan to begin

redevelopment of the very first La Quinta built in 1968 in down-

town San Antonio. We will continue to review our porcfolio for
additional opportunities to redevelop great real estate Jocations
with a new La Quinta product.

We will also look for acquisition opportunities to expand
our brand offerings and diversify our geographic concentration.
The ideal candidate is either a lodging company with strong
brands that we can grow or lodging assets that can be converred
to the La Quinta brand. However, we have not yet seen the right

combination—a strategic fit at a reasonable price.

Conclusion
While the lodging environment remains ditficult, we believe we
are well positioned to handle the current challenges. We have
financial flexibility and ancicipate producing positive cash flow in
2003. We have a strong brand to actract qualified franchisces.
Investments in our systems are leading to increased Productivity
and improved management. Investments in our product are
resulting in higher quality ratings by our guests. Investments in
our sales force, electronic distribution and frequent-stayer pro-
gram should lead to revenue growth. With the outstanding
efforts of our 6,700 employees, La Quinta will continue to
enhance its position as a leading lodging company.

We appreciate your suppore and look forward to reporting

on our PI’ngﬁSS‘

Francis W. “Butch” Cash
April 10, 2003

La Quinta Corporation 2002
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MANAGEMENT TEAM AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS

La Quinta's executive management team has, on average, 25 years of lodging and

real estate experience with a number of lodging companies. La Quinta’s Board reflects

MANAGEMENT

Francis W. “Butch” Cash
President, Chief Executive Officer
& Director

Former President and CEQ of
Red Roof Inns and President
of Marriote Corporation’s
Services Group

Wayne B. Goldberg

Senior Vice President of Operations
Former COO of Bridgestreet
Accommodaticns and VP
Operations of Red Roof Inns

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Clive D. Bode (1234

Current Chairman of

La Quinta and special advisor
to certain members of the
Bass Family of Fr. Warth, TX

James P. Conn#®

Current Trustee of certain
Gabelli investment funds and
former Chief Investment
Officer of Financial Security
Assurance

3 Audit Committee  Compensation Committee

strong leadership and governance practices.
|

David L. Rea

Executive Vice President,

Chief Financial Officer

Former CFQ of Red Roof
Inns, VP Finance of DeBartolo

Realty and investment manager
at T. Rowe Price

Sandra K. Michel

Senior Vice President,
General Counsel

Former General Counsel
of Sunterra Corp. and
Senior Counsel of

WR. Grace & Co.

William C. Baker @3

Former CEQ of Santa Anita
Companies, President of
Red Robin and Chairman
and CEO of Del Taco

john C. Cushman, 12

Current Chairman of
Cushman & Wakefield and
former President and CEQ
of Cushman Realty

© Neminating & Corporate Governance Cammittee

\
i
|
|
\
\
|
i
|
|
Rufus K. Schriber
Extcutive Vice President, 1
Marketing & Brand Positiom'rjzg
Former EVP Marketing i
& Brand Management of |
Marriott International |
|
1
A. John Novak |
Senior Vice President,
Chief Information Officer
Former CIO of Resort
Condominiums Internati
and VP Systems of

Marriott International
and Walr Disney World

nal

William G. Byrnes 29
\

Former Distinguished !
Teaching Professor of Filance
at Georgetown Universit%‘
and Managing Director of

Alex. Brown & Sons ‘

Stephen E. Merrill @

\

\

[

i

|
Current President of |
Bingham Consulting Grohp

and former Governor of the
State of New Hampshire}

“ Executive Committee

Alan L. Tallis

Executive Vice President,

Chief Development Officer
Former EVP Development
and General Counsel of

Red Roof Inns

A. Brent Spaeth
Senior Vice President of Human

Resources & Administration

Held various property and
regional operations positions
with La Quinca, Drury
Industries and Mid-America
Hortels

Francis W, "“Butch’ Cash®

Current President & CEQ
of La Quinrta and former
President and CEQ of Red
Roof Inns and President
of Marriote Corporation’s
Services Group
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAZ CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the discussions in this report together with the financial state-
ments and related notes included elsewhere in this report. The results discussed
herein are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected in any future
periods. These discussions contain forward-looking statements based on current
expectations, which involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results and the tim-
ing of certain events may differ significantly from those projected in such
forward-locking statemens due to a mumber of factors. We have included a
discussion of some of these risks and uncertainties in our Joint Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended 2002 under the beading “Description of Our
Business and Our Propesties—Certain Factors You Should Consider About
Our Companies, Our Businesses And Our Securities.” The risks and uncer-
tainties described within these sections include those related to our lodging busi-
ness, our debt, our investment in real estate, the status of La Quinta Properties,
Inc. as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) and La Quinta in general, as
well as risks and uncertainties related to our industry, the economy and global
affairs and otber risks detailed from time to time in our filings with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. We have discussed these risks and uncer-
tainties in detail within these sections and encourage you to read them in their
entirety in order to understand the risks and uncertainties which can affect our
forward-looking statemen:s, as well as our business generally. We undertake no
obligation to publicly upaate or revise any forward-looking statement to reflect
current or future events or circumstances, including those set forth berein and

elsewbere in this report.

QVERVIEWS

The basis of presentation includes Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financiai Condition and Results of Operations for
each of the separate companies, La Quinta Corporation (“LQ
Corporation”) and La Quinta Properties, Inc. (“LQ Properties™),
on a consolidated basis. Our management believes that LQ
Corporation’s conso.idated presentation is mast informative to

holders of our commion stock.

CEINERAL

We are a leading limited-service lodging company providing clean
and comfortable roorms at affordable prices in convenient focations.
We are one of the largest owner/operators of limited-service
hotels in the United States. We owned and operated 211 La
Quinta® Inns and 73 La Quinta Inn & Suites® conraining
approximately 37,000 rooms in 28 states as of December 31,
2002. We strive to design and operate hotels that attract both
business and leisure travelers seeking quality rooms that are gen-
erally comparable ta those of mid-price, full-service hotels, bur at
lower average room rates. We believe that by not providing full-
service, management-intensive facilities and services, such as in-
house restaurants, cocktail lounges, or room service, that typically
carty high fixed costs and low margins, we are able ro deliver a
product that satisfies our customers’ needs and price expectations,
while also permitting us to concentrate on the variable cost struc-
ture and the high-margin nature of our limited-service product.

2002 AR

In addition to owning and operating out hotel properties, we
began, in late 2000, to license the use of our proptietary brand
names, including La Quinta®, La Quinta Inns® and La Quinta Inn
& Suites® in return for royalty and other fees through franchise
agreements with franchisees. As of December 31, 2002, our fran-
chisees operated 37 La Quinta Inns® and 28 La Quinta Inn &
Suites® representing approximately 6,000 rooms under our brands.

As of December 31, 2002, we held approximately $59,330,000
of healthcare related investments. Consistent with our intention
to focus on the lodging industry, the remaining healthcare opera-
tions and assets in our portfolio have been divested pursuant to
our healthcare asset disposition strategy. We were successful in
selling these assets to other healtheare real estate investors or to
the operators of the facilities.

Over the last three years, we have undergone significant
financial and strategic changes. In January 2000, we began a
strategy of selling non-lodging real estate assets in order to focus
on our lodging business. As a result of that change in strategy, we
replaced substantially all of our senior management with execu-
tives who have, on average, approximately 25 years of experience
in lodging and lodging-related industries. Over the last three
years, we have improved the operations of our lodging assets,
including the reduction of costs and the introduction of a fran-
chising program. During that period, we also have sold approxi-
mately $1.8 billion of our non-lodging assets, with proceeds
from those sales applied to reduce indebtedness and strengthen
our balance sheet.

On December 20, 2001, our shareholders approved certain
proposals which permitted us to restructure the existing organi-
zation of our companies by merging a newly formed, wholly
owned subsidiary of LQ Corporation, with and inte LQ
Properties, with LQ Properties surviving the Restructuring and
becoming a subsidiary controlled by LQ Corporation while con-
tinuing its status as a REIT. The new structure went into effect
on January 2, 2002. We believe the Restructuring, which was pro-
posed primarily to address the challenges imposed by federal rax
legislation on our previous “grandfathered” paired share REIT
structure, will enable us to grow our lodging real estate portfolio,
management operations and brand franchising program without
the restrictions imposed by this federal tax legislation.

As part of our continued focus on the improvement of rev-
enue performance, we launched our redesigned loyalty program on
September 24, 2002, called La Quinta Returns®. While the previ-
ous program allowed members to earn “free stay” certificates, the
new Returns program allows members to earn points that can be
redeemed for a variety of rewards, in addition to free stay certifi-
cates. In addition, we added several new electronic distribution
channels during the year and are currently expanding and reshap-
ing our sales force to put more emphasis on local sales efforts.
These programs are anticipated to increase our costs in 2003,




La Quinta Corporation Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations [Continued)
|
|
LA QUINTA CORPORATION--CONSOLIRATED RESULTS Nt loss available to common shareholders increased by $207,393,000,
OF OPIRATIONS or $1.45 per diluted common share, to $507,753,000, or $3.55
Comparison of Year Ended December 3!, 2002 to Year Ended per diluted common paired share, for the year ended December 31,
December 31, 2001 2002, compared to a net loss of $300,360,000, or $2.10 per

We carn revenue primarily by owning and operating 211 La Quinta diluted common paired share, for the year ended December 31,

Inns and 73 La Quinta Inn & Suites as well as licensing the use 2001. The increase in net loss available to common shareholders

of our brand in retusn for license and other fees under our fran- "o primarily due to the following charges in 2002:

chise program. * a one-time charge of approximately $196,520,000 recorded
Year ended December 31, in January 2002 as a result of our Restructuring to establish

{In thousands) . . 2002 2001 the net deferred tax liability of La Quinta and recognize the

E;e;ue;‘“m— . future impact of temporary differences between book value
Lodging $ 524,295 $ 574837 and tax basis of lodging and healthcare assets and liabilities,
Orher 12,633 73479 including net operating loss carryforwards (“NOLs”) of LQ

536,928 648,316 Properties and LQ Corporation;

Expenses: * a charge of approximately $258,957,000 recorded in
Direct lodging operations 234,753 251,246 January 2002 as a cumulative effect of change in accounting
Orher lodging expenses 75,205 74,573 principle to reflect an adjustment to goodwill as a result of
iet:::::’a:i adminiscrative ZZZ)YZ‘? ;é';;; the implementation of SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other
Depreciation and amortization 125,029 117,552 Intangible Assets,” (“SFAS 142”) and
Amortization of goodwill — 21,412 * an impairment of goodwill of approximately $8,000,000
Impairment of property, plant and recorded in September 2002 related to our TeleMatrix

equipment, mortgages and telecommunications reporting unit.
other notes receivable 37,134 115,347
Impairment of goodwill 8000 _ The effect of these charges on net loss available to common
paired share intangible write-off —_— 169,421 shareholders for 2002 was partially offser by the following
Other(D) (14,621) 31,428 charges taken in 2001:
586,250 930,459 * a charge of approximately $169,421,000 recorded in

Loss before minority interest, income December 2001 as a result of our Restructuring to write off
taxes and cumulative effect of the carrying value of our paired share intangible; and
C]’ange i”' ac?ouncing principle (49.322)  (282,143) * impairment charges amounting to approximately $115,347,000

Minority interest (8,522) (s85) taken during 2001 to write down the carrying value of cer-
Income tax expense (180,952) (488)

- tain property, plant and equipment as well as mortgages and
Loss before cumulative effect of change .
other notes receivable.

in accounting principle (248,796) (283,216)
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle (258,957) 856

Net loss (507,753)  (282,360)

Preferred stock dividends p— (18,000)

Net loss available to common shareholders  $(5¢7,753) $(300,360)

(1) Other income or expense bas not been allocated to a segment. Sec the section entitled Other Expense in
management’s discussion and analysis regarding comparison of 2002 to 2001 and 2001 16 2000 for

a comprebensive discussion of items included in this caption.
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The following table summarizes statistical lodging data for
the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001:

2002 2001

Number of Company-owned Hotels in Operation:

Inns 211 220

Inn & Suites 73 72
Franchise Hotels Open 65 11
Number of Hotels Under Construction

or Refurbishment — 2
Occupancy Percentage

Inns 58.7% 61.6%

Inn & Suites 60.7% 64.3%

Total Company 59.2% 62.2%
ADR{)

Inns $ 56.77 $ 5739

$ 69.11 $ 71.88
$ 59.99 $ 60.98

Inn & Suites
Tortal Company

RevPAR(®)

Inns $ 33.32 $ 35.34

Inn & Suites $ 41.98 $ 46.21

Total Company $ 35.53 $ 3795
Available Room-nights(i) 13,756 14,042
Comparable Hotels(®) 279 279
Occupancy Percentage 59.5% 62.8%
ADR(1) $ 60.13 $ 61.58
RevPAR(2) $ 35.79 $ 38.66
Available Room-nights(‘) 13,260 13,259

(1) Represents average daily rate.

(2) Represents revenue per availab!e room.

(_g) Available mcm-nigbr: in thow:ands.

(4) Represents botels open at least ‘wo years as of December 31, 2002.

REVEMNJIES AND EXPENSES
Lodging revenues decreased by $50,542,000, or 8.8%, to $524,295,000
for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to $574,837,000
for the year ended December 31, 2001. Lodging revenues include
revenues from room rentals and other revenue sources from com-
pany-owned hotels, such as charges to guests for long-distance
telephone service, fax machine use, movie and vending commis-
sions, meeting and banquet room revenue and laundry services. In
addition, lodging revenues include franchise fees charged to fran-
chisees for operating under the La Quinta brand name and using
our hotel designs, operating systems and procedures. Lodging rev-
enues also include approximately $12,137,000 in revenues related
to TeleMatrix, a provider of telephones, software and equipment
for the lodging industry. The decrease in lodging revenues was pri-
marily due to a decrease in room revenues, which accounts for 96%
of lodging revenues. Room revenue is dictated by demand, meas-
ured as occupancy percentage, pricing, measured as average daily
rate or "ADR,” and te level of available room inventory. Room
revenues decreased during the year ended December 31, 2002
compared to the year ended December 31, 2001 due to several
factors, including but not limited to:
* continuing decrzases in demand resulting from the down-
turn in the natonal economy and the aftermath of the
September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks on the United Srates.
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Business and leisure travel have continued to lag during the
year of 2002 as companies have reduced corporate travel
and the demand from leisure travelers has remained weak.
This reduced demand was reflected in the decrease in our
occupancy petrcentage by 3.0 percentage points to 59.2%
for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to 62.2%
for the year ended December 31, 2001;

* continuing declines in the percentage of full rate customers
and reductions in rates in response to decreased demand.
As a result, our ADR decreased $0.99, or 1.6%, to $59.99
for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to $60.98
for the year ended December 31, 2001; and

* sale of hotel properties during 2002 caused decreases in
room revenues for the year ended December 31, 2002 com-
pared to the year ended December 31, 2001. Available room
inventory decreased by 286,000 room-nights due to the sale
of nine hotels during the year of 2002. The impact on room
revenues during the year ended December 31, 2002 due to
such sales was approximately $8&,316,000.

These decreases were partially offset by an increase in fran-
chising related revenue of approximately $4,730,000. Franchise
revenue has increased and is expected to increase in connection
with the expansion of our franchise program.

Net revenue per available room, or RevPAR, which is the product
of ADR and occupancy percentage, decreased $2.42, or 6.4%, to
$35.53 for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to
$37.95 for the year ended December 31, 2001. RevPAR declined
as a result of the above-mentioned factors. We expect these weak
demand trends to continue into the first half of 2003.

Other revenues, which include revenues from leasing and mort-
gage financing on healthcare real estate, decreased by
$60,846,000, or 82.8%, to $12,633,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2002, compared to $73,479,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2001. The decrease in other revenues was primarily
the result of the sale of certain healthcare assets and repayment of
healthcare mortgages during the year of 2002. The revenue during
the year ended December 31, 2002 from assets remaining in our
healthcare portfolic at December 31, 2002 was $4,923,000.

Direct lodging operating expenses decreased by $16,493,000, or
6.6%, to $234,753,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002
compared to $251,246,000 for the year ended December 31,
2001. Direct lodging operating expenses include costs directly
associated with the operation of the hotels such as direct labor,
utilities, and hotel supplies. Direct lodging operating costs
decreased during the year ended December 31, 2002 due to our
continued emphasis on cost control, the decrease in occupancy
and available rooms which resulted in the reduction of certain
variable costs during the year ended December 31, 2002 com-
pared to the year ended December 31, 2001 such as:

®  salaries and related benefits decreased $8,563,000, or 6.8%; and
other variable expenses, including supplies, travel agency
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commissions, purchased services, guest services and vehicle
and credit card processing costs decreased by $6,720,000,
or 13.2%.

In addition, energy costs decreased by $1,513,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2002 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2001 as a result of deregulation in certain markets
as well as other decreases in energy rates coupled with a decrease
in usage resulting from the decline in occupancy. These decreases
in direct lodging operating expenses were partially offset by
increases in advertising and repair and maintenance of $886,000.

Other lodging expenses increased by $632,000, or 0.9%, to
$75,205,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared
to 874,573,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001. Other
lodging expenses include property taxes, insurance costs, certain
Returns loyalty program expenses, franchise program costs, cor-
porate allocations charged to our owned hotel operations based
on a percentage of room revenue and certain costs related to our
TeleMatrix subsidiary. The net increase in other lodging expenses
was comprised of:

® increases in franchise related expenses of approximately
$3,529,000. Franchise expenses have increased and will con-
tinue to increase in connection with the expansion of our
franchising program;
increases in the La Quinta Returns loyalty program expenses
of approximately $2,415,000 primarily related to the
redesign of the program which included a $2,650,000 one-
time charge incurred in connection with conversion of the
program to a point system offset by decreases in the esti-
mated liability for free night certificates issued under the
old program;
®* increases in insurance costs of approximately $492,000.
(The events of September I1Ith and their aftermath are
expected to further negatively impact our ability to obrain,
and the cost of, general liability and property insurance cov-
erage.); and
*  offsetting decreases in TeleMatrix costs of sales and market-
ing and selling expenses of $3,226,000 and a decline in cor-
porate overhead allocations of $2,064,000 related to
services provided to our owned hotels that are based on a

percentage of hotel revenues.

General and administrative expenses increased by approximately
$4,576,000, or 9.0%, to $55,729,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2002 compared to $51,153,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2001. General and administrative expenses
include, among other costs, information services, legal, finance
and accounting costs, sales, marketing, reservations, human
resources and corporate operations. The increase in general and
administrative costs primarily relates to additional expenses
related to sales and marketing initiatives, new quality assurance

initiatives, certain litigation costs, compensation expense related

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Continued)

to an executive supplemental retirement plan as well as a decline
in corporate allocations related to services provided to our owned
hotels that are based on a percentage of hotel revenues. These
increases were offset by decreases in expenses incurred to support
our healthcare operations during the year ended December 31,
2002. We anticipate that general and administrative expenses will
continue to increase due to planned expansion of our sales force,
additional information systems costs and the continued decline in
corporate overhead allocations related to services provided to our

owned hotels that are based on a percentage of hotel revenues.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

Depreciation, amortization and write-offs increased by $7,477,000, or
6.4%, to $125,029,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002
compared to $117,552,000 for the year ended December 31,
2001. This increase is primarily due to early retirement losses of
$2,458,000 on hotel capital assets replaced during our ongoing
renovation program, $2,665,000 of losses incurred on replace-
ment of assets for maintenance of the hotels, $2,825,000 of
accelerated depreciation on a property under redevelopment,
$5,131,000 of write-offs of certain internal and external software
costs as well as additional depreciation related to new or redevel-
oped properties and new assets placed in service during our ongo-
ing renovation program. This increase was partially offset by a
decrease of approximately $8,412,000 in depreciation related to
the reclassification of certain healthcare and lodging properties to
held for sale in 2001.

INTEREST, NET

Interest, net decreased by $33,306,000, or 33.9%, to $65,021,000
during the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to
$98,327,000 during the year ended December 31, 2001. The
decrease in interest expense is due to the reduction of debt of
$335,197,000 during 2002. The reduction of debt was the result
of the application of proceeds generated from asset sales and
mortgage repayments during 2002. In addition, interest expense
for the year ended December 31, 2001 included a $2,092.000
charge to recognize the ineffective portion of the change in fait
value of the interest rate swap through income under SFAS No. 133
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”
(“SFAS 133"). The decrease in interest expense during the year
ended December 31, 2002, was partially offset by acceleration of
our amortization of debt issuance costs of $1,898,000 in con-
nection with the repayment of our term loan in June 2002.

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AMD EQUIPMENT,
MORTCGAGES AND OTHER NCOTES RECEIVABLE

Held for sale assets are classified as such based on results of our
management’s review of current facts and circumstances and our
management having the authority and intent of entering into
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commitments for sale transactions that are expected to close in
the following twelve ronths.

A net impairment recovery on assets beld for sale of $4,462,000 was
recorded during the year ended December 31, 2002. This compares
to impairments taken on held for sale assets of $63,533,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2001.

Impairments on property, plant and equipment beld for use of
$41,496,000 and $29,217,000 were recorded during the years
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, where the cur-
rent facts, circumstances and analysis indicated that the assets
were impaired.

Assets related to the mortgage portfolio were not further
impaired during the year ended December 31, 2002 and were
reduced by impairments of $22,597,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2001.

Impairments on othzr notes receivable of $100,000 were recorded
during the year ended December 31, 2002. There were no impair-
ments recorded on other notes receivable for the year ended
December 31, 2001.

MPAIRMENT COF CCODWILL

In January 2002, we recorded a charge to earnings related to
implementation of SFAS 142 that is reported as a cumulative
effect of the change in accounting principle of approximately
$258,957,000 to reflect an adjustment to goodwill. As a result of
the cumulative effect of implementation of SFAS 142, we
incurred a decrease in amortization of goodwill and a correspon-
ding annual increase to net income of $16,472,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2002, During September 2002, we wrote
off $8,000,000 of goodwill related to our TeleMatrix telecom-
munications reporting unit due to continued decline in that
reporting unit’s operations and based on results of impairment
tests conducted during the third quarter of 2002 as required by
SFAS 142. Prior to implementation of the statement, goodwill
and intangibles were amortized over their estimated useful lives.
Subsequent to 2002, we will no longer incur goodwill amortiza-
tion expense.

WRITE-QFF OF PAIRED SIKARE INTANGIBLE

As a result of 1998 and 1999 federal tax legislation severely lim-
iting our ability to acquire new real property interests and grow
our franchising program, we implemented a Restructuring which
would enable us to no longer be considered a “grandfathered”
paired share REIT or “stapled” entities for federal income tax
purposes. On December 20, 2001, our shareholders approved
this Restructuring. As a result, in December 2001 we wrote off
the $169,421,000 net book value of the intangible asset related
to the “grandfathered” paired share structure.
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As a result of our Restructuring, we recorded a one-time charge
of approximately $196,520,000 in January 2002 to establish the
net deferred tax liability of La Quinta and to recognize the future
impact of temporary differences between the book value and tax
basis of lodging and healthcare assets and liabilities, including
NOLs of LQ Properties and LQ Corporation. As a result of
recording the one-time charge, the valuation allowance that
existed at December 31, 2001 with respect to the net deferred
tax asset of LQ Corporation was reversed.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, LQ Properties
determined that an income tax provision of $5,500,000 recorded
at the time of the La Quinta Restructuring was no longer
required. Accordingly, that provision was reversed and is included
in income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2002. In
addition, during the year ended December 31, 2002, LQ
Properties recorded a deferred tax valuation allowance of approx-
imately $2,779,000 with respect to a capital loss incurred by a
taxable REIT subsidiary, which is included in income tax expense.
Federal and state NOL carryovers were reviewed at year-end in
accordance with FAS 109, and a $2,561,000 valuation allowance
was recorded for the state loss carryovers. Also at year-end, we
increased existing accruals by $110,000 for sales tax audits and
by $257,000 for franchise taxes. After recording these adjust-
ments, we revetsed a net credit balance of approximately
$1,083,000 remaining in certain tax 1iabilicy accounts that was

no longer required or appropriate.

CTHIR IXTENSE
For the year ended
December 31,
(In thousands) 2CC2 2001
Restructuring:
Employee severance and related
employment costs $ 841 $ 22,450
Write-off of debt costs and other
prepayment expenses — 202
Professional, external consulting,
and other fees — 7,136
Restructuring and related expenses 861 29,788
Other:
Provision for loss on interest
and other receivables 1,900 14,713
Bad debt recoveries (22) (3.178)
Gain on sale of assets (12,296) (10,133)
(Gain) loss on early
extinguishments of debt 1,032 (935)
Gain on settlement (5,442) —_
Other (2,654) 1,173
Other (15,482) 1,640
Total other (income) expenses $(34,621) % 31,428
14
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We recorded approximately $14,621,000 in other income for
the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to §31,428,000 in
other expenses for the year ended December 31, 2001 which were
comprised of the following:

® We recorded employee severance and other related employ-
ment costs of $861,000 related to a reduction in staff at
our San Antonio reservations call center by approximately
70 employees in response to the travel industry’s shift
toward online reservations and a decline in call volume and
other lodging severance agreements incurred during the year
ended December 31, 2002. During 2001, we recorded
employee severance and other related employment costs of
$22,450,000 of which $3,085,000 was incurred in connec-
tion with the elimination of approximately 60 corporate
positions from the lodging segment and separation agree-
ments with two former senior executives of the companies.
The remaining $19,365,000 related to severance and reten-
tion incentive compensation earned by the healthcare seg-
ment employees based on achievement of healthcare asset
sale goals and compliance with specified employment terms
to facilitate the sale of substantially all healthcare assets and
the closing of the Needham, MA office in December 2002.

*  We recorded a charge to earnings of $202,000 during che
year ended December 31, 2001 related to accelerated amor-
tization of debt issuance costs and certain other expenses
associated with early repayment of debt.

*  We recorded 87,136,000 of professional and other consult-
ing fees during the year ended December 31, 2001 of which
$6,186,000 was
Restructuring. $253,000 was incurred in connection with
our exit of the healthcare business and $697,000 was

incurred in connection with the

incurred in connection with development of certain cost sav-
ings initiatives for the lodging segment.

* We recorded provisions of approximately $1,900,000 and
$14,713,000 during the years ended December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively, on working capital and other receiv-
ables related to the healthcare business that management
constdered uncollectable.

*  We recovered approximately $22,000 and $3,178,000 dur-
ing the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respec-
tively, of receivables related to the healthcare business that
were previously written off.

* We recognized gains related to the sale of property, plant
and equipment of $7,729,000 and $5.730,000, duting the
years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. In
addition, mortgage repayments resulted in gains of
$2,567,000 and $4,425,000 for the years ended December
31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. We also recorded a loss on
the sale of an equity security of $22,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2001.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Continued)

e We repaid approximately $178,954,000 in principal on
notes payable and we prepaid the entire balance on the term
loan of $145,020,000. As a result, we recorded a net loss on
extinguishments of debt of $1,032,000 during the year
ended December 31, 2002. During the year ended
December 31, 2001, we recorded a net gain on extinguish-
ments of debt of $935,000.

*  We settled obligations and receivables related to healthcare
properties previously sold that resulted in a gain on settle-
ment of $5,442,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002,
As part of the settlement, we received a $2,300,000 recovery
on receivables previously written off and our obligation of
approximately $3,142,000, with respect to certain contingent
liabilities related to prior healthcare asset sales, was relieved.

* During the year ended December 31, 2002, we recorded an
adjustment of approximately $2,185,000 to reduce previ-
ously recorded estimated costs related to the exit of the
healthcare business. In addition, we received $469,000 in
insurance proceeds on a key man life insurance policy. During
the year ended December 31, 2001, we recorded approxi-
mately $1,173,000 of expenses related to the impending set-
tlement of our non-qualified Trustee Retirement Plan (the
“Retirement Plan™) related to the termination of the
Retirement Plan effective December 31, 2000.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

We implemented the provisions of SFAS No. 144 “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS
144} in 2002. As a resule of the adoption of SFAS 144, gains
and losses on long-lived assets classified as held for sale subse-
quent to January I, 2002, the effective date of SFAS 144, will be
classified as gains or losses from disposal of discontinued opera-
tions. Gains and losses on long-lived assets classified as held for
sale that were disposed of during the year ended December 31,
2002 and 2001, have been classified in continuing operations
because restatement of prior periods is not permitted under
SFAS 144 and no assets have been transferred to the held for sale
category subsequent to December 31, 2001.

In 2002, we adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 145,
“Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment
of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections” ("SFAS
145"). SFAS 145, among other things, rescinds SFAS 4, which
required that gains and losses from extinguishment of debt be
classified as an extraordinary item, net of related income tax
effects. SFAS 145 is to be applied in fiscal years beginning after
May 15, 2002 and encourages early appiication of the rescission
of SFAS 4. As a result, we have classified losses on early extin-
guishment of debt during the year ended December 31, 2002 of
$1,032,000 and the gain on early extinguishment of debt during
the year ended December 31, 2001 of $935,000 in other expense

from continuing operations.
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In January 2002, we implemented SFAS 142, which prima-
rily addresses the accounting for goodwill and intangible assets
subsequent to their initia] recognition. SFAS 142 (1) prohibits
the amortization of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets,
(2) requires testing of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible
assets on an annual basis for impairment (and more frequently if
the occurrence of an event or circumstance indicates an impair-
ment), (3) requires that reporting units be identified for the pur-
pose of assessing potential future impairments of goodwill and
(4) removes the forty-year limitation on the amortization period
of intangible assets that have finite lives. Implementation of the
statement resulted in the following impact on “Goodwill and

Finite Lived Intangibles” reported on our balance sheet:

¢ Goodwill. On January 1, 2002, we completed the two-step
process prescribed by SFAS 142 for (1) testing for impair-
ment and (2) determining the amount of impairment loss
related to goodwill associated with our two reporting units:
La Quinta lodging ($248,358,000 carrying value) and
TeleMatrix, Inc. telecommunications ($18,599,000 carrying
value). As a result, we recorded a charge to earnings that is
reported as a cumnulative effect of the change in accounting
principle of $258,957,000 to reflect the adjustment to
goodwill. Since goodwill is a permanent difference, the
charge to earnings had no tax impact. As a result of the
cumulative effect of implementation, we incurred a decrease
in amortization of goodwill and a corresponding annual
increase to net ir.come of $16,472,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2002. In September 2002, we tested the
remaining carrying value of goodwill related to our
TeleMatrix telecommunications-reporting unit for impair-
ment due to continued decline in the unit. As a result, we
recorded a charge of $8,000,000 to write-off the remaining
goodwill balance Zor that reporting unit in the third quarter
of 2002.

®  Finite Lived Intangitles. Upon implementation of SFAS 142, we
identified finite lived intangible assets related to our lodging
brands, La Quinta Inns® and La Quinta Inn & Suites®. As
part of our Restructuring, more fully described above, we
determined that there was no indication of impairment on
these finite lived intangible assets and assigned them a useful
life of 21 years (t7e remaining useful life of these intangibles
was 17 years as of December 31, 2001). This change in the
useful life did not have a material impact on the results of
our operations. In addition, we have a finite lived intangible
asset resulting from a five-year non-compete agreement exe-
cuted as part of our 1999 acquisition of TeleMatrix, Inc. We
have determined that chere is no indication of impairment
related to this asser and that the five-year life assigned to the
asset is appropriare. Going forward, we will test these intan-
gibles for impairment annually or more frequently if the

occurrence of an event or circumstance indicates impairment.
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On January I, 2001, we implemented SFAS 133 and
recorded a charge of $1,236,000, on an interest rate swap that
was not designated as a hedging instrument which was comprised
of an increase in interest expense of approximately $2,092,000
and a partially offsetring entry to reflect the cumulative effect of
a change in accounting principle of $856,000. On June 27,
2001, we settled our interest rate swap agreement at its fair mar-
ket value of approximately $566,000, and recorded a reduction in
interest expense of $670,000 to record the difference between
the recorded liability and the fair market value on the date of set-
tlement. We have not entered into any interest rate swap agree-
ments as of December 31, 2002.

Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 200! to Year Ended
December 31, 2000
Year ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2001 2000
Revenue:
Lodging $ 574,837 $ 604,224
Other 73,479 207,727
648,316 811,951
Expenses:
Direct lodging operations 251,246 267,088
Other lodging expenses 74,573 70,477
General and administrative 51,153 52,159
Interest, net 98,327 183,385
Depreciation and amortization 117,552 147,007
Amortization of goodwill 21,412 22,755
Impairment of property, plant and
equipment, mortgages and
other notes recetvable 115.347 186,829
paired share intangible write-off 169,421 —
Provision for loss on equity securities — 50,279
Other(1) 31,428 164,870
930,459 1,144,849
Loss before minority interest, income
taxes and cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle (282,143) (332,898)
Minority interest (585) (629)
Income rax expense (488) (629)
Loss before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle (283,216) (3 34,156)
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle 856 —
Net loss (282,360) (334,156)
Preferred stock dividends (18,000) (18,000)
Net loss available to
common shareholders $(300,360) $(352,156)

(1) Other income or expense bas not been allocated to a segment. See the section entitled Other Expense in
management’s discussion and amzlysis rtgnnimg comparison of 2002 fo 2001 and 2001 to 2000 for

a [omprzbznsiw discussion of items included in this caption.
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Net loss available to common sharebolders decreased $51,796,000
to $300,360,000, or $2.10 per diluted common share, for the
year ended December 31, 2001, compared to a net loss of
$352,156,000, or $2.48 per diluted common share for the year
ended December 31, 2000.

The following table summarizes statistical lodging data for
the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000:

2001 2000

Number of Company-owned Hotels in Operation: |

Inns 220 229

Inn & Suires 72 70
Franchise Hortels Open 11 —
Number of Hotels Under

Construction ot Refurbishment 2 3
Occupancy Percentage

Inns 61.6% 62.6%

Inn & Suites 64.3% 66.2%

Total Company 62.2% 63.4%
ADR(D

Inns $ 57.39 $ 58.78

Inn & Suites $ 71.88 $ 74.40

Total Company $ 60.98 $ 62.62
RevPAR(Z)

Inns $ 3534 $ 36.78

Inn & Suites $ 46.21 $ 49.29

Total Company $ 37.95 $ 39.73
Available Room-nights(U 14,042 14,256
Comparable Hotels(#) 289 289
Occupancy Percentage 62.4% 63.8%
ADR® $ 6122 § 62.98
RevPAR(2) $ 38.19  § 40.17
Available Room-nights() 13,696 13,734

(1} Represents average daily rase.

(2} Represents revensie per available room.

(3) Availably room-nights in thousands.

(4) Represents botels open at least two years as of December 31, 2001.

REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Lodging revenues decreased by $29,387,000, or 4.9%, to $574,837,000
for the year ended December 31, 2001 compared 1o $604,224,000
for the year ended December 31, 2000. The decrease in lodging
revenues was primarily due to a decrease in room revenues. Room
revenue is dictated by demand, measured as occupancy percent-
age, pricing, measured as ADR, and the level of available room
inventory. Room revenues decreased during the year ended
December 31, 2001 compared to the year ended December 31,
2000 due to several factors, including:

* Decreases in demand resulting from a slowing national econ-
omy and from the impact of the rerrorist attacks on the
United States on September 11, 2001 and their aftermath.
Additionally, business and leisure travel slowed considerably

during the last half of 2001 as companies reduced corporate
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travel and leisure travelers cancelled or delayed trips. This
reduced demand was reflected in the decrease in our occupancy
percentage by 1.2 percentage points to 62.2% for the year
ended December 31, 2001 compared to 63.4% for the
year ended December 31, 2000.

* Declines in the percentage of full rate customers and reduc-
tions in rates in response to decreased demand. The effect of
reduced demand on ADR was partially offset by travelers
who re-examined their lodging needs and decided to stay at
limited-service hotels rather than at full-service hotels.
Additionally, some travelers chose to travel by car rather
than by airplane which benefited our “drive-to” markets.
Our ADR decreased $1.64, or 2.6%, to $60.98 for the year
ended December 31, 2001 compared to $62.62 for the
year ended December 31, 2000.

* Sales of hotel properties during 2001 caused decreases in
room revenues for the year ended December 31, 2001 com-
pared to the year ended December 31, 2000. Available room
inventory decreased by 214,000 room-nights due to the sale
of six hotels in 2001. The impact on room revenues during
the year ended December 31, 2001 due to hotels sold in
2001 was $1,343,000.

RevPAR decreased by $1.78, or 4.5%, to $37.95 for the year
ended December 31, 2001 compared to $39.73 for the year ended
December 31, 2000. RevPar decreased as a result of the above
mentioned factors.

Other revenues decreased by $134,248,000, or 64.6%, to
$73,479,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001, compared
to $207,727,000 for the year ended December 31, 2000. The
decrease in other revenues was primarily the result of the sale of
certain healthcare assets and repayment of healthcare mortgages
during the year of 2001,

Direct lodging operating expenses decreased by $15,842,000, or
5.9%, to $251,246,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001
compared to $267,088,000 for the year ended December 31,
2000. This decrease was primarily due to the impact of cost con-
trol measures which resulted in a reduction in salaries expense,
supplies expense and other hotel expense. Labor costs decreased
by $8,985,000, or 6.7%, for the year ended December 31, 2001,
Qther variable expenses, including supplies, travel agency com-
missions, guest services, credit card processing costs, and repair
and maintenance decreased by $4,874,000, or 7.8%, for che year
ended December 31, 2001. System enhancements, increased collec-
tion efforts along with renegotiated credit card processing terms
contributed to a decrease in bad debt expense and credit card pro-
cessing costs of $4,158,000 for the year. The reductions in direct
lodging operating expenses were partially offset by rising energy
costs of $3,939,000 for the yeat ended December 31, 2001.
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Other lodging expenses increased by $4,096,000, or 5.8%, to
$74,573,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001 compared
to $70,477,000 for the year ended December 31, 2000 due to
increases in insurance costs of approximately $1,345,000, an
increase in corporate allocations of $1,686,000 based on a per-
centage of room revenue and an increase in TeleMatrix marketing
expense of $1,139,000.

General and administrative expenses decreased by approximately
$1,006,000, or 1.9%, to $51,153,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2001 compared to $52,159,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2000. This decrease was primarily related to
savings in reservations overhead, reduction in the cost of human
resources services and reductions of expenses resulting from
realignment in operations deparrments. The savings in lodging
general and administrative expenses were partially offset by
increased information systems costs of $6,336,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2001. There were also decreases in expenses
incurred to support our healthcare operations during the year ended

December 31, 2002 due to our exit from this business segment.

DEPRECIATION AND AMQORTIZATION EXPENSE

Depreciation and amortization decreased by $29,455,000, or 20.0%,
to $117,552,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001 com-
pared to $147,007,000 for the year ended December 31, 2000.
The decrease was primarily the result of the sale of healthcare and
lodging properties and the reclassification of certain healthcare
and lodging properties to held for sale.

Interest, net decreased Ly $85,058,000, or 46.4%, to $98,327,000
during the year ended December 31, 2001 compared to
$183,385,000 during the year ended December 31, 2000. The
decrease in interest expense is primarily atcributable to the
$596,753,000 reduct:on in our total indebtedness as a result of
the application of proceeds generated from various healthcare
asset sales and mortgage repayments during the year ended
December 31, 2001.

APAGRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND SQUIPMENT,
MORTCATES AND QTHER NCTZIS RECEIVABLE
Held for sale assets are classified as such based on results of our
management’s review of current facts and circumstances and our
management having the authority and intent of entering into
commitments for sale transactions that are expected to close in
the following twelve months,

We recorded impairments on assets held for sale of $63,533,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2001 compared to $76,775,000
for the year ended December 31, 2000.
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Impairments on property, plant and equipment held for use of
$29,217,000 were recorded for the year ended December 31,
2001 compared to $26,421,000 for the year ended December
31, 2000, where current facts, circumstances and analysis indi-
cated that the assets were potentially impaired.

Assets related to the mortgage portfolio were reduced by impair-
ments of $22,597,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001
compared to $83,633,000 for the year ended December 31, 2000.

We recorded no impairments on other notes for the years
ended December 31, 2001 or December 31, 2000.

PROV.SICN FOR LOES ON EQUITY SECURIVIES

In January 2001, we sold our investment in Nursing Home
Properties, Ple. (“NHP Plc”), a property investment group which
specializes in the financing, through sale/leaseback transactions,
of nursing homes located in the United Kingdom. The invest-
ment included approximately 26,606,000 shares of NHP Ple,
representing an ownership interest in NHP Ple of 19.99%, of
which we had voting rights with respect to 9.99%. We sold our
investment in NHP Plc for net proceeds of $7,737,000 and
recorded a charge to earnings of $22,000 for the difference in the
net book value and the selling price of the stock. We had previ-
ously recorded an other than temporary loss on its equity invest-
ment in NHP Ple of $49,445,000 based on guidance provided by
SFAS 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities” (“SFAS 115”) and SAB Topic 5M, "Non-
Current Marketable Equity Securities” (“SAB 5M").

As of December 31, 2001, we owned 1,031,000 shares of
stock in Balanced Care Corporation (“BCC"), a healthcare oper-
ator. The stock had a market value of $152,000 and $271,000 as
of December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The initial cost
investment was $1,105,000. During 2001, a net adjustment to
accumulated other comprehensive income of $119,000 was
recorded to reflect the unrealized loss on this investment. We
recorded a loss on its equity investment through December 31,
2000 of $834,000.

WRITE-OFF ©OF PAIRED SHARE INTANGIZLE

As a resulc of 1998 and 1999 federal tax legislarion severely lim-
iting our ability to acquire new real property interests and grow
our franchising program, we implemented a Restructuring which
enables us to no longer be considered a “grandfathered” paired
share REIT or “stapled” entities for federal income tax purposes.
On December 20, 2001, our shareholders approved this
Restructuring. As a result, in December 2001, we wrote off the
$169,421,000 net book value of the intangible asset related to
the “grandfathered” paired share structure.
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OTHER EXPENSE

For the year ended
December 31,

(In thousands) 2001 2000

Restructuring:

Employee severance and related

employment costs $ 22,450 § 23,968
Accelerated amortization of
unearned compensation — 5,240
Write-off of debt costs and other
prepayment expenses 202 3,142
Professional, external consulting,
and other fees 7,136 301
Restructuring and related expenses 29,788 32,651
Qther:
Provision for loss on interest and
other receivables 14,713 5,146
Bad debt recoveries (3.178) (2,060)
(Gain) loss on sale of assets (10,133) 130,536
Gain on early extinguishment of debt (935) (1,403)
Qther 1,173 —
Other 1,640 132,219
Total other expenses $ 31,428 $164,870

We recorded approximately $31,428,000 in other expenses

for the year ended December 31, 2001 compared to $164,870,000
in other expenses for the year ended December 31, 2000 comprised

of the following:

During 2001, we recorded employee severance and other
related employment costs of $22,450,000 of which
$3,085,000 was incurred in connection with the elimination
of approximately 60 corporate positions from the lodging
segment and separation agreements with two former senior
executives of the companies. The remaining $19,365,000 of
employee severances and other related employment costs
incurred in 2001 was related to severance and retention incen-
tive compensation earned by the healthcare segment employ-
ees based on achievement of healthcare asset sale goals and
compliance with specified employment terms ro facilirate the
sale of substantially all healthcare assets. For the year ended
December 31, 2000, we recorded $23,968,000 of employee
severance and other related employment costs, of which
$11,672,000 related to compensation earned by the health-
care segment employees based on achievement of healthcare
asset sale goals and compliance with specified employment
terms to facilitate the sale of substantially all healthcare assets
and the closing of the Needham, MA office in December
2002. In addition, LQ Properties recorded $2,779,000 of
accelerated amortization of unearned compensation for the
acceleration of vesting periods on 240,000 shares of
restricted stock related to severance and retention incentive

compensation earned by those same healthcare segment

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations “Continued)

employees. In January 2000, we executed a separation and
consulting agreement with the former Chief Executive
Officer, President and Treasurer of LQ Properties pursuant
to which LQ Properties made a cash payment of approxi-
mately $9,460,000, converted 155,000 restricted paired
common shares into unrestricted paired common shares
which resulted in approximately $2,461,000 of accelerated
amortization of unearned compensation and continued cer-
tain medical, dental and other benefits. During the year
ended December 31, 2000, we also recorded $2,836,000 in
expenses related to certain lodging segment employment and
severance agreements.

During the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, we
recorded a charge of $202,000 and $3,142,000, respec-
tively, related to accelerated amortization of debt issuance
costs and certain other expenses associated with the early
repayment of debt and the reduction of the companies’
revolving line of credit.

* We incurred approximately $253,000 and $301,000, of pro-

fessional fees during the years ended December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively, related to our exit of the healthcare busi-
ness. During the year ended December 31, 2001, we recorded
$6,186,000 related to professional fees incurred in connec-
tion with our Restructuring and approximately $697,000 of
professional fees and other expenses in connection with devel-
opment of certain of recurting costs savings initiatives.

We recorded provisions of approximately $14,713,000 and
$5,146,000 during the years ended December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively, on working capital and other receivables
related to the healthcare business that management consid-
ered uncollectable.

* We recovered approximately $3,178,000 and $2,060,000

during the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
respectively, of healthcare receivables previously written off.

®  We recognized gains, related to the sale of property, plant

and equipment of §5,730,000 and $2,631,000, for the
years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. In
addition, mortgage repayments resulted in gains and losses,
respectively, of $4,425,000 and $127,905,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. We also
recorded a loss on the sale of an equity security of $22,000
for the year ended December 31, 2001.

During the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, we
recorded a net gain on extinguishments of debt of $935,000
and $1,403,000, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2001, we recorded
approximately $1,173,000 of expenses related to the impend-
ing settlement of our Retirement Plan related to the termina-

tion of the Retirement Plan effective December 31, 2000.
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L3 PROPERTIES—RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 2002 to Year Ended
December 31, 2001

Net loss available 1o shartholders increased by $62.845,000, or $0.44
per diluted common share, to $261,521,000, or $1.83 per diluted
common share, for the year ended December 31, 2002, compared
to a net loss of $198,676,000, or $1.38 per diluted common
share, for the year ended December 31, 2001 primarily due to a
charge of approximately $258,957,000 recorded as a cumulative
effect of change in z:counting principle during the year ended
December 31, 2002 to reflect an adjustment to goodwill as a resule
of the adoption of SFAS 142. The effect of the change was offset
by decreases in interest expense of $34,517,000, in impairment of
property, plant and equipment of $78,213,000, in amortization of
goodwill of $20,699,000 and the write-off of the paired share
intangibles in 2001 of $141,479,000.

REVENUZS AND EXFENSES

LQ Properties recorded r2ntal income from LQ Corporation of approxi-
mately §212,850,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002
compared to $275,359,000 for the year ended December 31,
2001. This $62,509,000, or 22.7%, decrease in rental income
from LQ Corporation was due to a modification in the lease
agreement between LQ Corporation and LQ Properties and the
decrease in lodging revenues experienced by LQ Corporation dur-
ing the year ended December 31, 2002.

LQ Properties royaity revenues from LQ Corporation decreased
by $3,706,000, or 13.0%, to $16,890,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2002 compared to $20,596,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2001. The decrease was comprised of decreases in
royalty revenues from LQ Corporation of $1,307,000 and
$2,399,000 resulting from decreases in lodging revenues and rev-
enues generated by the Telematrix telecommunications opera-
tions, respectively.

Certain rent and royalty payments from LQ Corporation were
deferred throughout 2002 and 2001. Rent and royalties receivable
from LQ Corporation were $160,000,000 as of December 31,
2002 compared to $175,575,000 as of December 31, 2001. In
March 2002, LQ Properties and LQ Corporation modified their
lease agreements. As a result, LQ Corporation's rent payments Lo
LQ Properties were reduced during the year ended December 31,
2002, which will likely result in continued decreases in revenues
of LQ Properties duriag 2003.
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Other revenue decreased by $61,281,000, or 82.9%, to
$12,633,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to
$73,914,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001. The decrease
in other revenues was primarily the result of the sale of certain
healthcare assets and repayment of healthcare mortgages during
2002. The revenues during the year ended December 31, 2002
from assets remaining in LQ Properties” healthcare portfolio at
December 31, 2002 were $4,923,000.

General and administrative expenses decreased by approximately
$6,429,000, or 35.1%, to $11,897,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2002 compared to $18,326,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2001. The decrease in general and administrative
costs primarily relates to a reduction in general and administrative
expenses in TeleMatrix, along with a decrease in salaries and

related benefits due to our exit of the healthcare business.

DIPRECIATION AKND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

Depreciation, amortization and write-offs decreased by $268,000, or
0.3%, to $106,831,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002
compared to $107,099,000 for the year ended December 31,
2001. The decrease was primarily due to a decrease of
$8,412,000 in depreciation related to the reclassification of cer-
tain healthcare and lodging properties to held for sale since
December 31, 2001. This decrease is partially offset by early
retirement losses of $2,458,000 on hotel capital assets replaced
during our ongoing renovation program as well as additional
depreciation related to new properties put in service and depreci-

ation on assets related to our ongoing renovation program.

{NTEREST, NET

Interest, net decreased by $34,517,000, or 35.2%, to $63,688,000
during the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to
$98,205,000 during the year ended December 31, 2001. The
decrease in interest expense is due to the reduction of debt of
$335,197,000 during 2002. The reduction of debt was the result
of the application of proceeds generated from asset sales and
mortgage repayments during 2002. In addition, interest expense
for the year ended December 31, 2001 included a $2,092,000
charge to recognize the ineffective portion of the change in fair
value of the interest rate swap through income under SFAS No.
133. The decrease in interest expense during the year ended
December 31, 2002, was partially offset by acceleration of our
amortization of debt issuance costs of $1,898,000 in connection
with the repayment of our term loan in June 2002.
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IMPAIRMEMT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
MORTCACES AND OTHER NCOTES RECEIVABLE

A net impairment recovery on assets beld for sale of $4,462,000 was
recorded during the year ended December 31, 2002. This com-
pares to impairments of $63,533,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2001.

Impairments on property, plant and equipment held for use of
$41,496,000 and $29.217,000 were recorded for the year ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, where current facts,
circumstances and analysis indicated that the assets were poten-
tially impaired.

Assets related to the morigage portfolio were not further
impaired during the year ended December 31, 2002 and were
reduced by impairments of $22,597,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2001.

Impairments on other notes receivable of $100,000 were recorded
during the year ended December 31, 2002. There were no impair-
ments recorded on other notes receivables for the year ended
December 31, 2001.

IMPAIRMENT OF COODWILL

In January 2002, LQ Properties recorded a charge to earnings
related to implementation of SFAS 142 that is reported as a
cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle of approx-
imately $258,957,000 to reflect an adjustment to goodwill.
During September 2002, LQ Properties wrote off $8,000,000 of
goodwill related to our TeleMatrix telecommunications reporting
unit due to continued decline in that reporting unit's operations
and based on results of impairment tests conducted during the third
quarter 2002 as required by SFAS 142. As a result of the cumu-
lative effect adjustment and subsequent impairment charge,
annual amortization of goodwill decreased and net income
increased $20,699,000.

WRITE-OFF OF PAIRED SHARE INTANGIBLE

As a result of 1998 and 1999 federal tax legislation severely lim-
iting our ability to acquire new real property interests and grow
our franchising program, we proposed a Restructuring which
would enable us to no longer be considered a “grandfathered”
paired share REIT or “stapled” entities for federal income tax
purposes. On December 20, 2001, our shareholders approved
this Restructuring. As a result, in December 2001, we wrote off
the $141,479,000 net book value of the intangible asset relaced
to the “grandfathered” paired share structure.
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For the year ended
December 31,

(In thousands) 2002 2001
Restructuring:
EmPlOyeE severance and felated
employment costs $ —  $ 19,365
Write-off of debt costs and other
prepayment expenses —_— 202
Professional, external consulting,
and other fees _— 6,439
Restructuring and related expenses — 26,006
Qther:
Provision for loss on interest
and other receivables 1,900 14,713
Bad debt recoveries (22) (3.178)
Gain on sale of assets (10,304) (10.133)
(Gain) loss on early
extinguishments of debt 1,032 {935)
Gain on settlement (5,442) —
Other (2,654) —_
Orther (15,490) 467
Total other (income) expenses $(15,490) $ 26,473

We recorded approximately $15,490,000 in other income for
the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to $26,473,000 in
other expenses for the year ended December 31, 2001 comprised
of the following:

* During the year ended December 31, 2001, LQ Properties
recorded employee severance and other related employment
costs of $19,365,000 related to severance and retention
incentive compensation earned by the healthcare segment
employees based on achievement of healthcare asser sale
goals and compliance with specified employment terms to
facilitate the sale of substantially all healthcare assets.

¢ During the year ended December 31, 2001, LQ Properties
recorded a charge of $202,000 related to accelerated amorti-
zation of debt issuance costs and certain other expenses
associated with the early repayment of debr.

¢ During the year ended December 31, 2001, LQ Properties
incurred $6,186,000 related to professional fees incurred in
connection with our Restructuring.

* LQ Properties incurred approximately $253,000 of profes-
sional fees during the year ended December 31, 2001
related to LQ Properties exit of the healthcare business.

* [Q Properties recorded provisions of approximately
$1,900,000 and $14,713,000 during the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, on working cap-
ital and other receivables related to the healthcare business

that management considered uncollectable.
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*  LQ Properties rezovered approximately $22,000 and $3,178,000
during the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 respec-
tively, of receivables related to the healthcare business thart
were previously writren off.

* During the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, LQ
Properties recognized gains related to the sale of property,
plant and equipment of $7,737,000 and $5,730,000,
respectively. In addition, mortgage repayments resulted in
gains of $2,567,000 and $4,425,000, respectively, for the
years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001. LQ Properties
also recorded 2 loss on the sale of an equity security of
$22,000 during the year ended December 31, 2001.

* During the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, LQ
Properties recorded a net loss and a gain on extinguishments
of debt of $1,032,000 and $935,000, respectively.

* During the year ended December 31, 2002, LQ Properties
settled obligations and receivables related to healthcare prop-
erties previously sold that resulted in a gain on settlement of
$5,442,000. As part of the settlement, LQ Properties received
a $2,300,000 rzcovery on receivables previously written off
and LQ Properties’ obligation of approximately $3,142,000,
with respect to certain contingent liabilities related to prior
healthcare asset sales, was relieved.

* During the year ended December 31, 2002, LQ Properties
recorded an adjustment of approximately $2,185,000 to
reduce previously recorded estimated costs related to our exit
of our healthcare operations. In addition, during the year
ended December 31, 2002, LQ Properties received $469,000
in insurance preceeds on a key man life insurance policy.

CHANGE 1N ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

LQ Properties implemented the provisions of SFAS 144 in 2002.
As a result of the adoption of SFAS 144, gains and losses on
long-lived assets classified as held for sale subsequent to the
January I, 2002, effective date of SFAS 144, will be classified as
gains or losses from disposal of discontinued operations. Gains
and losses on long-lived assets classified as held for sale disposed
of during the year ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, have
been classified in continuing operations because restatement of
prior periods is not permitted under SFAS 144 and no assets
have been transferred to the held for sale category subsequent to
December 31, 2001,

During the year ended December 31, 2002, LQ Properties
adopted the provisions of SFAS 145. SFAS 145, among other
things, rescinds SFAS 4, which required that gains and losses
from extinguishment of debt be classified as an extraordinary
item, net of related income tax effects. SFAS 145 is to be applied
in fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002 and encourages early
application of the rescission of SFAS 4. As a result, LQ
Properties classified losses on early extinguishment of debt dur-
ing the year ended December 31, 2002 of $1,032,000 and the
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gain on early extinguishment of debt during the year ended
December 31, 2001 of $935,000 in other expense from continu-
ing operations.

In January 2002, LQ Properties recorded a charge to earn-
ings related ro implementation of SFAS 142 that is reported as a
cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle of
approximately $258,957,000 to reflect an adjustment to good-
will. As a resule, LQ Properties amortization of goodwill
decreased and ner income increased by $20,699,000. In
September 2002, we tested the remaining carrying value of good-
will related to our TeleMatrix telecommunications reporting unit
for impairment due to continued decline in the unit. As a resuls,
we recorded a charge of $8,000,000 to write-off the remaining
goodwill balance for that reporting unit for the year ended
December 31, 2002.

On January 1, 2000, LQ Properties’ implemented SFAS
133, and recorded a charge of $1,236,000, on an interest rate
swap that was not designated as a hedging instrument, which was
comprised of an increase in interest expense of approximately
$2,092,000 and a partially offsetting entry to reflect the cumula-
tive effect of a change in accounting Principle of $856,000. On
June 27, 2001, we settled our interest rate Swap agreement at its
fair market value of approximately $566,000, and recorded a
reduction in interest expense of $670,000 to record the differ-
ence between the recorded liability and the fair market value on
the date of settlement. We have not entered into any interest rate

swap agreements as of December 31, 2002.

Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 200! to Year Ended
December 31, 2000

Net loss available to common sharebolders decreased by $91,989,000, or
$0.65 per diluted common share to $198,676,000 or $1.38 per
diluted common share for the year ended December 31, 2001,
compared to a net loss of $290,665,000 or $2.03 per diluted
common share for the year ended December 31, 2000.

Revenues decreased by $139,231,000, or 26.8%, to
$379,336,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001 compared
to $518,567,000 for the year ended December 31, 2000.
Revenues for LQ Properties consist primarily of rent and royal-
ties related to lodging assets and brand intangibles that LQ
Corporation leases or licenses from LQ Properties as well as rent
and interest received from third party operators of healthcare
assets. To a lesser extent, LQ Properties’ revenues also include
lodging revenues generated by two majority-owned single prop-
erty lodging partnerships whose results are consolidated with the
results of LQ Properties for financial statement purposes. The
revenue decrease was primarily attributable to a decrease in other
revenue of $133,813,000, which primarily resulted from health-
care assets and mortgage repayments sales during 2001 and 2000.
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LQ Properties recorded rent from LQ Corporation of approximately
$275,359,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001 compared
to $278,379,000, for the year ended December 31, 2000. The
decrease in rent from LQ Corporation was primarily due to the
decrease in Jodging revenues experienced by LQ Corporation dur-
ing the year ended December 31, 2001.

LQ Properties rayalty revenues from LQ Corporation decreased
by $70,000 to $20,596,000 for the year ended December 31,
2001 compared to $20,666,000 for the year ended December
31, 2000, Certain rent and royalty payments from LQ
Corporation were deferred during the years ended December 31,
2001 and 2000. Of the revenues that LQ Properties recorded
from LQ Corporation, rent and royalties receivable from LQ
Corporation was $175,575,000 as of December 31, 2001 com-
pared to $63,516,000 as of December 31, 2000.

General and administrative expenses decreased by approximately
$1,341,000, or 6.8%, to $18,326,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2001 compared to $19,667.000 for the year
ended December 31, 2000. The decrease is mainly attributed o a
decrease in administrative expenses due to the plan to close the

Needham, MA office by December 2002.

DEPRECIATICN AND AMORTIZATION

Depreciation and amortization decreased by $25,184,000, or 19.0%,
to $107,099,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001 com-
pared to $132,283.000 for the year ended December 31, 2000.
The decrease in depreciation and amortization is primarily related
to the sale of certain healthcare assets and classification of certain
assets as held for sale.

Interest, net decreased by $84,767,000, or 46.3%, to $98,205,000 dur-
ing the year ended December 31, 2001 compared to $182,972,000
during the year ended December 31, 2000. The decrease in incerest
expense is primarily attributable to the $596,111,000 reduction in
our total indebtedness during the year ended December 31, 2001.

[FIPARMENT OF REAL ESTATE ASSETS, MORTCAGES

AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

Held for sale assets are classified as such based on results of our
management's review of current facts and circumstances and our
management having the authority and intent of entering into
commitments for sale transactions that are expected to close in
the following twelve months. LQ Properties recorded impairments
on assets held for sale of $63,533,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2001 compared to $76,775,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2000.
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Impairments on property, plant and equipment beld for use of
$29,217,000 were recorded for the year ended December 31,
2001 compared to $26,421,000 for the year ended December
31, 2000, where current facts, circumstances and analysis indi-
cate that the assets were potentially impaired.

Assets related to the mortgage portfolic were reduced by impair-
ments of $22,597,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001
compared to $83,633,000 for the year ended December 31, 2000.

We recognized no impairments on other notes receivable
during the years ended December 31, 2001 or 2000.

PROVISION FOR LOSS ON EQUITY SECURITIZES

In January 2001, LQ Properties sold its investment in NHP Plc,
a property investment group which specializes in the ﬁnancing,
through sale/leaseback transactions, of nursing homes located in
the United Kingdom. The investment included approximarely
26,606,000 shares of NHP Plc, representing an ownership inter-
est in NHP Plc of 19.99%, of which LQ Properties had voting
rights with respect to 9.99%. LQ Properties sold its investment
in NHP Plc for net proceeds of $7,737,000 and recorded a
charge to earnings of $22,000 for the difference in the net book
value and the selling price of the stock. LQ Properties had
recorded a loss on its equity investment through December 31,
2000 of $49,445,000.

As of December 31, 2001, LQ Properties owned 1,081,000
shares of stock in BCC, a healthcare operator. The stock had a
market value of $152,000 and $271,000 as of December 31,
2001 and 2000, respectively. The initial cost investment was
$1,105.000. During 2001, a net adjustment to accumulated
other comprehensive income of $119,000 was recorded to reflect
the unrealized loss on this investment. LQ Properties has
recorded a loss on its equity investment through December 31,
2000 of $834,000.

WRITE-OFF OF PAIRED SHARE INTANGIBLE

As a result of 1998 and 1999 federal tax legislation severely lim-
iting our ability to acquire new real property interests and grow
our franchising program, we proposed a Restructuring during
2001 which would enable us to no longer be a “grandfathered”
paired share REIT or “stapled” entities for federal income tax
purposes. On December 20, 2001, our shareholders approved the
Restructuring. As a result, in December 2001, LQ Properties
wrote off the $141,479,000 net book value of the intangible
asset related to the “grandfathered” paired share structure.
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OTHER EXPENSE
For the year ended
December 31,

(In thousands) 2001 2000
Restructuring:
Employee severance and related
employment costs $ 19.365 $ 26,372
Write-off of debr costs and other
prepayment expenses 202 3,142
Professional, external consulting,
and other fees 6,439 301
Restructuring and related expenses 26,006 29,815
Other:
Provision for loss on interest and
other receivables 14,713 5,146
Bad debt recoveries (3.178) (2,060)
(Gain) loss on sale of assets (10,133) 131,513
Gain on early extinguishments of debt (935) (1,403)
Other 467 133,196
Total other expenses $ 26,473 $163,011

We recorded approximately $26,473,000 in other expense for
the year ended December 31, 2001 compared to $163,011,000 in
other expenses for the year ended December 31, 2000 comprised
of the following:

¢ LQ Properties recorded employee severance and other
related employment costs of $19,365,000 and $11,672,000
for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 related to
severance and retention incentive compensation earned by
the healthcare segment employees based on achievement of
healthcare asset sale goals and compliance with specified
employment terms to facilitate the sale of substantially all
healthcare assers and the closing of the Needham, MA office
by December 2002.

® In January 2000, LQ Properties executed a separation and
consulting agreement with the former Chief Executive
Officer, President and Treasurer of LQ Properties pursuant to
which LQ Properties made a cash payment of approximately
$9,460,000 and continued certain medical, dental and other
benefits. In addition, LQ Properties converted 155,000
restricted paired common shares into unrestricted paired com-
mon shares (which resulted in approximately $2,461,000 of
accelerated amortization of unearned compensation).

® For the year ended December 31, 2000, LQ Properties
recorded $2,779,000 of accelerated amortization of
unearned compensation for the acceleration of vesting peri-
ods on 240,000 shares of restricted stock related to sever-
ance and retention incentive compensation earned by the
healthcare segment employees based on achievement of
healthcare asset sale goals and compliance with specified
employment terms to facilitate the sale of substantially all
healthcare assets and the closing of the Needham, MA office
by December 2002.
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* During the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, LQ
Properties recorded a charge of $202,000 and $3,142,000
respectively, related to accelerated amortization of debt
issuance costs and certain other expenses associated with the
early repayment of debt.

* During the year ended December 31, 2001, LQ Properties
incurred $6,186,000 related to professional fees incurred in
connection with our Restructuring.

* LQ Properties incurred approximately $253,000 and
$301,000 of professional fees during the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively‘ related to the
implementation of the five point plan.

* LQ Properties recorded provisions of approximately
$14,713,000 and $5,146,000 during the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, on working cap-
ital and other receivables related to the healthcare business
that management considered uncollectable.

¢ LQ Properties recovered approximately $3,178,000 and
$2,060,000 during the years ended December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively, of receivables related to the healthcare
business that were previously written off.

® During the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, LQ
Properties recognized a gain related to the sale of property,
plant and equipment of $5,730,000 and a loss of $3,608,000,
respectively. In addition, mortgage repayments resulted in gains
and losses of $4,425,000 and $127,905,000, respectively, for
the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000. LQ Properties
also recorded a loss on the sale of an equity security of
$22,000 during the year ended December 31, 2001.

* During the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, LQ
Properties recorded a net gain on extinguishments of debt of
$935,000 and $1,403,000, respectively.

LQ CORPORATION & L.Q PROPERTIES—CONSOLIDATED
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

OVERVIEW

As of December 31, 2002, we had approximately $208 million of
liquidity, which was composed of $10 million of cash and $198
million of unused capacity under our $225 million revolving
Credit Facility after giving effect to approximately $27 million of
letters of credit issued thereunder. Of the $27 million of letters
of credit, approximately $23 million support insurance arrange-
ments and $4 million guarantee the payment of principal and
interest on industrial revenue bonds, which are the obligation of
an unrelated third party. The letter of credit supporting the
industrial revenue bonds expired in January 2003. Because the
bonds require full-year extensions of the letter of credit and since
our Credit Facility matures on May 31, 2003 (without consider-
ing extension options), we did not renew the letter of credit. As a
result, we funded the reputchase of the bonds in January 2003.

This is similar to our action with respect to these bonds in June
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2001, which were subsequently followed by a reissuance of the
bonds. The guarantee of the bonds was a condition of the sale of
a healthcare asset by us to the third party in September 1995.

In addition, as of December 31, 2002, we had $25 million
in net book value, after impairment adjustments, of lodging’
assets held for sale. We have $107 million of debt maturing in
2003, including the 7.82% notes due in 2026, which are
redeemable at the option of the holders in September 2003. As of
December 31, 2002, none of our debt obligations were floating
rate obligations in which interest payments vary with fluctuations
in the London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR™).

We earn revenue principally by owning and operating 211 La
Quinta Inns® and 73 La Quinta Inn & Suites® as well as licens-
ing the use of our brand in return for license and other fees under
our franchise program. To a lesser extent, we also generate revenues
from healthcare related financing and from telecommunications

equipment sales.

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Our sale of assets, the downturn in the national economy and the
aftermath of rhe terrorist atracks against the United States have
had a negative impact upon our operating cash flows. We expect
the negative impact to continue through the first half of 2003.

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

As of December 31, 2002, our gross investment in property,
plant and equipment totaled approximately $2.8 billion consist-
ing of 284 horel facilities in service and corporate assets. During
the twelve months of 2002, we spent approximately $ 119 million
on capital improvements and renovations to existing hotels, con-
struction and corporate expenditures,

In addition, under certain franchise agreements, we are com-
mitted to provide financial assistance, including but not limited
to, loans, reimbursements, rebates, credits and other payments to
help defray the cost of construction and other costs associated
with opening and operating a La Quinta hotel. Our obligation to
fund these commitments is contingent upon certain conditions
set forth in the respective franchise or joint venture agreements.
Ar December 31, 2002, we had $9.8 million in outstanding com-
mitments of financial assistance to various franchisees, of which
$4.9 million has been funded. The unamortized balance of
amounts funded on incentive payments is included in Other Non-
current Assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheer.
These agreements generally require that, in the event that the fran-
chise relationship is terminated, the franchisee either repay the
outstanding loan balance or unamortized portion of the incentive
payment, or transfer to us any equipment, computer or other
property purchased by the franchisee with the incentive payment.
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We expect to provide funding for new investments through a
combination of long-term and short-term financing including
debt, equity and cash. We may also provide funding for new
investments through internally generated cash flow and the sale
of select assers. We may obtain long-term financing through the
issuance of equity securities, long-term secured or unsecured
notes, convertible debentures and the assumption of mortgage
notes. We may obtain short-term financing through the use of
our revolving line of credit, which may be replaced with long-term
financing as appropriate. From time to time, we may utilize inter-
est rate swaps to manage our variable interest rate exposure.

On June 6, 2001, we entered into a credit agreement with a
bank group, which provided a $350 million Credit Facility. The
Credit Facility consisted of a:

®  $200 million revolving line of credit; and

¢ $150 million term loan.

The revolving line of credit under the Credit Facility was
subsequently increased in July 2001 from $200 million to $225
million, which increased the total size of the Credit Facility from
$350 million to $375 million. The Credit Facility matures on
May 31, 2003 and may be extended at our option under certain
conditions. The Credit Facility is secured by a pledge of stock of
our subsidiaries and intercompany debt evidenced by promissory
notes and contains a subjective acceleration clause contingent
upon a material adverse effect. We immediately used proceeds
from the Credit Facility to pay off term debt maturing on July 17,
2001 of approximately $44 million under our prior Credit Facility.

On March 29, 2002, we made a scheduled payment of
approximately $2 million on the term loan. On June 10, 2002,
we repaid the entire remaining balance on the term loan of
approximately $143 million with proceeds from the sale of our
healthcare assets. In addition to accrued interest, the Credit
Facility required a prepayment premium of 0.5%, or $713,000,
which is included in other expense as a loss on early extinguish-
ment of debt.

Approximately $198 million (net of $27 million in out-
standing letters of credit) was available under the revolving line
of credit at December 31, 2002. Borrowings under the revolving
line of credit currently bear interest at LIBOR plus 3.5%. On
August 23, 2002, we borrowed $7 million under the revolving
line of credit at a rate of I-month LIBOR plus 3.25% and subse-
quently paid the entire amount on August 30, 2002 with pro-
ceeds from one healthcare asset sale. On September 27, 2002, we
borrowed $5 million under the revolving line of credit ar the base
rate option of Prime plus 1.75% and subsequently repaid the
entire amount on September 30, 2002 with proceeds from oper-
ations. At December 31, 2002, there were no borrowings under

the revolving line of credit.
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The Credit Faclity contains several restrictive financial
covenants (as defined in the credit agreement) of which we are in
compliance with at December 31, 2002, and include the following:

* minimum lodging EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization);

* net debt to EBITDA (total leverage) ratio;

* interest coverage ratio;

* fixed charge coverage ratio;

* net debt to roral capitalization ratio; and

* consoclidated tangible net worth minimum.

The Credit Facility is collaterized by the stock of our sub-
sidiaries and intercompany debt evidenced by notes.

We obtained an amendment to the Credit Facility on March 29,
2002, which relaxed the maximum total leverage ratio and mini-
mum fixed charge coverage ratio covenants through March 31,
2003, and reduced the minimum lodging EBITDA covenant to
$160 million through December 31, 2002. The minimum lodg-
ing EBITDA covenant increases to $180 million for 2003 and
thereafter. This may impact our ability to exercise any extension
options under the credit agreement. The amendment also included
modifications to certain definitions and other provisions in the
Credit Facility. In addition to the financial covenants, the Credit
Facility also includes limirations on capital expenditures, asset
sales, secured debt, certain investments, common stock dividends,
and debt and share rezurchases. In light of the decline in our lodg-
ing EBITDA, it is ur.ikely that we will be able to meer all of our
financial covenants under the Credit Facility, particularly the mini-
mum lodging EBITDA covenant in 2003 and beyond. Because it is
unlikely that we will meet these covenants in 2003, we intend to
request a waiver or arnendment from the bank group. However, we
cannot provide assurances that the bank group would be agreeable
to such a waiver or amendment or that we will be able to extend the
maturity of the Credit Facility.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, we repaid
approximately $&8 million in principal on bonds and mortgages
payable, which included a balloon payment of $480,000 on a
mortgage, which matured on January 17, 2002.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, we repaid
approximately $179 million in principal on notes payable sched-
uled to mature (or that were redeemable ar the option of the
holder) in August 2002, September 2003, March 2004, and
August 2004 and recorded a net loss on early extinguishment
included in other expense during the year ended December 31,
2002 of approximately $319,000. In addition, during 2002, we
waived our purchase option on a $2.5 million capital lease asset
and related obligation and as a result removed the asset and lia-
bility from the balance sheet. The lease will be accounted for as
an operating lease going forward and future payments on the
lease will be recorded as rent expense.
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The following is a summary of our future debt maturities as
of December 31, 2002:

(In thousands) Notes
Year Payable
2003 $106,739(1)
2004 157,711
2005 115,692
2006 20,000
2007 210,000
2008 and thereafter 54,599
Total debt $665,041

(1) Assumes $90 million of 7.82% notes duc in 2026 are redeemed at the aption of the bolders.

(2) Assumes $9¢ million of 7.114% notes due in 2011 are redeemed at the option of the holders.

We have certain debt that is redeemable at the option of the
holders in September 2003 and August 2004. We are currently
reviewing our alternatives for additional financings to fund these
maturities should the holders redeem them. Such options under
consideration include issuing new senior unsecured debt, securi-
tized debt, borrowings under the existing or a new revolver, new
term debt, or a combination thereof. There are no assurances that
any of these alternatives will be available to us when and if this
debt is redeemed or will contain terms that are attractive to us.

If our 7.114% notes due in 2011 (the “Notes") are still
outstanding from and after August 15, 2004, the tnterest rate
will increase by a spread amount over the current 7.114% interest
rate, which spread amount is determined by a bidding process
involving up to five dealers in publicly traded securities and is
based on the present value of the remaining principal and interest
payments at a 7.114% coupon rate from August 15, 2004, dis-
counted at the rate of U.S. Treasury securities having maturities
similar to the remaining term of the Notes (the “Interest Rate to
Maturity”). A third party (the “Call Holder") has the oprion to
purchase the Notes at 100% of their principal amount on August 15,
2004 (the “Call Oprion™). If the Call Holder exercises the Call
Option, we may repurchase the Notes from the Call Holder at a
price equal to the greater of (a) 100% of the principal amount of
the Notes {$150,000,000) and (b) the sum of the present values
of the remaining principal and interest payments at a 7.114%
coupon rate discounted at the rate of U.S. Treasury securities
having maturities similar to the remaining term of the Notes val-
ued at approximartely $172,580,000 and $162,200,000 at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The Meditrust
Exercisable Put Option Securities Trust (the “Trust™) currently
holds all of cthe Notes. The Trust has che right to require us to
purchase all of the Notes ac 100% of their principal amount on
August 15, 2004 (the “Put Option”). The Trust is required to
exercise the Put Option if (a) the Call Holder fails to exercise
the Call Option or (b} the Call Holder exercises the Call Option
but fails to make payment on the date required. If the Call
Holder exercises the Call Option but we do not repurchase the
Notes from the Call Holder or if the Trust does not exercise the
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Put Option, from and after August 15, 2004 until August 15,
2011, the Notes will remain an outstanding obligation of the
Company and will bear interest at the Interest Rate to Maturity.
As of December 31, 2002, the Company owned $56 million of
the Exercisable Put Option Securities issued by the Trust.
Accordingly, if the Call Option is exercised and the Company
does not exercise its repurchase rights described above, the
Company will have a $150 million obligation at the Incerest Rate
to Maturity and will receive $56 million as a distribution from
the Trust, representing a portion of the price paid by the Call
Holder to the Trust upon exercise of the Call Option.

We had shareholders’ equity of approximately $1.3 billion and
our net debt constituted approximately 30% of our total capitaliza-
tion as of December 31, 2002, LQ Properties had shareholders’
equity of approximately $1.8 billion as of December 31, 2002.

On April 1, July 1, September 30, and December 31, 2002,
LQ Properties paid a dividend of $0.5625 per depositary share of
preferred stock to holders of record on March 15, June 14,
September 13, and December 13, 2002, respectively, of its 9.00%
Series A Cumulacive Redeemable Preferred Stock.

On April 1, July 1, September 30 and December 31, 2002,
LQ Propetties also paid a quarterly dividend at a rate of 9.00%
per annum on the liquidation preference of $25,000 per share to
the holders of record on March 15, June 14, September 13 and
December 13, 2002, respectively, of irs 9.00% Series B
Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, LQ Properties
paid dividends of $60,575,000 to the sole holder of its class A
common stock, LQ Corporation. LQ Corporation used the divi-
dends ro pay accrued interest and a portion of the principal bal-
ance of a revolving note payable to LQ Properties, as well as
$15.575,000 of deferred rent and royalties. As of December 31,
2002, LQ Properties had a $160,000,000 in deferred rent and
royalty receivable and a $5,416,000 note receivable from LQ
Corporation. In addition, its consolidated subsidiary, LQ
Worldwide, made periodic proportional distributions totaling
approximately $3,960,000 to LQ Corporation, which holds a
40.6% interest in LQ Worldwide. LQ Corporation paid no divi-
dends to holders of its common stock during the year ended
December 31, 2002. Its consolidated subsidiary, La Quinta
Franchise, LLC (“LQ Franchise™), made periodic proportional
distributions totaling approximately $5,900 to LQ Properties,
which holds a 1.05% interest in LQ Franchise.

On July 15, 2002, our shelf registration statement on file
with the SEC became effective. Under the shelf registration
statement, either or both of LQ Corporation and LQ Properties
may offer and sell, from time to time, either separately, together,
or in combination in one or more offerings:

* debr securities, which may be senior or subordinated;
* shares of common srock;
* shares of preferred stock;
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* depositary shares; and
® warrants exercisable for debt securities, common stock or
preferred stock.

In conjunction with our decision to seek shareholder
approval of our Restructuring, our Board of Directors approved a
$20 million share repurchase program to allow us to repurchase
common and/or preferred stock in the open market or in privately
negotiated transactions. As of December 31, 2002, we had repur-
chased approximately $8 million (or 1,568,900 shares) of our
equity securities under the program.

We believe that our current various sources of capital,
including cash on hand, operating cash flows, and expected pro-
ceeds from the sale of certain assets are adequate to finance our
current operations, including 2003 capital expenditures which we
currently expect to be approximately $60 million. We have signif-
icant debt maturing in 2003, assuming such debr is redeemed at
the option of the holders. In addition, our Credit Facility
matures in May 2003 if we are unable to elect available extension
options. As a result, we may need to raise capital, through one or
more of the methods described above, in order to satisfy these
debt maturities.

EFFECTS OF CERTAIN EVENTS ON LODCING DEMAND

The potential threat of rerrorist and the continued effect of the
attacks on September 11, 2001 have negatively impacted general
economic, market and political conditions. The terrorist attacks
and their aftermath, compounded with the slowing national econ-
omy, have resulted in substantially reduced demand for lodging
for both business and leisure travelers across all lodging seg-
ments, Lodging demand has been, and is expected to continue to
be, affected by the public’s attitude towards the safery of cravel
and the international political climate. The possibility of milicary
action against Iraq, events such as the terrorist atracks in the U.S,
on September 11, 2001 and the threat of additional attacks, and
the resulting political instability and concerns over safety and
security aspects of traveling, have had a significant adverse impact
on lodging demand and may continue to do so in the furure.
Economic or political changes that reduce disposable income or
consumer or business confidence may affect demand for hotel
rooms, which in many cases are discretionary purchases.
Decreases in lodging demand could lead to price discounting
which, in turn, could reduce the profitability of our business.
These factors may also limit our ability to raise additional capital
to meet 2003 debt maturities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our consolidated financial statements of LQ Corporation and
separate financial statements of LQ Properties have been pre-
pared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
("GAAP"), which require our management to make estimates,
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judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
certain assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and related disclo-
sures and contingencies. Our management evaluates estimates
used in preparation of its financial statements on a continual

basis, including estimates related to the following:

Carrying Amount and Classification of Lodging Real Estate Assets,
Potential Impairment and Recognition of Sales

We evaluate the carrying value and classification of all owned
lodging assets on an ongoing basis. The evaluation process
includes a review of current facts and circumstances such as guest
satisfaction scores, profitability, changing market conditions, and
condition of the property. As a result of this evaluation process,
we identify properties we intend to sell and properties we intend
to hold for use.

With respect to properties we intend to sell, our manage-
ment begins to initiare marketing efforts upon obtaining author-
ity to sell the property. The properties that we expect to sell
within twelve months are reclassified as assets held for sale and
depreciation of the asset ceases upon this reclassification, We
record impairment charges on these properties when the esti-
mated fair value less costs to sell is less than the carrying amount
of the property. These assets are then monitored through the date
of sale for potential zdjustment based on the offers that we are
willing to take under serious consideration and our continued
review of facts and circumstances.

For the assets that may take longer than one year to sell
or for those assets we intend to hold and use, we estimate
when the assets may be sold or otherwise disposed of. We apply a
probability-weighted cash flow estimation approach to recovery
of the carrying amount of each lodging asset held for use to
determine if the undiscounted net cash flows exceed the carrying
amount of the property. If this rest results in a loss, we then cal-
culate an tmpairment loss on the lodging asset held for use by
determining the excess of the property’s carrying amount over
our estimate of fair market value of the asset. The fair value of
those assets becomes the new cost basis and is depreciated over
the remaining useful life of the asset.

As we sell the related assets, contracts are reviewed to deter-
mine if:

¢ 2 sale has been consummated;

¢ the buyer's investment is adequate;

* a complete transfer of risks and rewards has occurred; and

* any contingencies or obligations on our part continue to exist.

As of December 31, 2002, we had 277 lodging properties
classified as held for use with a net book value of $2,246,657,000
and a related impairment balance of $58,243,000 and seven lodg-
ing properties and twe parcels of land classified as held for sale
with a net book value of $25,346,000 and a related impairment
balance of $24,042,000.
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Goodwill

In January 2002, we completed the two-step process prescribed by
SEAS 142 for (1) testing for impairment and (2) determining the
amount of impairment loss related to goodwill associated with our
two reporting units: La Quinta lodging ($248,358,000 carrying
value) and TeleMatrix, Inc. telecommunications ($18,599,000 car-
rying value). As a result, we recorded a charge to earnings that is
reported as a cumulative effect of the change in accounting prin-
ciple of $258,957,000 1o reflect the adjustment to goodwill. As a
result of the cumulative effect of implementation, we incurred a
decrease in amortization of goodwill and a corresponding annual
increase to net income of $16,472,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2002.

In September 2002, we tested the remaining carrying value
of goodwill related to our TeleMatrix, Inc. telecommunications-
reporting unit for impairment due to continued decline in the
unit. As a result, we recorded a charge of $8,000,000 to write-off
the remaining goodwill balance for that reporting unit in the
third quarter of 2002.

Finite Lived Intangibles

As of December 31, 2002, our balance sheet included two intan-
gible assets totaling approximately $77,639,000 related to our
lodging brands, La Quinta Inns® and La Quinta Inn & Suices®,
and a five-year non-compete agreement. Upon implementation of
SFAS 142, we identified finite lived intangible assets related to
our lodging brands, La Quinta Inns® and La Quinta Inn &
Suites®. We assessed our intangible assets for impairment in
accordance with SFAS 142. The results of this analysis indicate
that there was no impairment on these finite lived intangible
assers and assigned them a useful life of 21 years (the remaining
useful life of these intangibles was 17 years as of December 31,
2002). This change in the useful life did not have a material
impact on the results of our operations. In addition, we have
a finite lived intangible asset resulting from a five-year non-
compete agreement executed as part of our 1999 acquisition of
TeleMatrix, Inc. We have determined that there is no indication of
impairment related to this asset and that the five-year life assigned
to the asset is appropriate. Going forward, we will continue to test
these intangibles for impairment annually or more frequently if

the occurrence of an event or circumstance indicates impairment.

Carrying Value of Trade and Other Receivables and Related Bad Debt
Allowance and Expense

As of December 31, 2002, we had approximately $14,115,000 in
trade receivables with a related bad debt allowance of $2,097,000.
We continually review the aging of our trade receivables and pro-
vide a bad debt reserve for all balances over 90 days old. We also
consider other facts and circumstances (such as impending bank-

ruptcy of our customers, credit history, etc.) in determining
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whether addirional trade receivable amounts should be reserved
as uncollecrible.

We record other receivables net of any applicable discount
based on original terms and subsequently adjust for impairment,
as appropriate, when, based on current information and events
our management determines that it is probable that we will be
unable to collect all principal and interest due on the receivable in
accordance with contractual terms. Upon determination that a
receivable is impaired, the amount of impairment loss is recog-
nized as a valuation allowance based upon an analysis of the nec
realizable value of the underlying collateral.

Income Taxes
LQ Properties has elected to be treated as a REIT for federal

income tax purposes and believes that it has met all the require-
ments for qualification. Accordingly, no income tax provision is
recognized for LQ Properties except for certain transactions
resulting in recognition of capital gains and for taxable REIT
subsidiaries. LQ Properties is liable for state franchise taxes
based on net worth in several jurisdictions and has accounted for
such taxes on an accrual basis.

LQ Corporation’s income tax expense or benefit is based on
current taxable earnings before income taxes. Deferred income
taxes reflect the temporary differences between assets recognized
for financial reporting and such amounts recognized for tax pur-
poses, which require recognition of deferred tax liabilities and
assets. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are determined based on
the differences between the financial statement and tax basis of
assets and liabilities using tax rates in effect for the year in which
the differences are expected to reverse.

As of December 31, 2002, LQ Properties and its taxable
REIT subsidiaries had NOLs of approximately $168 million, of
which it can utilize approximately $141 million to reduce
amounts otherwise required to be distributed as dividends to its
shareholders in order to maintain its REIT status. If LQ
Properties utilizes its NOLs for that purpose and if the Internal
Revenue Service subsequently reduces the amount of these
NOLs, LQ Properties could be required to pay a deficiency divi-
dend to maintain its REIT status. As of December 31, 2002, LQ
Properties has not utilized NOLs to offset amounts otherwise
discributable to its shareholders. Also, LQ Properties may be
liable for federal alternative minimum tax, ("AMT"), for years in
which it urilizes its regular rax loss carryovers. Any such amounts
paid will be reflected as a current expense for the year paid. This
expense will be offset by a net deferred tax asset to the extent LQ
Properties believes the AMT will be utilized as a credit againse
LQ Properties’ regular tax liability, if any, in subsequent years,

As of December 31, 2002, LQ Corporation (exclusive of
LQ Properties and its raxable REIT subsidiaries) had NOLs of
approximately $256 million. Accordingly, although it will report
federal income tax expense going forward, until the NOLs are
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fully utilized, cash taxes paid will be limited to state franchise
taxes based on net worth and state income taxes for those juris-
dictions that do not follow the federal rules for utilization of
NOLs and AMT. Any AMT paid will be available as 2 credit in
subsequent years to offset the excess of LQ Corporation’s regular
tax liability over its AMT liability calculated for those years.

As of December 31, 2002, LQ Corporation had deferred rax
assets (after deducting valuation alfowances of approximately
$29 million) of approximately $183 million. For taxable years
ending on or before December 31, 2001, LQ Corporation
recorded valuation allowances for its deferred tax assers, as it did
not anticipate recognizing the benefit of those assets within the
former paired share structure. Beginning with the first quarter of
2002, our Restructuring has enabled us to recognize the benefit
of our deferred tax assets except to the extent of the $29 million
valuation allowance described above.

General Liability, Auto Liability and Workers’ Compensation Reserves

We maintain a paid loss retrospective deductible insurance plan
for commercial general liability ("GL"), automobile liabiliry
("AL") and workers' compensation (“WC™) loss exposures related
to our lodging operations. The primary loss deductible rerention
limit is currently established ac $500,000 per occurrence for GL
and WC and $250,000 per occurrence for AL. The insurance car-
rier initially pays all losses falling within the insurance coverage
and amounts within the deductible limit are then billed to us ret-
rospectively on a monthly basis.

We perform formal reviews of estimares of the ultimarte lia-
bility for losses and associated expenses within the deductible
retention on a bi-annual basis. The estimates are based upon a
third party actuarial analysis and projection of actual historical
development trends of loss frequency, severity and incurred but
not reported (“IBNR") claims as well as traditional issues that
affect loss cost such as medical and statutory benefit inflation. In
addition, the actuarial analysis compares our trends against general
insurance industry development trends to develop an estimate of
ultimate costs within the deductible retention. Large claims or
incidents that could potentially involve material amounts are also
montitored closely on a case-by-case basis. As of December 31,
2002, our balance sheet included an estimated 1iabi1ity with
respect to the deductible retention of approximatcly $22,894,000.

Employee Healthcare Reserves

We maintain a self-insurance program for major medical and hos-
pitalization coverage for our lodging employees and their
dependents, which is partially funded by payroll deductions.
Payments for major medical and hospitalization to individual par-
ticipants below specified amounts (currently, $500,000 per indi-
vidual per year and $1,000,000 per individual for a lifetime

maximum) are seif-insured by us. We base our estimate of ultimate

2002 AR




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations {Continued)

liability on trends in claim payment history, historical trends in
IBNR incidents and developments in other cost components
(such as rising medizal costs, projected premium costs, number
of participants, etc.). Qur liability with respect to employee
healthcare reserves is monitored on a monthly basis and adjusted
accordingly. As of December 31, 2002, our balance sheet
included an estimated liability with respect to this self-insurance
program of $1,933,000.

Litigation and Contingencies

We monitor ongoing litigation and other loss contingencies on a
case-by-case basis as they arise. Losses related to litigation and
other contingencies are recognized when the loss is considered
probable and the amcunt is estimable.

Returns® Program

On September 24, 2002, we launched our redesigned customer
loyalty program, La Quinta Returns®. While the previous pro-
gram allowed members to earn free stay certificates, the new La
Quinta Returns® program allows members to earn points that
can be redeemed for a variety of rewards, in addition to free stay
certificates. New and current members now earn points based on
dollars spent and may redeem them for airline miles, free stay cer-
tificates and various other rewards.

As of December 31, 2002, La Quinta’s balance sheet
included a liability of approximately $5.0 million of which $2.0
million is related to unexpired outstanding “free night” certifi-
cates (which have been issued to customers earning a specified
number of credits) and $3.0 million is related to points credited
to members' accounts. The estimated liability is based on the
estimated number of outstanding certificates and points credited
to members’ accounts and certain assumptions management has
made regarding rate of forfeiture, type of redemption and esti-
mated incremental cost of providing a room.

Expenses of both programs, including the cost of awards,
have been expensed as incurred. Any intercompany profit gener-
ated from providing a free stay award at an owned hotel under
both programs is eliminated. Stays credited under the previous
program for which no certificate had been issued as of the date
the new program went into effect were automatically converted to
points under the new La Quinta Returns® program. Certificates
issued under the previous program and unredeemed as of the dare
the new program went into effect may continue to be redeemed
for a free stay through the date of their expiration.
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Our management continually evaluates estimates related to
the areas included above. These estimates are generally based on
historical experience and on various other assumptions, factors
and circumstances, the results of which form the basis for judg-
ments made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities.
Actual results may differ from these estimates as changes in

factors, conditions and circumstances develop.

NEWLY i8SUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB™) issued
Interpretacion No. 46 Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,
an interpretation of ARB 51 ("FIN 46" or the “Interpretation”).
The primary objectives of FIN 46 are to provide guidance on the
identification of entities for which control is achieved through
means other than through voting rights ("variable interest enti-
ties” or “VIEs”) and how to determine when and which business
enterprise should consolidate the VIE (the “Primary benefici-
ary”}. This new model for consolidation applies to an entity in
which either (1) the equity investors (if any) do not have a con-
teolling financial interest or (2) the equity investment at risk is
insufficient to finance that entity’s activities without receiving
additional subordinated financial support from other parties. In
addition, FIN 46 requires that both the primary beneficiary and
all other enterprises with a significant variable interest in a VIE
make additional disclosures. FIN 46 will not have a material
effect on the companies.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45,
“Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others” (“FIN 45™). FIN 45 elaborates on the disclosures to be
made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial state-
ments about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has
issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize,
at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the
obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The initial meas-
urement provisions of FIN 45 are applicable on a prospective
basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002.
The disclosure requirements of FIN 45 are effective for years
ending after December 15, 2002. FIN 45 will not have a material
effect on the companies.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and
Disclosure,” (“SFAS 148"). SFAS 148 amends SFAS 123 to
provide alternative methods of transition for voluntary change ro
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La Quinta Corporation

the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation, In addition, SFAS 148 amends the dis-
closure requirements of SFAS 123 to require prominent disclo-
sures in both annual and interim financial statements abourt the
method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation
and the effect of the method used on reported results. SFAS 148
improves the prominence and clarity of the pro forma disclosures
required by SFAS 123 by prescribing a specific tabular format
and by requiring disclosure in the “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies” or its equivalent. In addition, SFAS 148
improves the timeliness of those disclosures by requiring theit
inclusion in financial reports for interim periods. SFAS 148 is
effective for financial statements for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2002. Adoption of the provisions of SFAS 148 for
2002 resulted in the addition of our Stock-Based Compensation
Footnote to presentation within our "Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies” footnote,

On August 5, 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (“SFAS 1437),
which requires that the fair value of a liability for an asset retire-
ment obligation be recognized in the period in which it is
incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The
associated asset retirement costs are capitalized as part of the car-
rying amount of the long-lived asset. SFAS 143 will be effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2002. Under SFAS 143, an entity shall recognize the
cumulative effect of the adoption of SFAS 143 as a change in
accounting principle. We are not currently affected by the
requirements of SFAS 143.

On June 28, 2002, the FASB voted in favor of issuing SFAS
No. 146, "Accounting for Exit or Disposal Activities” (“SFAS
146"). SFAS 146 addresses significant issues regarding the
recognition, measurement, and reporting of costs that are associ-
ated with exit and disposal activities, including restructuring
activities that are currently accounted for pursuant to the guid-
ance chac the Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF”) has set forth
in E{TF Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain
Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an
Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).”
The scope of SFAS 146 also includes (1) costs related co terminat-
ing a contract that is not a capital lease and (2) termination benefits
that employees who are involuntarily terminated receive under the
terms of a one-time benefit arrangement that is not an ongoing ben-
efit arrangement or an individual deferred-compensation contract.
SFAS 146 will be effective for financial statements issued for exit
or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. We have
not yet determined the impact of SFAS 146 on our results of
operations and financial position as we have no ongoing plans for

exit or disposal activities of this nature.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Continued)

In November 2001, the EITF reached a consensus (the
“Consensus”) on the codification of issues as presented in Issue
No. 01-9, “Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a
Customer (Including a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products)”
("Issue 01-9"). The purpose of Issue 0I-9 is to codify and rec-
oncile the following issues, which address the accounting for con-
sideration given by a vendor to a customer (including both a
reseller of the vendor’s products and an entity that purchases the

vendor’s products from a reseller):

* No. 00-14, "Accounting for Certain Sales Incentives,”

* No. 00-25, "Vendor Income Statement Characterization of
Consideration Paid to a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products,”

* Issue 3 of No. 00-22, "Accounting for “Points’ and Certain
Other Time-Based or Volume-Based Sales Incentive Offers,
and Offers for Free Products or Services to be Delivered in
the Future.” Issue 3 addresses how a vendor should account
for an offer to a customer to rebate or refund a specified
amount of cash that is redeemable only if the customer com-
pletes a specified cumulative leve! of revenue transactions or

remains a customer for a specified time period.

Issue 01-9 applies to vendors that derive their revenue from
sales of services as well as those that derive their revenue from sales
of products. We currently account for incentives and points in

accordance with the Consensus.

OTHER POTENTIAL CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

We intend to evaluate our current accounting policies with
respect to capitalization of costs, asset componentization, depre-
ciable lives and asset retirement upon further development of the
proposed American Institute of Certified Public Accounts
("AICPA") Statement of Position entitled "Accounting for
Certain Costs and Activities Related to Property, Plant and
Equipment.” The potential effect of any changes to our current
accounting policies resulting from this evaluation could impact

our depreciation or operating expenses.

SEASONALITY

The lodging industry is seasonal in nature. Generally, hotel rev-
enues are greater in the second and third quarters than in the first
and fourth quarters. This seasonality can be expected ro cause
quarterly fluctuations in revenue, profit margins, contribution

and net earnings.

APPROVAL OF NON-AUDIT TAX SERVICES

In September 2002, the Audit Committee of the companies con-
firmed the engagement of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to pro-
vide non-audit tax services for fiscal year 2002. In October 2002
the Audit Committee authorized management to retain
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to provide non-audit tax services
during 2003,
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Management’s Discussion ard Apalysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Continued) La Quinta Corporation

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABDUT MARKET RISK

The tables below previde information about our debr obligations. For fixed rate debt obligations, the tables present principal cash
flows and related weighted average interest rates by expected maturity dates. For variable rate debt obligations, the tables present prin-
cipal cash flows by expected marturity date and contracced LIBOR interest rates as of December 31, 2002 and 2001.

The following market risk disclosures related to debt obligations as of December 31, 2002:

(Dallars in millions) 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter Face Value  Fair Value
Long-Term Debt Obligations:
Fixed rate $107 $158 $116 $ 20 $210 $ 54 $665 $660
Average interest rate 7.77% 7.17% 7.43% 7.30% 7.06% 7.42%
Variable rate $ — $ — $ — 5 — $ — $ — § — $ —
Averagc imeres( rate —_ —_— — _ —_ —_—

The following market risk disclosures related to debe obligations as of December 31, 2001:
(Dollars in millions) 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 Thereafter Face Value  Fair Value
Long-Term Debt Obligations:
Fixed rate $ 25 $169 $251 $116 $ 20 $274 $855 $837
Average interest rate 7.73% 7.76% 7.16% 7.43% 7.27% 7.10%
Variable rate $ 10 $135 $ — $ — $ — $ — $145 $145
Average interest rate 5.36% 5.36% — — —_ —

LQ PROPERTEES

All indebtedness, including notes payable, bank notes payable and
bonds and mortgages payable are liabilities of LQ Properties. See
quantitative and qualitative disclosures about our market risk
above. In June 2001, we replaced the 1998 credit facility with the
2001 Credit Facility. During the year ended December 31, 2001,
LQ Properties repaid $400 million of its variable rate debt due
during 2001 with proceeds from the sale of certain healthcare
assets and proceeds drawn on the 2001 Credit Facility. As of
December 31, 2001, variable rate debt outstanding under the
2001 Credit Facility was $145 million. In addition, during the
year ended December 31, 2001, LQ Properties repaid $341 mil-
lion of fixed rate deb:, of which $228 million was due in 2001,
with proceeds from healthcare asset sales and proceeds drawn on
the 2001 Credit Facility. LQ Properties repaid all its remaining
variable rate debt during 2002. During the year ended December
31, 2002, LQ Properties repaid approximately $179 million in
fixed rate notes payable which were scheduled to mature (or were
redeemable at the option of the holders) in August 2002,
September 2003, March 2004 and August 2004 and recorded a
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net loss on early extinguishment of debt of approximately
$319,000. Also during the year ended December 31, 2002, LQ
Properties repaid approximately $8 million in fixed rate bonds
and mortgages payable, which included a balloon payment of
$480,000 on a mortgage which matured on January 17, 2002. In
addition, during 2002 LQ Properties waived its purchase option
on a $2.5 million capital lease asset and related obligation and as
a result removed the asser and liability included in fixed rate debe
from the balance sheet. Fixed rate debt as of December 31, 2002
and December 31, 2001 was $665 million and $855 million,
respectively.

In June 2001, LQ Properties terminated its interest rate
swap agreement with a notional amount of $400 million. As of
December 31, 2002, LQ Properties did not have any outstanding

interest rate swap agreements.

LY CORPORATION
LQ Corporation is a co-borrower along with LQ Properties
under the 2001 Credit Facility.
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LA QUINTA CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

(In thousands) 2002 2001
Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,647 $ 137,716
Fees, interest and other receivables 24,874 27,078
Deferred income taxes, net 17,389 —
Other current assets 9,425 8,553
Total current assets 61,335 173,347
Deferred income taxes, net —_ 1,546
Intangible assets, net 77,639 81,703
Goodwill, net —_ 266,957
Property, Plant and equipment, net 2,310,089 2,539,576
Mortgages and other notes receivable 60,143 116,938
Other non-current assets 38,334 35,383
Total assets $ 2,547,540 $ 3,215,450
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity:
Current Liabilities:
Short-term borrowings and current maturities of long-term debt $ 106,739 $ 35,360
Accounts payable 35,235 28,563
Accrued payroll and employee benefits 27,541 27751
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 73,321 94,023
Total current liabilities 242,836 185,697
Long-term debt 558,302 964,878
Deferred income raxes, net 201,933 —
Qther non-current liabilities 24,732 33,655
Total liabilities 1,027,803 1,184,230
Commitments and contingencies ‘
Minority interest (including preferred stock liquidation preference of $200,000 in 2002) 206,450 6,657
Shareholders” Equity:
LQ Properties Preferred Stock, $0.10 par value; 6,000 shares authorized;

701 shares issued and outstanding — 70
Common Stock, $0.20 par value; 500,000 shares authorized;

142,958 shares tssued and outstanding —_ 28,591
LQ Corporation Common Stock, $0.01 par value; 500,000 shares authorized;

143,678 shares issued; 142,109 shares outstanding 1,437 —_
LQ Properties Class B Common Stock, $0.01 par value; 500,000 shares authorized:

143,678 shares issued; 142,109 shares outstanding 1,437 —
Treasury Stock, at par; 1,569 paired common shares at December 31, 2002 (32) —_
Additional paid-in-capiral 3,480,773 3,659,185
Unearned compensation {1,862) (2,669)
Accumulated other comprehensive deficit (1,071) (972)
Accumulated deficit (2,167,395) (1,659,642)

Total shareholders’ equity 1,313,287 2,024,563

Total liabilities and shareholders” equity

$ 2,547,540

$3,215.450

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.\
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LA QUINTA CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATICONS

For the year ended December 31,

(In thousands, except for per share data) 2002 2001 2000
Revenue:
Lodging $ 524,295 $ 574,837 $ 604,224
Other 12,633 73,479 207,727
536,928 648,316 811,951
Expenses:
Direct lodging operations 234,753 251,246 267,088
Other lodging expenses 75,205 74,573 70,477
General and administrative 55,729 51,153 52,159
Interest, nec 65,021 98,327 183,385
Depreciation and amorcization 125,029 117,552 147,007
Amortization of goodwill — 21,412 22,755
Impairment of praperty, plant and equipment,
mortgages and other notes receivable 37,234 115,347 186,829
Impairment of goodwill 8,000 — .
paired share intangible write-off _ 169,421 —
Provision for loss on equity securities — — 50,279
Other (14,621) 31,428 164,870
586,250 930,459 1,144,849
Loss before minority interest, income taxes and cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle (49,322) (282,143) (332,898)
Minority interest (including preferred stock dividends of $18,000 in 2002) (18,522) (585) (629)
Income tax expense (180,952) (488) (629)
Loss before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (248,796) (283,216) (334.156)
Cumulartive effect of change in accounting principle (258,957) 856 —
Net loss (507,753) (282,360) (334.156)
Preferred stock dividends — (18,000) (18,000)
Net loss available to common shareholders $(507,753) $(300,360) $(352,156)
Earnings per Share—Basic and Assuming Dilution
Loss available to common shareholders before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle $  (1.74) $  (2.11) $  (2.48)
Curmulative effect of change in accounting principle (1.81) 0.01 —
Net loss available to common shareholders $ (3.55) $ (2.10) $ (2.48)
The accompanying notes are an intzgral part of these financial statements.
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LA QUINTA CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

For the year ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net loss $(507,753)  $(282360) $ (334,156)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 125,029 117,552 147,007
Goodwill amortization _ 21,412 22,755
(Gain) loss on sale of assets (10,296) (10,133) 130,536
Stock-based compensation 2,549 2,007 1,668
Deferred tax expense 186,746 — —
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 258,957 (856) —
Minority Interest 18,522 585 629
Amortization of debt issuance costs 0,749 5,680 8,342
Impairment of goodwill 8,000 — —
Gain on early extinguishments of debt (574) (935) (2,183)
Other non-cash items, net 39,034 299,354 245,501
Net change in other assets and liabilities (26,776) (669) 14,887
Nert cash provided by operating activities 100,187 151,637 234,986
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures (118,605) (93,286) (54.203)
Prepayment proceeds and principal payments received on mortgages 246 30,882 673,121
Proceeds from sale of assets 249,193 626,079 208,586
Proceeds from sale of securities 276 7.737 —
Working capital and notes receivable advances, net of repayments and collections —_ — {8.665)
Other (1,897) —_ —_
Ner cash provided by investing activities 129,207 571,412 818,839
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from borrowings of long-term debt 12,000 245,000 252,000
Repayment of long-term debe (343,899) (837.390) (1,259.410)
Debt issuance costs (46) (9,459) —
Dividends/distributions to shareholders (18,000) (21,938) (14,062)
Purchase of treasury stock (7,764) — —
Other 246 (539) (580)
Net cash used in financing activities (357,463) (624,326) (1,022,052)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (128,069) 98,723 31,773
Cash and cash equivalents at:
Beginning of year 137,716 38,993 7,220
End of year $ 9,647 $ 137,716 $ 38,993

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information (note 2)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LA QUINTA CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

Class B Class A
Common Stock Common Stock
(In thousands, except share data) Shares Amount Shares Amount

Balances December 31, 1999 141,015 $ 28,203 — $ —
Issuance of Paired Ccmmon Shares for:

Employee compentation and stock options 347 70 — . —
Issuance of restricted stock 1,593 317 — -
Accelerated amortization of restricted shares — —
Retirement of forfeited restricted stock grants (50) (10) — —
Amortization of unearned compensation —_ —

Dividends paid — —_ — —
Change in market value of equity securities in excess of cost —_ —_— —_ —
Other than temporary impairment of equity securities _— —_ —_— —
Minimum pension liability adjustment (net) —_ — —_ —
Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2000 —_ —_ — —

Balance, December 31, 2000 142,905 $ 28,580 — $ —

Issuance of Paired Common Shares for:

Employee compensation and stock options 99 20 — —
Issuance of restricted stock 213 42 — —
Accelerated amortization of restricted shares — —
Retirement of forfeited restricted stock grancs (259) (51) — —
Amortization of unearned compensation — —
Dividends paid — — — —
Change in market value of equity securities in excess of cost —_ — — —
Minimum pension liability adjustment (net) — — — —
Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2001 — — — —

Balance, December 31, 2001 142,958 $ 28,591 — 8 —

Restructure — (27,162) 142,958 1,429
Issuance of Common Shares for:

Employee compensation and stock options 817 9 817 9
Retirement of forfeited restricted stock grants (97) (1) (97) (D
Amortization of unearned compensation — — — —
Dividends paid —_ — — —
Unrealized gain (loss} on securities—net:

Unrealized holding gain (loss) —_ _— — —

Reclassification adjustment for (gain) loss included in income —_ —_ — —
Purchase of treasury stock — —_ — —
Minimum pension liability adjustment (net of tax) — _ —_— —_—
Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2002 — — — —

Balance, December 31, 2002 143,678 $ 1,437 143,678 $1,437

The atcompanying notes are an intcgral part qfrbeseﬁnantial statements.
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Other

Compre- Distri- Compre-
Pre- Additional Unearned hensive butions hensive
ferred Treasury Paid-in Compen- Income in Excess Income

Sock Shares Amount Capital sation (Loss) of Earnings Total (Loss)
$ 70 — $ — $3.654.358 $(6,760) $ 4,468 $(1,007,126) $2,673,213 $

— — - 918 (519) — — 469

_— - — 4,803 (4.841) — — 279

— - — — 5,240 —_ —_ 5,240

— — — (740) 633 — — (117)

—_ —_— -— — 1,336 — — 1,336

— — — — — — (18,000) (18,000)

— — — — — (54,749) — (54.749) {54,749)

— — — — — 50,281 — 50,281 50,281

—_— — — — —_ (985) — (985) (985)

—_ — _ — —_— — (334,156) (334,156) (334,156)
$ 70 - $ — $3,659.339 $(4,911) $  (985) $(1,359,282) $2,322,811 $(339,609)

— — — 350 (75) — — 295

— — —_ 300 (349) — — ©)

— — — — 669 — — 669

— — _— (804) 621 — — (234)

—_— — — — 1,376 — — 1,376

— — — _— — — (18,000) (18,000)

— — — — — (119) — (119) (119)

—_ — — — — 132 —_ 132 132

. — — —_ —_ — (282,360) (282,360) (282,360)
$ 70 — $ — $3,659.185 $(2,669) $ (972) $(1,659,642)  $2,024,563 $(282,347)
(70) —_ — (173,810) — -— — (199,613)

— — — 3,397 (1,877) — _ 1,538

— — — (267) 135 — — (134)

—_ —_ —_— — 2,549 — — 2,549

— — — —_ — — (18,000) (18.000)

— — p— —_— — 108 —_ 108 108

— — _— —_— —_— 11 — 11 11

— (1,569) (32) (7.732) —_ — — (7.764)

—_ —_ — — — (218) — (218) (218)

— — — — — — (489,753) (489,753) (489,753)
$ — (1,569) $(32) $3,480,773 $(1,862) § (1,071) $(2,167,395)  §1,313,287 $(489,852)
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LA QUINTA PROPERTIES, INC. CONSCLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

(In thousands) 2002 2001
Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,596 $ 136,973
Fees, interest and other receivables 10,890 13,508
Rent and royalties receivable 160,000 175,575
Orther current assets, net 1,172 654
Total current assets 179,658 326,710
Note receivable from La Quinta Corporation 5,416 —
Deferred income taxes, net 10,891 1,546
Intangible assets, net 63,524 81,703
Goodwill, net — 266,957
Property, plant and equipment, net 2,243,548 2,467,215
Mortgages and other notes receivable 64,507 121,302
Other non-current assets 22,010 25,530
Total assets $ 2,589,554 $ 3,290,963
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity:
Current Liabilities:
Short-term borrowings and current maturities of long-term debt $ 106,739 $ 35,360
Accounts payable 24,974 20,647
Accrued payroll and employee benefits — 235
Accrued expenses end other current liabilities 44,529 69,081
Total current liabilities 176,242 125,323
Long-term debt 558,302 964,878
Due to La Quinta Corporation — 3,266
Other non-current lizbilities 21,449 29,479
Total liabilities 755,593 1,122,946
Commitments and contingencies
Minority interest 27,514 -
Shareholders” Equity:
LQ Properties Preferred Stock, $0.10 par value;

6.000 shares authorized; 701 shares issued and outstanding 76 70
LQ Properties Cornmon Stock, $0.10 par value; 500,000 shares authorized;

144,263 shares issued and outstanding — 14,426
LQ Properties Class A Common Stock, $0.01 par value;

100 shares authorized; 100 shares issued and outstanding 1 —
LQ Properties Class B Common Stock, $0.01 par value;

500,000 shares authorized; 143,678 shares issued; 142,109 shares outstanding 1,437 —
Treasury Stock, at par: 1,569 shares ar December 31, 2002 (16) —_
Additional paid-in-capital ,545,107 3,592,227
Unearned compensation (77) (1.228)
Equity investment in La Quinta Corporation (41,595) —
Accumulated other comprehensive deficit — (119)
Accumulated deficit (1,698,880) (1,437.359)

Toral shareholders’ equity 1,806,047 2,168,017

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 2,589,554 $ 3,290,963
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LA QUINTA PROPERTIES, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the year ended December 31,

(In thousands, except for per share data) 2002 2001 2000
Revenue:
Lodging $ 6,019 $ 9,467 $& 11,179
Rent from La Quinta Corporation 252,850 275,359 278,379
Royalty from La Quinta Corporation 16,890 20,596 20,666
Interest from La Quinta Corporation j— — G616
Other 12,633 73,914 207,727
248,392 379,336 518,567
Expenses:
Other lodging expenses 32,054 32,356 32,956
General and administrative 11,897 18,326 19,667
Interest, net 63,688 98,205 182,972
Depreciation and amortization 106,831 107.099 132,283
Amortization of goodwill — 20,699 21,977
Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
mortgages and other notes receivable 37,134 115,347 186,820
Provision for loss on equity secutities - — 50,279
Impairment of goodwill 8,000 — —
paired share intangible write-off — 141,479 —
Other (15.499) 26,473 163,011
244,114 559,984 789,974
Income (loss) before minority interest, income taxes and cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle 4,278 {180,648) (271,407)
Minority interest (3,726) (396) (629)
Income tax benefit (expense) 14,884 (488) (629)
Income (loss) before cumulative change in accounting principle 15,435 (181,532) (272,663)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (258,957) 856 —_
Net loss (243,521) (180,676) (272,665)
Preferred stock dividends (18,000) {18,000) (18,000)
Net loss available to common shareholders $(261,521) $(193,676) $(290,665)
Zarnings per Share—Basic and Assuming Dilution
Loss available to common shareholders before cumulative
change in accounting principle $  (6.02) $  (1.39) $  (2.03)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (1.81) 0.01 —
Net loss available to common shareholders $  (1.83) $  (1.38) $  (2.03)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LA QUINTA PROPERTIES, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY AND OTHER COMPREHE

For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

{In thousands, except share data)

Class B
Common Stock
Shares Amount

NSIVE INCOME

Class A

Common Stock

Shares

Amount

Treasury Stock

Shares

Amount

Balances December 31, 1999
Issuance of Paired Common Shares for:
Employee compensation and stock options
Issuance of restricted stock
Accelerated amortization of restricted shares
Retirement of forfeited restricted stockgrants
Amorttization of unearned compensation
Dividends paid
Sale of TeleMatrix stock to MOC Holding Co
Settlement of notes receivable from La Quinta Corporation
Change in market value of equity securities in excess of cost
Other than temporary impairment of equity securities
Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2000

142,320 $ 14,232

347 35
1,593 159
(59) (5)

§ —

Balance, December 31, 2000

144210 $ 14421

Issuance of Paired Common Shares for:
Employee compensation and stock options
Issuance of restricted stock
Accelerated amortization of restricted shares
Retirement of forfeited restricted stockgrants
Amortization of unearned compensation
Dividends paid
Change in market value of equity securities in excess of cost
Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2001

Balance, December 31, 2001

144,263  § 14,426

Restructure
Issuance of Common Shares for:

Employee compensation and stock options
Accelerated amortization of restricted shares
Retirement of forfeited restricted stockgrants
Amortization of unearned compensation
Dividends paid
Unrealized gain on securities—net:

Unrealized holding gain

Reclassification adjustment for gain included in income
Dividends to affiliate
Purchase of treasury stock
Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2002

(1,305) (12,997)

817 9

(97) »

(1,569)

(;)

Balance, December 31, 2002

143,678 § 1,437

100

(1,569)

$(16)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Accumu-

laced
Other
Equity Compre- Distrt- Due Compre-
Pre- Additional Investment  Unearned hensive butions Note from La hensive
ferred Paid-in inLQ  Compen- Income in Excess  Receivable Quinta Income
Stock Capital ~ Corporation sation (Loss) of Earnings  Operating  Corporation Total (Loss)
$70  $3,586,994 $ —  $(6,104) $ 4,468 $ (948,018) §(13.128) $(736) $2,637,778 ¢
— 934 — (519) — — — — 450
— 4,858 — (2,088) — _ — — 2,929
— — — 5240 — — — — 5,240
— (731) — — — — — 736 —
— — — 945 — — — — 945
— — —_ — — (18,000) — — (18,000)
— 251 — — — — — — 251
—_ — — — J— —_ 13,128 —_ 13,128
— — —_ —  (54,749) — — — (54,749)  (54,749)
—_ — — —_ 50,281 —_ — — 50,281 50,281
— — — — — (272,665) — —  (272.665) (272,665)
$70  $3,592,306 $ —  $(2,526) $ — $(1.238,683) $ — $ — $2,365,588 $(277.133)
— 413 — — — — — — 423
— 320 _ 118 —_ — — — 459
— — — 669 — - — — 669
— (812) — 79 — — — — (759)
— — — 432 —_ — — — 432
— — — — — (18,000) — — (18,000)
— — — — (119) — — — (119) (119)
— — — — — (180,676) — — (180,676) (180,676)
$70 $3,592,227  $ —  $(1,228) $ (119) $(1.437,359) § — $ — $2168,017 $(180,795)
— 12,996 (41,595) — —_ — — —_ (41,595)
—_ 1,287 —_— _ —_— — — — 1,296
— (137) — — — — — — (138)
—_— —_— —_— 1,151 —_ —_ -— _ 1,151
— — — — — (18,000) —_ — (18,000)
— — — — 108 —_ — — 108 108
—_ — J— J— 11 — — —_ 11 I1
— (60.575) — — — — — — (60,575)
— (e - - - - — - (707)
— — — — — (243,521) — — (243,521)  (243.521)
$7¢  $3,545,107  $(41,595) $ (77) § — $(1,698,880) §  — $ — $1,806,047 $(243,402)
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EA QUINTA PROPERTIES, INC. CONSCLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Cash Flows {rom Operating Activities:
Net loss $(243,521) $(180,676) $ (272,665)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 105,831 107,099 132,283
Goodwill amortization — 20,699 21,977
(Gain) loss on sale of assets (16,296) (10,133) 131,513
Stock-based compensation 1,151 1,224 1,395
Deferred tax benefit (9,345) — —
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princip[e 258,957 (856) —
Minority interest 3,726 396 629
Amortization of debt issuance costs 6,749 5,680 8,342
Impairment of goodwill 8,600 — —_
Gain on eatly extinguishments of debt (574) (935) (2,183)
Other non-cash items, net 39,034 271,412 245,501
Net change in other assets and liabilities (78,514) (73.960) (33.257)
Nert cash provided by operating activities 82,198 139,950 233,535
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures (107,360) (82.472) (40,973)
Prepayment proceeds and principal payments received on mortgages 246 30,882 673,121
Proceeds from sale of assets 249,193 626,079 208,586
Proceeds from sale of securities 270 7,737 —
Working capital and notes receivable advances, net of repayments and collections —_ — (8,665)
Other 2,131 — —
Nert cash provicled by investing activities 144,480 582,226 832,069
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from borrowings of long-term debt 12,000 245,000 252,000
Repayment of long-term debrt (343,899) (837,390) (1,259,410)
Debt issuance costs (46) (9.459) —
Dividends/discributions to shareholders (18,000) (21,938) (14,062)
Dividends paid to La Quinta Corporation (64,535) — —
Proceeds (payments) on intercompany borrowings 58,150 — (10,340)
Purchase of common stock (706) — —
Other 981 (407) (580)
Net cash used in financing activities (356,055) (624,194) (1.032,392)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (129,377) 97,982 33212
Cash and cash equivalents at: —_ — —
Beginning of year 136,973 38,991 5,779
End of year $ 7,596 $ 136,973 $ 38,991

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTE i. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Business

The common stock of La Quinta Corporation ("LQ Corporation”)
and its controlled subsidiary. La Quinta Properties, Inc. ("LQ
Properties™) (collectively the “companies” or “La Quinta”) trade
as a single unit on the New York Stock Exchange under the sym-
bol “LQL" LQ Properties became a controlled subsidiary of LQ
Corporation effective January 2, 2002. Prior to January 2, 2002,
LQ Corperation and LQ Properties were two separate companies
that maintained an organizational structure called a “paired share
REIT"” under the grandfathering provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). The term LQ
Corporation includes those entities owned or controlled by LQ
Corporation (including its controlled subsidiaries LQ Properties
and La Quinta Inns, Inc.); the term LQ Properties includes those
entities owned or controlled by LQ Properties; and the terms
“we,” “us,” “our,” “La Quinra,” “the companies” or “The La
Quinta Companies” refers to LQ Corporation, LQ Properties
and their respective subsidiaries, collectively.

On January 2, 2002, we completed our legal and tax restruc-
turing (the “Restructuring”) of the existing organization of our
companies whereby LQ Properties became a subsidiary controlled
by LQ Corporarion while continuing its status as a real estate
investment trust ("REIT"). As a result of the Restructuring,
each outstanding share of common stock of LQ Properties held
by La Quinta’s sharcholders was converted into one share of a
new class B common stock of LQ Properties and each outstand-
ing share of common stock of LQP Acquisition Corp., a newly
formed, wholly owned subsidiary of LQ Corporation that was
merged with and into LQ Properties was converted into one share
of a new class A common stock of LQ Properties. Following the
Restructuring, each share of common stock of LQ Corporation,
that was previously paired with the common stock of LQ
Properties, is now attached and trades as a single unit with the
new class B common stock. The Restructuring was accounted for
as a reorganization of two companies under common control with
no revaluation of the assets and liabilities of the combining com-
panies (see note 3).

La Quinta’s primary focus is the lodging business. La
Quinta conducts the majority of its business and makes its
investments through one principal business unit which owns and
operates its lodging real estate assets. The lodging facilities
include hotels primarily located in the western and southern
regions of the United States. La Quinta’s lodging real estate
assets are owned by LQ Properties or its subsidiaries and oper-
ated by LQ Corporation through its subsidiary, La Quinta Inns,
Inc. As of December 31, 2002, La Quinta either operated or
franchised 349 hotels wich approximarely 43,000 rooms prima-
rily located in the western and southern regions of the Unired

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

States. La Quinta also has four remaining healthcare related real
estate financing investments.

LQ Properties leases each of its hotels to a subsidiary of LQ
Corporation, which is responsible for operating the hotels. As of
December 31, 2002, LQ Properties leased 280 of its hotel
investments to a subsidiary of LQ Corporation for five year
terms, pursuant to separate leases providing for the payment of
rent based on a percentage of the gross revenues from the hotel

facilities, plus certain additional charges, as applicable.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated balance sheets, consolidated
statements of operations and consolidated statements of cash
flows represent the financial position and results of operations
and cash flows of LQ Corporation and LQ Properties. Separate
financial statements have been presented for LQ Properties
because LQ Properties has securities which are publicly traded on
the New York Stock Exchange. All significant intercompany and
inter-entity balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation. The companies changed to a classified balance
sheet presentation in 2002.

The consolidated financial statements of LQ Corporation
and LQ Properties include the accounts of the respective entity
and its majority-owned partnerships after the elimination of all

significant intercompany accounts and transactions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of certificates of deposit and
other highly liquid investments with less than 90-day original matu-
rities and are stated at cost which approximates fair market value.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Land, buildings and improvements are stated at cost. Depreciation
is calculated on a straight-line basis over 20 to 40 years, which
equals the expected useful lives of the buildings and major
improvements. Hotel equipment, furniture and fixtures are
recorded at cost. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method over three to 15 years, which equals the estimated useful
lives of the related assets. Leasehold improvements are recorded
at cost and depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or the
estimated useful life.

Expenditures that materially extend the property’s life are
capitalized. These costs may include hotel refurbishment, renova-
tion and remodeling expenditures. Normal maintenance and
repair costs are expensed as incurred, When depreciable property
is retired or disposed of, the related cost and accumulated depre-
ciation is removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is
reflected in current operations.
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Naotes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets

La Quinta’s management reviews the performance of real estate
investments on an ongoing basis for impairment as well as when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. La Quinta identifies
properties it intends to sell and properties it intends to hold for
use. For each lodging asset held for use, La Quinta applies a
probability-weighted zstimation approach to recovery of the car-
rying amount of the asset to determine if the sum of expected
future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) of
the asset exceeds its carrying amount. If the sum of expected
future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) is
less than the net book value of the asset, the excess of the net
book value over La Quinta’s estimate of fair value of the asset is
charged to current earnings. La Quinta’s estimate of fair value of
the asset then becomes the new cost basis of the asset and this
new cost basis is ther. depreciated over the asset’s remaining life.
When an asset is identified by management as held for sale,
authority to sell the property has been obrained, and management
expects to sell the asset within twelve months, the asser is classi-
fied as such and depreciation of the asset is discontinued and the
carrying value is reduced, if necessary, to the estimated fair value
less costs to sell by recording a charge to current earnings. Fair
value is determined based upon discounted cash flows of the
assets at rates deemed reasonable for the type of property and
prevailing market conditions, appraisals and, if appropriate, cut-
rent estimated net sales proceeds from pending offers. All assets
held for sale are monttored through the date of sale for potential
adjustment based on offers La Quinta is willing to take under
setious consideration and continued review of facts and circum-
stances. Once an asset is sold, contracts are reviewed to determine
whether: (1) a sale has been consummated, (2) there has been a
complete transfer of risks and rewards, (3) the buyer’s invest-
ment is adequate and (4) there are any contingencies or obliga-
tions to La Quinta that should be taken into consideration in
recording the disposition of the asset. A gain or loss on disposi-
tion is recorded to the extent that the amounts ultimately
received for the sale of assets differ from the adjusted book val-
ues of the assets. Gains and losses on sales of assets are recog-
nized at the time the assers are sold provided there is reasonable
assurance of the collectibility of the sales price and any future
activities to be performed by the companies relating to the assets

sold are expected to be insignificant.

Mortgages and Other Notes Receivable

La Quinta’s real estate mortgages and loans receivable are classified
and accounted for as irapaited when, based on current information
and events, It 1s probal:le that the companies will be unable to col-

lect all principal and interest due on the loan in accordance with che
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original contractual terms. Upon determination that an impairment
has occurred, the amount of the impairment is recognized as a
valuation allowance based upon an analysis of the net realizable
value of the underlying property collateralizing the loan.
Payments of interest on impaired loans received by the companies
are recorded as interest income provided the amount does not
exceed that which would have been earned at the historical effec-

tive interest rate (see note 5).

Capitalized Development, Acquisition and Interest Costs

The companies capitalize all hotel development costs and other
direct overhead costs related to renovation and development of
inns and to development of software for internal use. During the
years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, La Quinta capitalized
$3,226,000 and $5,386,000, respectively, of overhead related to
these types of projects. Additionally, La Quinta capitalizes the
interest cost associated with developing new facilities. The
amount capitalized is based upon a rate of interest that approxi-
mates the companies’ weighted average cost of financing and is
reflected as a reduction of interest expense. All pre-opening and
start-up costs are expensed as incurred. Any significant incentive
payments that may be made to franchisees in connection with the
execution of a franchise agreement which are not associated with
a revenue fee specified in the agreement and are intended to pro-
vide assistance with the conversion to our brand are considered
contract acquisition costs. These costs are amortized and recog-
nized as expense over the term explicit in the agreement. These
payments are generally contingent upon requirements specified in
the agreement and are refundable to the company should the
franchisee rerminate the franchise agreement prior to full amorti-

zation of the payments.

Goodwill and “Paired share” Intangible

Goodwill historically represented the excess of cost over the fair
value of assets associated with the acquisition of La Quinta and
TeleMatrix, Inc. and had been amortized on a straight-line basis
over 20 and 15 years, respectively, through January 1, 2002, the
date of implementation of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142 (“SFAS 142”). As a result of
implementation of SFAS 142 and subsequent tests required under
this pronouncement, the carrying value of all goodwill has been
written off (see Change in Accounting Principle, below). The
companies assess the recoverability of goodwill acquired in con-
nection with acquisitions whenever adverse events or changes in
circumstances or business climate indicate that the expected
future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) for
individual business segments may not be sufficient to support
recorded goodwill. If undiscounted cash flows are not sufficient to

support the recorded asset, an impairment is recognized to reduce
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the carrying value of the goodwill based on the expected dis-
counted cash flows of the business segment. Expected cash flows
are discounted art a rate commensurate with the risk involved.

In connection with the shareholders” approval of our
Restructuring in December 2001 (see note 3), we wrote off the
remaining unamortized balance of $169,421,000 associated with
an intangible asset related to the value of a paired share structure
based on an analysis of the future net cash flows of tax benefit and
the impact of the reversal of the “grandfathered paired share” tax
treatment. Prior to December 2001, the intangible had been

amortized over a 40 year period from the date of its acquisition.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets, consisting of La Quinta’s brands, La Quinta
Inns® and La Quinta Inn & Suites®, and a non-compete agree-
ment are included in other assets and are amortized on a straight-
line basis using lives ranging from 5 to 20 years based on
management’s assessment of the fair value of the intangible
assets. Historically, the companies evaluated the carrying value of
intangible assets in the same manner that they evaluate the carry-
ing values of real estate assets. La Quinta completed a reevalua-
tion of brand intangibles in conjunction with the Restructuring
and in preparation for implementation of SFAS 142 and deter-
mined there was no impairment of value. Effective January 1,
2002, the companies implemented the provisions of SFAS 142.
The companies also completed the annual valuation using
methodology consistent with that used during the Restructuring
and determined there was no impairment for the year ended
December 31, 2002.

Inventory, net

Inventories, which are a component of other current assets, of
$3,644,000 and $4,891,000 for the years ended December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively, are stated at the lower of cost or
market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method.

Debt Issuance Costs

Debr issuance costs, which are a component of other assets, have
been deferred and are amortized on a straight-line basis (which
approximates the effective interest method) over the term of the

related borrowings.

Insured and Self-insurance Programs

La Quinra uses a paid loss retrospective deductible insurance plan
for general and auto liability and workers’ compensation loss
exposure related to its lodging operations, Predetermined loss
limits have been arranged with insurance companies to limit the

per occurrence cash outlay.
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Our employees and their dependents are covered by a self-
insurance program for major medical and hospitalization cover-
age, which is partially funded by payroll deductions. Payments for
major medical and hospitalization to individual participants
below specified amounts are self-insured by the companies.

Minority interest

Minority interest presented on the Consolidated Balance Sheet of
LQ Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2002 includes
the $200,000,000 liquidation preference of 700,000 shares of
9% Series A Preferred Stock and 1,000 shares of 9% Series B
Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock (at $250
and $25,000 per share, respectively) issued by LQ Properties and
held by third parties. The remaining minority interest of
$6,450,000 and $6,657,000 presented on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet of La Quinta Corporation for the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, represents the exter-
nal partners’ interests in our two controlled partnerships, each of
which owns one hotel property.

Preferred dividends of $18,000,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2002 have also been included in Minority Interest
on the La Quinta Corporation Consolidated Statement of
Operations along with the external partners’ equity in earnings of

our two controlled partnerships.

Shareholders’ Equity

The outstanding shares of LQ Properties’ class B common stack
and LQ Corporation common stock are only transferable and
tradable in combination as a unit consisting of one share of LQ
Properties class B common stock and one share of LQ Corporation
common stock.

At December 31, 2001, LQ Corporation owned 1,305,000
unpaired shares of LQ Properties as a result of the merger with
Santa Anita in 1997. In connection with the Restructuring, the
1,305,000 unpaired shares of LQ Properties owned by LQ
Corporation were cancelled effective January 2, 2002 (see note 3).

As part of the Restructuring completed on January 2, 2002,
LQ Properties exchanged a portion of its interest in two limited
liability companies, which held brand intangibles and related
rights, for 9,430,000 unpaired shares of LQ Corporation com-
mon stock. LQ Properties’ investment in the 9,430,000 shares of
LQ Corporation common stock has been presented as contra
equity on the accompanying LQ Properties’ balance sheet as of
December 31, 2002 in accordance with Emerging Issues Task
Force (“"EITF") 98-2, "Accounting by a Subsidiary or Joint
Venture for an Investment in the Stock of Its Parent Company or

Joint Venture Partner.”
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Notes to Financial Statemerts {Continued)

Revenue Recognition

LQ Properties rental income from operating leases is recognized
on a straight-line basis over the life of the respective lease agree-
ments. Interest income on real estate mortgages is recognized on
the accrual basis, which approximates the effective interest
method. In addition, interest income due from borrowers is rec-
ognized only when ccllectibility is reasonably assured.

La Quinta’s hotel revenues are derived from room rentals and
other sources such as charges to guests for long-distance tele-
phone service, fax machine use, movie and vending commissions,
meeting and banquer room revenue and laundry services. Hotel
revenues are recognized as earned. The impact of customer incen-
tive discounts and rebate programs are recognized as a reduction
of revenue as incurred and are included in the calculation of aver-
age room rate and revenue per available room. We believe that the
credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited due to the
fact that approximately 85% of our revenue is related to credit
card transactions, which are typically reimbursed within two to
five days. Reserves for any uncollectible accounts are established
for accounts which agz beyond a predetermined acceptable period.

In January 2001, the EITF reached a consensus on a portion
of the EITF Issue No. 00-22 "Accounting for “Points’ and
Certain Other Time-Based or Volume-Based Sales Incentive
Offers, and Offers for Free Products or Services to Be Delivered
in the Future.” One of the issues addressed by the consensus
focuses on the recognition of a cash rebate or refund obligation
as a reducrion of revenue based on a systematic and rational allo-
cation of cost. In January 2001, LQ Corporation implemented a
customer retention program which provides a cash rebate. In
accordance with the consensus, LQ Corporation classified such
cash rebates or refunds as a reduction of revenues.

During 2000, La Quinta commenced its franchising pro-
gram. La Quinta receives royalty, marketing, reservation and other
fees in connection with the franchise of La Quinta® brands and
these fees are recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 45,
“Accounting for Franchise Fee Revenue.” These fees are generally
based on a percentage of hotel room revenues and accrue as the
underlying franchisee revenue is earned. La Quinta also receives
initial franchise fees, which are recognized as revenue when all
material services or conditions relating to the sale of a franchise
have been substantially performed. Any rebate of fees given to
franchisees are recognized as a reduction of revenue as the appli-
cable revenue is earned and recognized.

Marketing, royalry, reservation and other franchise fees are
recognized and presented in accordance with the EITF Issue 99-
19 “Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an
Agent” (“Issue 99-197). Issue 99-19 requires that these fees be

recorded gross.
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Customer Loyalty Program

On September 24, 2002, LQ Corporation announced the launch
of a redesigned customer loyalty program, La Quinta Returns®.
While the previous program allowed members to earn free stay
certificates, the new La Quinta Returns® program allows mem-
bers to earn points that can be redeemed for a variety of rewards,
in addition to free stay certificates. New and current members
now earn points based on dollars spent and may redeemn them for
attline miles, free stay certificates and various other rewards.

As of December 31, 2002, La Quinta’s balance sheet
included a liability of approximately $4,931,000 of which
$1,909,000 is related to unexpired outstanding “free night” cer-
tificates (which have been issued to customers earning a specified
number of credits) and $3,022,000 was related to points credited
to members’ accounts. The estimated liability is based on the
estimated number of outstanding certificates and points credited
to members’ accounts and certain assumptions management has
made regarding rate of forfeiture, type of redemption and esti-
mated incremental cost of providing a room (see Change in
Accounting Principle, below).

EITFE Issue No. 00-22 (see Revenue Recognition, above)
addresses incentive or loyalty programs such as La Quinta
Returns®, LQ Corporation has historically reported the cost that
it would refund the hotel for the “free stay” under its previous
program as offsetting components of other lodging expenses and
lodging revenues and reflected a zero economic impact of the free
stay. We have netted these revenues and costs, resulting in no
financial statement impact of the transaction other than ongoing
adjustments to our accrual of the estimated increases or decreases
in the liability on issued but unredeemed free stay cerrificates.

Expenses of both programs, including the cost of awards, have
been expensed as incurred. Any intercompany proﬁt generated from
providing a free stay award at an owned hotel under both programs
is eliminated. Stays credited under the previous program for which
no certificate had been issued as of the date the new program went
into effect were auromatically converted to points under the new
La Quinta Returns® program. Certificates issued under the previ-
ous program and unredeemed as of the date the new program went
into effect may continue to be redeemed for a free stay through the
date of their expiration. At December 31, 2002, the liability for
points credited to members’ accounts is approximately $3,022,000
under the new program. This estimate is based on the number of
points earned by members and can be impacted by certain assump-
tions made by management regarding redemption behavior such as
rate of forfeiture and type of redemption. We cannot currently esti-

mate when the liability will be required to be paid.
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Seasonality

The hortel industry is seasonal in nature. Generally, hotel revenues
are greater in the second and third quarters than in the first and
fourth quarters. This seasonality can be expected to cause quar-
terly fluctuations in revenue, profit margins and net earnings. In
addition, the opening of newly constructed hotels and the timing
of any hotel acquisitions or sales may cause a variation of revenue
from quarter to quarcer.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed based upon the weighted
average number of shares of common stock outstanding during
the period presented. Diluted earnings per share is computed
based upon the weighted average number of shares of common
stock and dilutive common stock equivalents outstanding during
the period presented. The diluted earnings per share computa-
tions also include options to purchase common stock that were
outstanding during the period, unless the companies report a loss
from continuing operations, adjusced for preferred dividends tf
necessary, for the period. The number of shares outstanding
related to the options has been calculated by application of the
“treasury stock” method. See note 17 for more detailed disclo-
sure regarding the applicable numerators and denominators used

in the earnings per share calculations,

Stock-Based Compensation

SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”
("SFAS 1237), provides companies an alternative to accounting
for stock-based compensation as prescribed under Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25 "Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees” ("APB 25™). SFAS 123 encourages, but does not
require, companies to recognize expense for stock-based awards
based on their fair value at date of grant. SFAS 123 allows com-
panies to follow existing accounting rules (intrinsic value method
under APB 25) provided that pro forma disclosures are made of
what net income and earnings per share would have been had the
new fair value method been used. The companies have elected to
adopt the disclosure requirements of SFAS 123, but will con-
tinue to account for stock-based compensation under APB 25,
At December 31, 2002, we had various stock-based
employee compensation plans, which are described more fully in
note 14. We account for the plans under the recognition and
measurement principles of APB 25, and related interpretations.
No stock-based employee compensarion cost is charged to earn-
ings for options, as all options granted under those plans had an
exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying com-
mon stock on the date of grant. Had compensation cost for the
companies’ stock option-based compensation plans been deter-
mined based on the fair value at the grant dates for awards under
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the plans consistent with the method pursuant to SFAS 123, the
companies’ net income and earnings per share would have been
reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

For the year ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000

$(507,753) $(300.360) $(352,156)

(In thousands, except per share data)

Net income, as reported

Deduct: Total stock-based
employee compensation
expense determined under
fair value based method
for all awards, net of
related tax effects

(3,813) (2.182) (768)
$(511,566) $(302,542) $(352.924)

Pro forma net income
Earnings per share;
Basic and assuming

dilution—as reported $ (355 %8 (210) $  (2.48)
Basic and assuming
dilution—pro forma $  (3.58) §  (2.12) §  (2.49)

The companies grant restricted stock awards to cerrain
employees. The difference berween the price to the employee and
the market value at grant date is charged to unearned compensa-
tion and carried as a component of equity and amortized over the

refated vesting period (see note 14).

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Management has estimated the fair value of its financial instru-
ments using available market information and various valuation
methodologies. Considerable judgment is required in incerpreting
market data to develop estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the
estimated values for the companies’ financial instruments as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001 are not necessarily indicative of

the amounts that could be realized in current market exchanges.

Income Taxes

LQ Properties has elected to be taxed as a REIT under the Code
and believes it has met all the requirements for qualification as
such. Accordingly. LQ Properties will generally not be subject to
federal income taxes on amounts distributed to shareholders, pro-
vided it distributes annually at least 90% of its REIT taxable
income (determined without regard to its dividends paid deduction
and by excluding net capital gains) and meets certain other require-
ments for qualifying as a REIT. Therefore, generally no provision
for federal income taxes is believed necessary in the financial stace-
ments of LQ Properties except for certain transactions resulting tn
capital gains which may require a federal tax provision and for sub-
sidiaries taxable as C-corporations. LQ Properties utilizes taxable
REIT subsidiaries to conduct the operations of TeleMatrix, Inc.
and hold certain assers which LQ Properties could not hold
directly. LQ Properties has accrued and paid federal and state

income taxes on the earnings of such subsidiaries.
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The reported araount of the companies’ net assets exceeded
their tax basis by approximately $894,147,000 and $1,096,443,000
as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

LQ Corporation income tax expense (benefit) is based on
reported earnings before income taxes. Deferred income taxes
reflect the temporary differences between assers and liabilities
recognized for financial reporting and such amounts recognized
for tax purposes, which requires recognition of deferred tax lia-
bilities and assets. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are deter-
mined based on the differences between the financial statement
and tax basis of assers and liabilities using the tax rates in effect
for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. For
taxable years endin;g; on or before December 31, 2001, LQ
Corporation recorded valuation allowances for its deferred tax
assets, as it did not anticipate recognizing the benefit of those
assets within the paired share structure. As of December 31,
2002, LQ Corporation and LQ Properties have recorded valua-
tion allowances for certain capital loss carryovers, state operating

loss carryovers and federal tax credit carryovers.

Derivatives

Upon adoption of the SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” ("SFAS 133"} as amended
by SFAS No. 13%, “Accounting for Certain Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” (“SFAS 138™) La Quinta
recognizes all derivatives as either assets or liabilities measured at
fair value. Depending on the nature of the hedge, changes in the
fair value of the derivative are offset against the change in fair
value of the hedged assets or liabiliries through earnings or rec-
ognized in other comprehensive income until the hedged item is
recognized in earnings. Any ineffective portion of a derivative’s
change in fair value is immediately recognized in earnings and any
derivatives that are not hedges are adjusted to fair value through
earnings. The companies did not obtain hedge accounting for
interest rate swaps in «ffect during the year ended December 31,
2000; therefore, they were carried at fair value on the balance
sheet and changes in the fair value were recognized in current
period earnings. The companies had no derivative instruments as
of December 31, 2002 or December 31, 2001.
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Advertising Costs

LQ Corporation expenses advertising costs as incurred.
Advertising costs charged to operations for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000 were $13,295,000,
$18,496,000, and $17,863,000, respectively, and are reported as
components of “Direct lodging operations,” “Other lodging
expenses,” and “General and administrative” costs in the accom-

panying Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Change in Accounting Principle

We implemented the provisions of SFAS No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” (“SFAS
144”) in 2002. As a result of the adoption of SFAS 144, gains
and losses on long-lived assets classified as held for sale subse-
quent to January 1, 2002, the effective date of SFAS 144, will be
classified as gains or losses from disposal of discontinued opera-
tions. Gains and losses on long-lived assets classified as held for
sale that were disposed of during the years ended December 31,
2002 and 2001, have been classified in continuing operations
because restatement of prior periods is not permitted under
SFAS 144 and no assets have been transferred to the held for sale
category subsequent to December 31, 2001.

In 2002, we adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 145,
“Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections” (“SFAS
145”). SFAS 145, among other things, rescinds SFAS 4, which
required that gains and losses from extinguishment of debt be clas-
sified as an extraordinary item, net of related income tax effects.
SFAS 145 is to be applied in fiscal years beginning after May 15,
2002 and encourages early application of the rescission of SFAS 4.
As a result, we have classified losses on early extinguishment of
debr during the year ended December 31, 2002 of $1,032,000 and
the gain on early extinguishment of debt during the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000 of $935,000 and $1,403,000
respectively, in other expense from continuing operations.

48




La Quinta Corporation

In January 2002, we implemented SFAS 142, which prima-
rily addresses the accounting for goodwill and intangible assets
subsequent to their initial recognition. SFAS 142 (1) prohibits
the amortization of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible
assets, (2) requires testing of goodwill and indefinite-lived intan-
gible assets on an annual basis for impairment (and more fre-
quently if the occurrence of an event ot circumstance indicates an
impairment), (3) requires that reporring units be identified for
the purpose of assessing potential future impairments of good-
will and (4) removes the 40 year limitation on the amortization
period of intangible assets that have finite lives.

Goodwill

On January I, 2002 we completed the two-step process prescribed
by SFAS 142 for (I} testing for impairment and (2) determining

the amount of impairment loss related to goodwill associated with

Reconciliation of Reported Net Loss to Adjusted Net Loss

Notes to Financial Stacements (Continued)

our two reporting units: La Quinta lodging ($248,358,000 carry-
ing value) and TeleMatrix, Inc. telecommunications {$18,599,000
carrying value). As a result, we recorded a charge to earnings thar is
reported as a cumulative effect of the change in accounting princi-
ple of $258,957,000 to reflect the adjustment to goodwill. Since
goodwill is a permanent difference, the charge to earnings had no
tax impact. As a result of the cumulative effect of implementation,
we incurred a decrease in amortization of goodwill and a corre-
sponding annual increase to net income of $16,472,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2002.

In September 2002, we tested the remaining carrying value
of goodwill relared to our TeleMatrix telecommunications report-
ing unit for impairment due to continued decline in operating
results and contribution of the unit. As a result, we recorded a
charge of $8,000,000 to write-off the remaining goodwill bal-
ance for that reporting unit in the third quarter of 2002.

The following table illustrates net loss available to common sharcholders of La Quinta if SFAS 142 had been implemented as of

January 1, 2000:

December 31,

(In thousands, except per share data) 2002@) 2001(b) 2000()
Adjusted Neat Loss

Reported net loss available to common shareholders $(507,753) ${300,360) $(352.156)
La Quinta lodging goodwill amortization — 15,014 15,014

TeleMatrix telecommunications goodwill amortization — 1,457 1.457

Lodging trademark amortization — 1,040 1,040

Adjusted net loss available to common shareholders $(507,753) $(282,849) $(334,645)
Earnings per Share—Basic and Assuming Dilution

Reported net loss available to common shareholders $  (3.55) $ (2.10) $  (2.48)
La Quinta lodging goodwill amortization —_— 0.10 0.10

TeleMatrix telecommunications goodwill amortization — 0.01 0.01

Lodging trademark amortizarion p— 0.01 0.01

Adjusted net loss available to common shareholders $ (3.55) $ (1.98) $ (2.36)

{a) The reported net loss available to common sharebolders for the year ended December 31, 2002 includes an impairment charge of $8,000,000 to write-off the remaining carrying value of goodwill related to our

TeleMatrix telecommunications-reporiing unit.

(b) Adjusted net loss available to common shareholders for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 includes $4,32.4,000 of amontization of our paired share intangible written off in Decernber of 2001 in con-

nection with our Restructuring and $617,000 and $1,557,000, respectively, of amortization of certain other goodwill associated with LQ Properties which was fully amortized as of December 31, 2001 and there-

fore ot contemplated under SFAS 142,
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Finite Lived Intangibles

Upon implementation of SFAS 142, we identified finite lived intangible assets relared to our lodging brands, La Quinta® Inns and La
Quinta® Inn & Suites. As part of our Restructuring, more fully described in note 3, we determined that there was no indication of
impairment on these finite lived intangible assets and assigned them a useful life of 21 years (the remaining useful life of these intan-
gibles was 17 years as of December 31, 2001). This change in the useful life did not have a material impact on the resules of our oper-
ations. In addition, we have a finite lived intangible asset resulting from a five-year non-compete agreement executed as part of our
1999 acquisition of TeleMatrix, Inc. We have determined that there is no indication of impairment related to this asset and that the

five-year life assigned to this asset is appropriate. We test these intangibles for impairment annually or more frequently if the occur-

rence of an event or circumstance indicates impairment.

The following table lists the gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization for each major class of finite-lived intangible

asset at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively:

December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Gross Gross Gross
Carrying  Accumulated Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
(In thousands) Amount  Amortization Amount  Amortization Amount  Amortization
Lodging trademark amortization $81,150 (@ $3,864 $98,108 3 $16,958 $98,108 $12,053
TeleMacrix non-compete agreement amortization 1,000 647 1,000 447 1,000 247
Total finite lived $82,150 $4,511 $99,108 $17,405 $99,108 $12,300

(a) Reduction of beginning carrying value of §16,958,000 for 2002 is the result of recording the trademarks at their net book value as of January 2, 2002, the date of our Restructuring.

For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, the
company recognized $4,064,000, $5,105,000, and $5,105,000,
respectively, of amortization expense related to finite lived intangible
assets. The estimated amortization of finite lived intangible assets

for each of the five years ending December 31, 2007 is as follows:

(In thousands) Amortization
Year ended December 31, Expense
2003 $4,064
2004 4,017
2005 3,864
2006 3,864
2007 3,864

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with gen-
erally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual
results may differ from these estimares.

Concentration Risk

Our hotels are concentrated in the western and southern regions
of the United States with sporadic concentrations of hotels in
other regions. As a result, our lodging properties are particularly
sensitive to adverse economic and competitive conditions and
trends in those regions and such conditions could adversely affect

our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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The top ten markets with the highest concentration of La
Quinta owned rooms as a percentage of rooms available in each mar-
ket are: Atlanta, Austin, Dallas/Fr. Worth, Denver, Houston, Miami/
Ft. Lauderdale, New Orleans, Orlando, Phoenix and San Antonio.

Newly issued Accounting Standards

The Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB™) issued
Interpretation No. 46 “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities, an interpretation of ARB 51" ("FIN 46"). The primary
objectives of FIN 46 are to provide guidance on the identifica-
tion of entities for which control is achieved through means
other than through voting rights (“variable interest enrities” or
“VIEs") and how to determine when and which business enter-
prise should consolidate the VIE (the "primary beneficiary ™).
This new model for consolidation applies to an entity which
either (1) the equity investors (if any) do not have a controlling
financial interest or (2) the equity investment at risk is insuffi-
cient to finance that entity’s activities without receiving addi-
tional subordinated financial support from other parties. In
addition, FIN 46 requires that both the primary beneficiary and
all other enterprises with a significant variable interest in a VIE
make additional disclosures. FIN 46 will not have a material
effect on the companies.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45,
“Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others” (“FIN 45™). FIN 45 elaborates on the disclosures to be
made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial state-

ments about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has
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issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize,
at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for che fair value of the
obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The initial meas-
urement provisions of FIN 45 are applicable on a prospective
basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002.
The disclosure requirements of FIN 45 are effective for years
ending after December 15, 2002. FIN 45 will not have a material
effect on the companies.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and
Disclosure” ("SFAS 148”). The statement amends SFAS 123 to
provide alternative methods of transition for voluntary change to
the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation. In addition, SFAS 148 amends the dis-
closure requirements of FAS 123 to require prominent disclo-
sures in both annual and interim financial statements about the
method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation
and the effect of the method used on reported results. SFAS 148
improves the prominence and clarity of the pro forma disclosures
required by SFAS 123 by prescribing a specific tabular format
and by requiring disclosure in the "Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies” or its equivalent. In addition, SFAS 1438
improves the timeliness of those disclosures by requiring their
incluston in financial reports for interim periods. SFAS 148 is
effective for financial statements for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2002. Adoption of the provisions of this statement
for 2002 resulted in the addition of our portion of our Stock-
Based Employee Compensation footnote to presentation within
our “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” footnote.

On August 15, 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” ("SFAS 143™),
which requires that the fair value of a liability for an asset retire-
ment obligation be recognized in the period in which it is
incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The
associated asset rerirement costs are capitalized as part of the car-
rying amount of the long-lived asser. SFAS 143 will be effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2002. Under SFAS 143, an entity shall recognize the
cumulative effect of the adoption of SFAS 143 as a change in
accounting principle. We are not currently affecred by the
requirements of SFAS 143,

On June 28, 2002, the FASB voted in favor of issuing SFAS
No. 146, "Accounting for Exit or Disposal Activities” ("SFAS
1467y, SFAS 146 addresses significant issues regarding the
recognition, measurement and teporting of costs that are associ-
ated with exit and disposal activities, including restructuring
activities that are currently accounted for pursuant to the guid-
ance that the EITF has set forth in EITF Issue No. 94-3,
“Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination
Benefics and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain
Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” The scope of SFAS 146 also
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includes (1) costs related to terminating a contract that is not a
capital lease and (2) termination benefits that employees who are
involuntarily terminated receive under the terms of a one-time
benefit arrangement that is not an ongoing benefit arrangement
or an individual deferred-compensation contract. SFAS 146 will
be effective for financial statements issued with exit or disposal
activities initiated after December 31, 2002. We have not yet
determined the impact of SFAS 146 on our results of operations
and financial position as we have no ongoing plans for exit or dis-
posal activities of this nature.

In November 2001, the EITF reached a consensus (the
“Consensus”) on the codification of issues as presented in Issue
No. 01-9, "Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a
Customer (including a Reseller of the Vendor's Products)”
("Issue 01-9"). The purpose of Issue 01-9 is to codify and rec-
oncile the following issues, which address the accounting for con-
sideration given by a vendor to a customer (including both a
reseller of the vendor’s products and an entity that purchases the

vendor’s products from a reseller):

¢ No. 00-14, "Accounting for Certain Sales Incentives,”

¢ No. 00-25, “Vendor Income Statement Characterization of
Consideration Paid to a Reseller of the Vendot’s Products,”

* Issue 3 of No. 00-22, "Accounting for “Points’ and Certain

Other Time-Based or Volume-Based Sales Incentive Offers,
and Offers for Free Products or Services to be Delivered in
the Future.” Issue 3 addresses how a vendor should account
for an offer to a customer to rebate or refund a specified
amount of cash that is redeemable only if the customer com-
pletes a specified cumulative level of revenue transactions or
remains a customer for a specified time period.

Issue 01-9 applies to vendors that derive their revenue from
sales of services as well as those that derive their revenue from
sales of products, We currently account for incentives and points
in accordance with the Consensus,

Other Potential Changes in Accounting Standards

We intend to evaluate our current accounting policies with
respect to capitalization of costs, asset componentization, depre-
ciable lives and asset retirement upon further development of the
proposed American Institute of Certified Public Accounts
("AICPA”) Sratement of Position entitled "Accounting for
Certain Costs and Activities Related to Property, Plant and
Equipment.” The potential effect of any changes to our current
accounting policies resulting from this evaluation could impact

our depreciation or operating expenses.

Reclassification

Cerrain reclassifications have been made to the 2000 and 2001

presentation to conform to the 2002 presentation.
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NOTE 2, SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Details of the net changes in other assets and liabilities for the
companies (excluding noncash items, deferred income recognized
in excess of cash received and changes in restricted cash and

related liabilities) follow:
For the year ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Change in fees, interest
and other receivables $ 6,100 $(32434) $ 11,420
Change in other assets (10,109) 18,824 (5.248)
Change in accrued expenses
and other liabilities (22,767) 12,941 8,715
§(26,776) $ (669) § 14,887

Details of other non-cash items follow:

For the year ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Impairment of assets held for sale § (4,462) $ 63,533 3 76,775
Impairment of assets held for use 41,496 29,217 26,421
Impairment of real estare

morrgage and loans receivable 100 22,597 83,633
Straight-line rent — — (1.050)
Provision for loss on interest

and other receivables 1,800 14,713 5,146
Accelerated amortization of

unearned compensation —_— — 5,240
Provisions for loss on

equity securities _ — 50,279
Paired share intangible write-off —_ 169,421 —
Other — (127) (943)
Total other non-cash items $ 39,034 $299,354 $245,501

Details of interest and income taxes paid and non-cash

investing and financing transactions follow:

For the year ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Interest paid during the period $ 82,274 $114,369 $193,147
Interest capitalized during
the period 474 1,633 824
Income taxes paid during
the period 639 1,539 287
Non-cash investing and
financing transactions:
Conversion of capital
lease to operating lease 2,500 —_ _
Non-cash proceeds
of asset sale 1,817 32,862 53,900
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment on
assets sold 122,080 281,467 95,801

Increase in real estate

mortgages net of

participation reduction — 7 147
Allowance for loan losses

on prepaid mortgages —_— — 46,149
Change in market value
of equity securities —_ (119)  (54.749)
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NOTE 3. RESTRUCTURING

On January 2, 2002, the Restructuring between L.Q Corporation
and LQ Properties was completed, whereby LQ Properties
became a subsidiary controlled by LQ Corporation while retain-
ing its REIT status. As part of the Restructuring, each outstand-
ing share of common stock of LQ Properties was converted into
one share of class B common stock of LQ Properties and is
attached and trades as a single unit with the common stock of
LQ Corporation that had previously been paired with the com-
mon stock of LQ Properties. The Restructuring was accounted
for as a reorganization of two companies under common control
with no revaluation of the assets and liabilities of the combining
companies. In connection with the Restructuring, LQ Properties
transferred approximately $81 million of brand intangibles and
relaced rights to La Quinta Franchise, LLC and La Quinta
Worldwide, LLC (both consolidated subsidiaries of LQ Properties
before the transfer). As part of our Restructuring, LQ Properties then
transferred an approximate 98% interest in La Quinta Franchise,
LLC and an approximate 40% interest in La Quinta Worldwide,
LLC to LQ Corporation in exchange for approximately 9,430,000
unpaired shares of LQ Corporation common stock. LQ Properties’
investment in the 9,430,000 shares of LQ Corporation common
stock has been presented as contra equity on the accompanying
LQ Properties’ balance sheet as of December 31, 2002, in
accordance with EITF 98-2, "Accounting by a Subsidiary or Joint
Venture for an Investment in the Stock of Its Parent Company or
Joint Venture Parcner.”

As a result of the transfer of a majority interest in La
Quinta Franchise, LLC to LQ Corporation, La Quinta Franchise,
LLC is consolidated into the financial statements of LQ
Corporation. The net effect of these transactions is an approxi-
mate $15 million and $42 million reduction in LQ Properties’
assets and shareholders’ equity, respectively. In December 2001,
we recorded a charge of approximately $169,421,000 to write-off
the carrying value of an intangible asset related to the “grandfa-
thered paired share” structure and also incurred approximately
$6,186,000 of professional fees and other expenses related to the
Restructuring. As a result of our Restructuring, we also recorded
a one-time charge of approximately $196,520,000 in January
2002 to establish the net deferred tax liability of La Quinta and
recognize the future impact of temporary differences between the
book value and tax basis of lodging and healthcare assets and lia-
bilities, including net operating losses ("NOLs") of LQ
Properties and LQ Corporation.

The following table sets forth unaudited pro forma con-
densed financial data for La Quinta, giving effect to the
Restructuring as if it had occurred on January 1 for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively, and
does not purport to present what actual results would have been
had such transactions, in fact, occurred on January I, 2001 or
2000 or to project results for any future period. In the opinion
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Of our management, 311 adjustments neccssary to I‘EHEC[ the

effects of these transactions have been made.

Pro Forma (Unaudited)
Year ended December 31,
2002 2001

(In thousands, except per skare data) 2000

$ 648,316
925,744

$ 536,928
586,250

$ 811,951
1,140,134

Revenues
Expenses

Loss before minority interest,
income taxes and cumulative
effect of change in
accounting principle (49,322)

(18,522)

(180,952)

(277.428)
(18,585)
(91,585)

(328,183)
(18,629)
(72,439)

Minority interest{!)
Income tax expense

Net loss available to common
shareholders before
cumularive effect of change
in accounting principle $(248,796)

$(387,598) § (419.251)

Net loss available to
common shareholders

$(507,753) $(386,742) $ (419,251)

Earnings per share—
basic and assuming dilution
Ner loss available to common
shareholders before
cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle $ (1.74) $ (2.71) % (2.96)
Net loss available to
common shareholders $

Weighted average

(3.55) $ (2.70) § (2.96)

shares outstanding
Basic and assuming
dilution 141,854

143,088 143,011

(1) Subsequent to the Restructuring (see note 1), Series A and Series B preferred stock remain owtstanding
securities of LQ Properties and vepresent a minority interest in LQ Properties. Therfore, the redemp-
rion value of these preferred stock seewrities and the related prefereed stock dividends have been presented
as minority interest in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and the unawdised pro

forma condensed financial data of LQ Corporation.

NOTE 4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMERNT
The following is a summary of our investment in property, plant

and equipment:
December 31,
2002

$ 358,875 $ 356,729

(In thousands)

Land
Buildings and improvements, net of

2001

accumulated depreciacion of $385,541
and $311,953 and other impairments of

$58,243 and $8,683 1,925,868 1,968,533
Asserts held for sale, net of accumulated

depreciation of $5,334 and $31,800 and

impairments of $24,042 and $110,370 25,346 214314

$2,310,089 $2.539,576

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the net book value after
impairment of lodging property, plant and equipment was
$2,246,657,000 and $2,284,006,000, respectively. During the
year ended December 31, 2002, we incurred $102,789,000 in cap-
ital improvements related to the lodging segment. Additionally,
during the year ended December 31, 2002, we recorded deprecia-
tion expense of $105,709,000 on lodging property, plant and
equipment. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the total
impairment balance on the investment in lodging facilities was
$58,243,000 and $8,683,000, respectively.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the net book value of cor-
porate property, plant and equipment was $38,086,000 and
$41,256,000, respectively. During the year ended December 31,
2002, we incurred $11,102,000 in capital improvements related
tO corporate property, plant and equipment. Additionally, during
the year ended December 31, 2002, we recorded depreciation
expense of $14,272,000 on corporate property, plant and equip-
ment, of which $4,616,000 related to the disposal or replacement
of internal and external software costs related to our lodging rev-
enue management system.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the net book value after
impairment of assets held for sale was $25,346,000 and
$214,314,000, respectively. During the year ended December 31,
2002, we sold 64 healthcare facilities comprised of real estate
and other assets with net book values of $187,822,000 (net of
previously recorded impairments of $64,612,000). Net proceeds
on these transactions totaled $196,917,000 in cash and resulted in
a net gain of $9,095,000. During the year ended December 31,
2002, we sold nine horels with net book values of $20,332,000
(net of impairments of $20,604,000). Net proceeds on these
transactions totaled $19,408,000 in cash and resulted in a net
loss of $855.,000.
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The following details changes in the net book value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended December 31, 2002:

(In thousands) Lodging Corporate Held for sale Total

Property, plant and equipment, net at December 31, 2001 $2,284,006 $ 41,256 $214314 $2,539,576
Capital improvements 102,789 11,102 — 113,891
Depreciation expense (105,709) (14.272) — (119.981)
Impairments (41.490) — 4,462 (37.034)
Net book value of real estate assets sold — — (208,154) (208.154)
Acceptance of deed on mortgage receivable — —_ 23,827 23.827
Transfer to held for use 9,092 — (9.092) —
Other adjustments (2,025) — (an (2,036)

Property, plant and equipment, net at December 31, 2002 $2,246,657 $ 38,086 $ 25,346 $2,310,089

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment
The impairment adjistment activity for property, Plant and equipment for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 is summa-

rized as follows:

Buildings Assets
and Held for
(In thousands) Improvements Sale Toral
Lodging impairments a: December 31, 2000 $ 1,835 $ 1,206 $ 3,131
Healthcare impairments at December 31, 2000 24,916 98,606 123,522
Total impairment balarice at December 31, 2000 26,751 99,902 126,653
Impairments recorded 29,217 63,533 92,750
Transfer to held for sale (46,159) 46,159 —
Assecs sold (1.126) (99.224) (100,350)
Lodging impairments az December 31, 2001 8,683 46,172 54,855
Healthcare impairments at December 31, 2001 — 64,198 64,198
Total impairment balar.ce at December 31, 2001 8,683 110,370 119,053
Impairments and adjustments 41,496 (4.462) 37,034
Assets sold — (85.216) (85,216)
Transfer to held for us: 8,064 (8,064) —
Other — 11,414 11,414
Lodging impairments a2 December 31, 2002 58,243 24,042 82,285
Healthcare impairments at December 31, 2602 _— — —
Total impairment balance at December 31, 2002 $ 58,243 $ 24,042 $ 82,285
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At December 31, 2002 and 2001, certain assets were classified
as held for sale based on management having the authority, intent
and ability to enter into commitments for sale transactions expected
to close in the next twelve months. We recorded a net impairment
recovery of $4,462,000 on assets held for sale during the year ended
December 31, 2002. The assets classified as held for sale at
December 31, 2002 had combined earnings before income taxes,
depreciation and amortization of $612,000 and $1,001,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, we had an impairment
balance of $24,042,000 and $110,370,000, respectively, related
to assets held for sale and $58,243,000 and $8,683,000 as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, pertaining to assets
held for use. During 2002, we recorded impairments of approxi-
mately $41,496,000 related to eight lodging properties based on
results of impairment tests conducted during 2002. During the
year ended December 31, 2002, we accepted deeds in lieu of fore-
closure for certain mortgage receivables. As a result, the net book
value of those mortgage receivables were reclassified as assets held
for sale. The impairment related to the reclassified mortgage
receivables was $11,414,000. These assets were sold during the
year ended December 31, 2002.

At December 31, 2002, we reclassified properties having an
adjusted carrying value of $9,092,000 from held for sale to held
for use. These properties had been in held for sale for a year with
no near term prospects of selling at prices acceprable to manage-
ment. These properties generated impairments during 2002 and
2001 of $1,705,000 and $6,3 59,000, respectively.

We continue to evaluate the assets in our total portfolio as
well as to pursue an orderly disposition of our assets held for
sale. There can be no assurance of if or when sales will be com-
pleted or whether such sales will be completed on terms that will

enable us to realize the full carrying value of such assets.

NOYTE 3. MORTCACGES AND OTHER NOTES RECEIVABLE

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the net book value after
impairment of mortgages receivable was $26,212,000 and
$82,853.000, respectively, with $0 and $56,641,000, respec-
tively, representing the net book value of impaired loans. We
received $17,381,000 in principal payments on mortgages receiv-
able during the year ended December 31, 2002 comprised of:

®*  $246,000 in monthly principal payments; and

* $17,135,0001n principal payments on mortgages with a net
book value of $15,882,000 (net of impairment balances of
$4,003,000 previously recorded by La Quinta) received as a
result of real estate asser transactions entered into by La
Quinta pursuant to our previously announced plan to,
among other things, dispose of our healthcare assets (“Five

Point Plan”).
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These transactions resulted in a net gain of $1,253,000.
Also during the year ended December 31, 2002, we sold one
mortgage receivable with a carrying value of $16,341,000 (net of
previously recorded impairments of $8,753,000). Net proceeds
on this transaction totaled $18,000,000 and consisted of:
e $16,183,000 in cash; and
* §$1,817,000 of subordinated indebtedness due 2005, net of
a discount of $183,000 (on the difference between the
graduated 9.0% to 10.0% stated rate of interest and the
13.0% imputed interest rate).

This transaction resulted in 2 net gain of $1,314,000.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, we recorded no
additional impairments related to the mortgage portfolio based
on anticipated proceeds, and review of current facts, circum-
stances and analysis. We currently intend to hold the remaining
two mortgage loans with a combined net book value of
$26,212,000 on medical office buildings which serve as the head-
quarters for a healthcare operator. The interest income on these
two facilities was approximately $774,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2002.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the net book value of
other notes receivable was $33,931,000 and $34,085,000, respec-
tively. During the year ended December 31, 2002, we recorded
impairments on other notes receivable of $100,000. There were
no impairments on other notes receivables for the year ended
December 31, 2001. Included in other notes receivable is
$33,118,000 in subordinated notes received as consideration in
connection with the sale of certain healthcare assets during 2002
and 2001. We currently intend to hold these notes to maturity.
Interest income on these notes was $4,149,000 and $2,936,000
for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
MOTE 6. FEES, INTEREST AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
The companies provide for a valuation allowance against their
receivables. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001 the valuation
allowance provided against trade and other receivables aggregated
approximately $2,559,000 and $32,755,000, respectively.

NOTE 7. OTHER ASSETS
Other Assets include the following as of December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively:
¢ Cash surrender value of life insurance of $18,669,000 and
$16,453.,000;
* Prepaid expenses of $15,529,000 and $11,254,000;
* Inventory of $3,644,000 and $4,891,000;
* Debt amortization costs and other deferred charges of
$3,196,000 and $9,539,000; and
*  Miscellaneous other assets of $6,721,000 and $1,799,000.
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In addition, in 2201 other assets also included investments
in equity securities clzssified as available for sale.

In August 2002, we sold our investment in Balanced Care
Corporation equity securities classified as available for sale which
had an initial cost of $1,105,000 and a carrying value of
$270,000, for net proceeds of $270,000. The investment had a
market value of $152,000 at December 31, 2001. During 2001,
a net adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income of
$119,000 was recorded to reflect the unrealized loss on this
investment. In 2000, LQ Properties recorded a charge to earnings
of $834,000, the difference between the carrying value and mar-
ket value of this investment at December 31, 2000 in accordance
with SFAS 115 “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities.”

In January 2001, LQ Properties sold its investment in
Nursing Home Properties Ple ("NHP Plc”), a property invest-
ment group that specializes in the financing, through sale/lease-
back transactions, of nursing homes located in the United
Kingdom. The investment included approximately 26,606,000
shares of NHP Ple, representing an ownership interest in NHP
Ple of 19.99%, of which LQ Properties had voting rights with
respect to 9.99%. LQ Properties sold its investment in NHP Plc
for net proceeds of $7,737,000 and recorded a charge to earnings
of $22,000 for the d:fference in the net book value and the sell-
ing price of the stock. LQ Properties had recorded a loss on its
equity investment through December 31, 2000 of $49,445,000.

NOTE 8. SHAREHOIL.DERS' EQUITY

For the years ended [Yecember 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000 no dis-
tributions were made to shareholders of LQ Corporation
Common Stock or LQ Properties Class B Common Stock.

The Series A Preferred Stock is entitled to quarterly divi-
dends at the rate of 9% per annum of the $250 per share liquida-
tion preference. On and after June 17, 2003, the Series A
Preferred Stock may be redeemed for cash at the option of LQ
Properties, in whole ¢r in part, at a redemption price of $250 per
share, plus accrued and unpaid dividends, if any, to the redemp-
tion date. The 2002, 2001, and 2000 distributions also included
unrecaptured Code Section 1250 depreciation from real property
of 0.0% per share.

During 1999, L.Q Properties issued 1,000 shares of 9%
Series B Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock
(the “Series B Preferred Stock”) with a par value of $0.10 per
share in connection with the acquisition of TeleMatrix, Inc. The
Series B Preferred Stock is entitled to quarterly dividends ac the
rate of 9% per annum of the $25,000 per share liquidation pref-
erence. On and after October 7, 2004, the Series B Preferred
Stock may be redeemed for cash at the option of LQ Properties,
in whole or in part, at a redemption price of $25,000 per share,
plus accrued and unpaid dividends, if any, to the redemption date.
The Series B Preferred Stock is convertible, at the option of the
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holder, into paired common shares on October 7, 2004 or the
first day cthat dividends on any shares of Series B Preferred Stock
are in arrears for six or more dividend periods. Each share of
Series B Preferred Stock converts into 2,680 paired common
shares. The conversion ratio may be adjusted from time to time
as defined. Total distributions to holders of Series B Preferred
Stock during the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001
included unrecaptured Code Section 1250 depreciation from real
property of 0.0% per share.

As part of the Restructuring completed on January 2, 2002,
LQ Properties exchanged a portion of its inrerest in two limired
liability companies, which held brand intangibles and related rights,
for approximately 9,430,000 unpaired shares of LQ Corporation
common stock. LQ Properties’ investment in the 9,430,000 shares
of LQ Corporation common stock has been presented as contra
equity on the accompanying LQ Properties’ balance sheet as of
December 31, 2002 in accordance with EITF 98-2, “Accounting by
a Subsidiary or Joint Venture for an Investment in the Stock of Its
Parent Company or Joint Venture Partner.”

The following classes of preferred stock, excess stock and
common stock are authorized as of December 31, 2002; no shares
were issued or outstanding at December 31, 2002 and 2001:

* LQ Corporation Preferred Stock $0.10 par value; 6,000,000
shares authorized;

* LQ Properties Excess Stock $0.10 par value; 25,000,000
shares authorized; and

* LQ Corporation Excess Stock $0.10 par value; 25,000,000
shares authorized.

On April I, July I, September 30 and December 31, 2002,
LQ Properties paid a dividend of $0.5625 per depositary share of
preferred stock to holders of record on March 15, June 14,
September 13 and December 13, 2002, respectively, of its 9.00%
Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock.

On April I, July I, September 30 and December 31, 2002,
LQ Properties also paid a quarterly dividend ar a rate of 9.00% per
annum on the liquidation preference of $25,000 per share to the
holders of record on March 15, June 14, September 13 and
December 13, 2002, respectively, of its 9.00% Series B Cumulative
Redeemable Preferred Stock.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, LQ Properties
paid dividends of $60.575,000 to the sole holder of its class A
common stock, LQ Corporation. In addition, its consolidated
subsidiary, La Quinta Worldwide, LLC (“LQ Worldwide™), made
periodic proportional distributions toraling approximarely
$3.960,000 to LQ Corporation, which holds a 40.6% interest in
LQ Worldwide.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, La Quinta
repurchased 1,569,000 shares of paired common shares at an
average price of $4.93 per paired share.

On July 15, 2002, our shelf registration statement on file
with the SEC became effective. Under the shelf registration
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statement, either or both of LQ Corporation and LQ Properties
may offer and sell, from rime to time, either separately, together,
or in combination in one or more offerings:

¢ debt securities, which may be senior or subordinated;

* shares of common stock;

* shares of preferred stock;

. depositary shares; and

*  warrants exercisable for debt securities, common stock or

preferred stock.

NCOTE 9. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value estimates are subjective in nature and are dependent
upon a number of significant assumptions associated with each
financial instrument or group of financial instruments. Because
of a variety of permitted calculations and assumptions regarding
estimates of furure cash flows, risks, discount rates and relevant
comparable market information, reasonable comparisons of the
companies’ fair value information with other companies cannot
necessarily be made.

The following methods and assumptions were used for real
estate mortgages, other notes receivable and long-term indebted-
ness to estimate the fair value of financial instruments for which
it is practicable to estimate value.

The fair value of real estate mortgages has been estimated by
discounting future cash flows using current interest rates at
which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar
credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities. The fair
value of the companies’ real estate mortgages amounted to
approximately $26,358,000 and $32,853,000 as of December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively. The carrying value of the mortgages
was $26,212,000 and $82,853,000 as of December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively,

The fair value of other notes receivable has been estimated
by discounting future cash flows using current interest rates at
which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar
credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities. The fair
value of the companies’ other notes receivable amounted to
approximately $35,419,000 and $32,479,000 as of December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively. The carrying value of the notes was
$33,118,000 and $30,428,000 as of December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively.

Market quotes obtained from brokers were used to estimate
the fair value of the companies’ existing debt. The fair value of the
companies’ indebtedness, including the call option premium on the
7.114% notes due in 2011 (the "Notes” of $22,580,000 and
$12,200,000), amounted to approximately $682,465,000 and
$994,330,000 as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The carrying value of the debr was $665,041,000 and
$1,000,238,000 as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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NOTE [0, INDERBTEDNESS
Indebtedness at December 31, 2002 and 2001 is as follows:

December 31,

{In thousands) 2002 2001

Notes payable:

Principal payments aggregating $57,000
due from September 2003 to
September 2015, bearing interest at
rates between 7.510% and 8.625% $ 56,611 §

Principal payments aggregating
$64,000 due in March 2004,
bearing interest ar 7.25%

92,752

64,051 100,369

Principal payments aggregating
$100,000 due in September 2005,
bearing interest at 7.40%

Principal payments aggregating
$50,000 due in February 2007,
bearing interest at 7.27%

Principal payments aggregating
$160,000 due in August 2007,
bearing interest at 7%

99,973 99,964

50,0600 50,000

160,000 160,000
Principal payments aggregating

$50,000 due in April 2008,

beating interest at 7.33%
Principal payments aggregating $94,000

due in August 2011, (redeemable in

50,000 50,000

August 2004 at the option of the note
holder) bearing interest at 7.114%
Principal payments aggregating $90,000
due in September 2026, (redeemable in
September 2003 at the option of the

93,634 150,000

note holder) bearing interest at 7.82% 90,449
Other 323

140,644
2,990

846,719

665,041

Bank notes payable:

Term loan due May 31, 2003 — 145,020

— 145,020

Bonds and mortgages payable:

Mortgage notes, interest ranging from
4.42% to 10.39%, monthly principal and
interest payments ranging from $33 to
$95 and maturing from March 2001
through March 2033, collateralized by

four facilities in 2001 — 8,499

— 8,499

$665,041 $1,000,238

The notes payable, bank notes payable and bonds and mort-
gages payable are presented gross of unamortized debt issuance
costs of $2,952,000 and $9,513,000 at December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively. Amortization expense associated with the debt
issuance costs amounted to $6,749,000, $5,680,000, and
$8.342,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively, and is reflected in interest expense.
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We had the following debe activity for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001:

Bank Bonds and
Nortes Convertible Notes Mortgages
(In thousands) Payable Debentures Payable Payable Total
December 31, 2000 $1,018,224 $ 137,028 $ 400,000 $ 42,077 $1.597,329
Repayment of principal (171.344) (137,028) (499,980} (30,464) (838,816)
Borrowings — —_ 245,000 — 245,000
Debt assumed by third party, (note 5) — — — (2.990) (2,990)
Other (161) — — (124) (285)
December 31, 2001 846,719 — 145,020 8,499 1,000,238
Repayment of principal (178.954) — (157,020) (8,499) (344,473)
Borrowings — — 12,000 —_ 12,000
Other (2.724) — — — (2.724)
December 31, 2002 § 665,041 S —_ $ — $ — $ 665,041

Notes Payable

During the year ended December 31, 2002, we repaid approxi-
mately $178,954,000 in principal on notes Payable scheduled to
marture (or that were redeemable at the option of the holder) in
August 2002, September 2003, March 2004 and August 2004
and recorded a net loss on early extinguishment included in other
expense during the year ended December 31, 2002 of approxi-
mately $319,000, In addition, during 2002, we waived our pur-
chase option on a $2,500,000 capital lease asser and related
obligation and as a result removed the asset and liability from the
balance sheer as of December 31, 2002. The lease will be
accounted for as an operating lease going forward and future pay-
ments on the lease will be recorded as rent expense.

On July 16, 2001, we repaid $75,050,000 in notes payable at
maturity with proceeds from the Credit Facility, as defined below.
On Qctober 17, 2001, we repaid $48,200,000 of notes payable at
maturity. On July 3 and July 10, 2001, we repaid a combined
$11,000,000 of notes payable scheduled to mature in August 2002
with proceeds from the Credit Facility. Duting the year ended
December 31, 2001, we repaid a combined $34,357,000 of notes
payable scheduled to mature in September 2026. On November 19,
2001, we repaid $2,247,000 of notes payable scheduled to mature
in September 2003. These repurchases resulted in a gain on early
extinguishments of debt of $935,000.
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The aggregate maturities of notes payable for the five years

subsequent to December 31, 2002 are as follows:

(In thousands)

Year Debt
2003 $106,739(D
2004 157,711
2005 115,992
2006 20,000
2007 210,000
2008 and thereafter 54,599
Total debt $665,041

(1) Assumes 90 million of 7.82% Notes duc in 2026 are redeemed at the option of holders.
(2) Assumes $94 million of 7.114% Notes duc in 201t are redeemed at the option of the bolders.

We have certain debt that is redeemable at the option of the
holders in September 2003 and August 2004. We are currently
reviewing our alternatives for additional financing to fund these
maturities should the holders redeem them. Such options under
consideration include issuing new senior unsecured debt, securi-
tized debt, borrowings under the existing or a new revolver, new
term debt, or a combination thereof. There can be no assurances
that any of these alternatives will be available to us when and if
this debt is redeemed or that the alternatives will contain terms

that are attractive to us.
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If our 7.114% Notes are still outstanding from and after
August 15, 2004, the interest rate will increase by a spread
amount, as defined in the Indenture, over the current 7.114%
interest rate. A third party (the “Call Holder™) has the option to
purchase the Notes at 100% of their principal amount on August 15,
2004 (the "Call Option™). See note 9. If the Call Holder exer-
cises the Call Option, we may repurchase the Notes from the Call
Holder ar a price equal to the greater of (a) 100% of the princi-
pal amount of the Notes ($150,000,000) and (b) the sum of
the present values of the remaining principal and interest pay-
ments at a 7.114% coupon rate discounted at the rate of U.S.
Treasury securities having maturities similar to the remaining
term of the Notes valued at approximately $172.580,000 and
$162,200,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The Meditrust Exercisable Put Option Securities Trust (the
“Trust”) currently holds all of the Notes. The Trust has the right
to require us to purchase all of the Notes at 100% of their prin-
cipal amount on August 15, 2004 (the “Put Option"). The Trust
is required to exercise the Put Option if (a) the Call Holder fails
to exercise the Call Option or (b) the Call Holder exercises the
Call Option but fails to make payment on the date required. As
of December 31, 2002, the Company owned $56 million of the
Exercisable Put Option Securities issued by the Trust.
Accordingly, if the Call Option is exercised and the Company
does not exercise its repurchase rights described above, the
Company will have a $150 million obligation at the Interest Rate
to Maturity and will receive $56 million as a distribution from
the Trust, representing a portion of the price paid by the Call
Holder to the Trust upon exercise of the Call Option.

Convertible Debentures

The companies’ convertible debentures with a balance of
$82,992,000 matured on March 1, 2001 and were repaid with
borrowings under the Tranche A revolving line of credit of our
previous 1998 credir facility. On July 30, 2001, we redeemed the
remaining $54,036,000 in convertible debentures that were
scheduled to mature in January and July 2002 with proceeds from

the credit faciliry.

Bank Notes Payable

We are a party to a credit agreement with a bank group, which pro-
vides for a $150,000,000 term loan and a $22 5,000,000 revolving
line of credit (the “Credit Facility”). The Credit Facility matures
on May 31, 2003 and may be extended at our option under certain
conditions. Borrowings under the term loan bear interest at the
London Interbank Offered Rare ("LIBOR™) plus 3.50%. On
March 29, 2002, we made a scheduled payment of $2,490,000
on the term loan. On June 10, 2002, we repaid the entire remain-
ing balance on the term loan of $142,530,000 with proceeds
from the sale of our healthcare assets. Amounts repaid under the
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term loan may not be reborrowed. In addition to accrued interest,
the Credit Facility required a prepayment premium of 0.5%, or
$713,000, which is included in other expense as a loss on extin-
guishment of debt.

Approximately $197,651,000 (net of $27,349,000 in out-
standing letters of credit) was available under the revolving line
of credit at December 31, 2002. Borrowings under the revolving
line of credit currently bear interest at LIBOR plus 3.50%. On
August 23, 2002, we borrowed $7,000,000 under the revolving
line of credit at a rate of I-month LIBOR plus 3.25% and subse-
quently paid the entire amount on August 30, 2002 with pro-
ceeds from one healthcare asset sale. On September 27, 2002, we
borrowed $5.000,000 under the revolving line of credit at the
base rate option of Prime plus 1.75% and subsequently repaid the
entire amount on September 30, 2002 with proceeds from oper-
ations. At December 31, 2002, there were no borrowings under
the revolving line of credit.

The Credit Facility contains several restrictive financial
covenants (as defined in the credit agreement) of which we are in

compliance with at December 31, 2002, and include the following:

* minimum lodging EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes.
deprectation and amortization);

* net debt to EBITDA (total leverage) ratio;

® interest coverage ratio;

* fixed charge coverage rartio;

* net debrt to toral capitalization ratio; and

¢ consolidated tangible net worth minimum.

The Credit Facility is collateralized by the stock of our sub-
sidiaries and intercompany debt evidenced by nores.

We obtained an amendment to the Credit Facility on March 29,
2002 which relaxed the maximum total leverage ratio and mini-
mum fixed charge coverage ratio covenants through March 31,
2003, and reduced the minimum lodging EBITDA covenant to
$ 160 million through December 31, 2002. The minimum lodging
EBITDA covenant increases to $180 million for 2003 and there-
after. This may impact our ability to exercise any extension
options under the credit agreement. The amendment also included
modifications to certain definitions and other provisions in the
Credit Facility. In addition to the financial covenants, the Credit
Facility also includes limitations on capital expenditures, asset
sales, secured debrt, certain investments, common stock dividends,
and debt and share repurchases. In light of the decline in our lodg-
ing EBITDA, 1t is unlikely that we will be able to meet all of our
financial covenants under the Credit Facility, particularly the min-
imum lodging EBITDA covenant in 2003 and beyond. Because it
is unlikely that we will meet these covenants in 2003, we intend to
request a waiver or amendment from the bank group. However, we
cannot provide assurances that the bank group would be agreeable
to such a waiver or amendment or that we will be able to extend

the maturity date of the Credit Facility.
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Tranche A Revolving Lozn (1998 Credit Facility)

During the year ended December 31, 2001, we borrowed
$95,000,000 on the Tranche A loan to repay the convertible
debentures which matured on March 1, 2001, and other debt.
The balance of the borrowing on the line of credit was fully
repaid in April 2001 with proceeds from the sale of healthcare
assets, and the facility was terminated in June 2001.

Tranche D Term Loan (1998 Credit Facitity)

During the year ended December 31, 2001, we repaid
$400,000,000 on the Tranche D term loan. The Tranche D term
loan was fully repaid during 2001 with proceeds from the sale of
certain healthcare assers and borrowings under the Credit Facility
and was terminated in June 2001.

Bonds and Mortgages Payable

During the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, we repaid
$8,499,000 and $30.464,000 in principal on bonds and mort-
gages payable' respectively, from operating cash flow. In addition,
$2,990,000 of bonds payable were assumed by third parties
related to the sales of healthcare assets during the year ended
December 31, 2001.

Interest Rate Swap Agreement

During 2001, we wete a fixed rate payor of 5.7% under an interest
rate swap agreement with a notional amount of $400,000,000 and
received a variable rate of 5.056%, which we settled on June 27,
2001. The swap agreerment was measured at fair value at March 31,
2001 and recorded as a liability in accrued expenses and other cur-
rent liabilities in accordance with SFAS 133. The interest rate
swap was not designated as a hedging instrument and, accordingly,
a net charge to earnings of $1,236,000 was recorded during the
three months ended March 31, 2001, comprised of an increase in
interest expense of approximately $2,092,000 and a partially off-
serting entry to reflect the cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle {based on the fair value at January I, 2001)
of $856,000. On June 27, 2001, we settled our interest rate swap
agreement at its fair market value of approximately $566,000, and
recorded a reduction to interest expense of $670,000 to record
the difference between the recorded liability and the fair market
value on the dare of sertlement. We have not entered into any

interest rate swap agreements as of December 31, 2002,
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NOTE [ 1. OTHER ((KCOMXE) EXPENSES
For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, other

expenses consisted of the following:

For the year ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Restructuring:
Employee severance and related
employment costs $ 861 $22,450 $ 23,968
Accelerated amortization of
unearned compensation — — 5,240
Write-off of debt costs and
other prepayment expenses —_ 202 3,142
Professional, external consulting,
and other fees — 7.136 301
Restructuring and
related expenses 861 29,788 32,651
Other:
Provision for loss on interest
and other receivables 1,90¢C 14,713 5,146
Bad debt recoveries (22) (3.178) (2,060)
(Gain) loss on sale of assets (10,266)  (10,133) 130,536
(Gain) loss on early
extinguishments of debt 1,032 (935) (1,403)
{Gain) on settlement (5,442) — —_
Other (2,654) 1,173 —
Other (15,482) 1,640 132,219
Total other (income) expenses §(14,621) $31.428 $164,870

We recorded approximately $14,621,000 in other income
for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to
$31,428,000 and $164,870,000 in other expenses for the years
ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.’ Other

(income) expense is comprised of the following:

* We recorded employee severance and other related employ-
ment costs of $861,000 related to a reduction in staff at
our San Antonio reservations call center by approximately
70 employees in response to the travel industry’s shift
toward online reservations and a decline in call volume and
other lodging severance agreements incurred during the year
ended December 31, 2002, During 2001, we recorded
employee severance and other related employment costs of
$22,450,000 of which $3,085,000 was incurred in connec-
tion with the elimination of approximately 60 corporate
positions from the lodging segment and separation agree-

ments with two former senior executives of the companies.
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The remaining $19,365,000 of employee severance and
other related employment costs incurred in 2001 we
incurred in connection with severance and retention incen-
tive compensation earned by the healthcare segment employ-
ees based on achievement of healthcare asset sales goals and
compliance with specified employment terms to facilitate
the sale of substantially all healthcare assets and the closing
of the Needham, MA office by December 2002. For the year
ended December 31, 2000, we recorded $11,672,000 of
expense related to severance and retention incentive compen-
sation earned by the healthcare segment employees based on
achtevement of healthcare asset sales goals and compliance
with specified employment terms to facilitate the sale of
substantially all healthcare assets. In January 2000, we exe-
cuted a separation and consulting agreement wich the former
Chief Executive Officer, President and Treasurer of LQ
Properties pursuant to which LQ Properties made a cash
payment of approximately $§9,460,000 and continued cer-
tain medical, denral and other benefits. During the year
ended December 31, 2000, we also recorded $2,836,000 in
expenses related to certain lodging segment employment and
severance agreements.

In January 2000, LQ Properties executed a separation and
consulting agreement with the former Chief Executive
Officer, President and Treasurer of LQ Properties pursuant
to which L.Q Properties converted 155,000 restricted paired
common shares into unrestricted paired common shares
which resulted in approximately $2,461,000 of accelerated
amortization of unearned compensation. In addition, during
the year ended December 31, 2000, LQ Properties recorded
$2,779,000 of accelerated amortization of unearned com-
pensation for the acceleration of vesting periods on 240,000
shares of restricted stock related to severance and retention
incentive compensation earned by the healthcare segment
employees based on achievement of healthcare asset sale
goals and compliance with specified employment terms to
facilitate the sale of substantially all healthcare assets and
the closing of the Needham, MA office tn December 2002.
During the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, we
recorded a charge of $202,000 and $3,142,000, respec-
tively, related to accelerated amortization of debt issuance
costs and certain other expenses associated with the early
repayment of debt and the reduction of the companies’
revolving line of credit.

We incurred approximately $253,000 and $301,000, respec-
tively, of professional fees during the year ended December 31,
2001 and 2000 related to the implementation of the exit
of the healthcare business. During the year ended
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December 31, 2001, we recorded $6,186,000 related to
professional fees incurred in connection with our
Restructuring (see notes 1 and 3) and $697,000 of profes-
sional consulting fees and other expenses in connection with
development of cerrain costs savings initiatives and
improved policies and procedures.

We recorded provisions of approximately $1,900.000,
$14,713,000. and $5,146,000 during the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 respectively, on
working capital and other receivables management consid-

ered uncolleccable.

* We recovered approximately $22,000, $3,178,000 and

$2,060,000 during the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000 respectively, of receivables previously writ-
ten Off

* We recognized gains related to the sale of property, plant

and equipment of $7,729,000 and $5,730,000, and a loss
of $2,631,000, for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively. In addition, mortgage repay-
ments resulted in gains of $2,567,000, and $4,425,000 and
a loss of $127,905,000 for the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. We recorded a loss on
the sale of an equity securirty of $22,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2001.

¢ We rePaid approximately $178,954,000 in principal on

notes payable and we prepaid the entire balance on the term
loan of $145,020,000 during the year ended December 31,
2002. As a result, we recorded a net loss on extinguishments
of debrt of $1,032,000. During the years ended December 31,
2001 and 2000, we recorded net gains on extinguishments
of debt of $935,000 and $1,403,000, respectively.

We settled obligations and receivables related to properties pre-
viously sold that resulted in a gain on settlement of
$5,442,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002. As part of
the settlement, we received a $2,300,000 recovery on receiv-
ables previously written off and our obligation of approxi-
mately $3,142,000, with respect to certain contingent »
liabilities related to prior healthcare asset sales, was relieved.

*  We recorded an adjustment of approximately $2,185,000 to

reduce previously recorded estimated costs related to the
pending exit of our healthcare operations during the year
ended December 31, 2002. In addition, we recetved $469,000
in insurance proceeds on a key man life insurance policy.
During the year ended December 31, 2001, we recorded
approximately $1,173,000 of expense related to the impend-
ing settlement of our non-qualified Trustee Retirement Plan
(the "Retirement Plan”) related to the termination of the
Retirement Plan effective December 31, 2000.
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Changes in accrued restructuring costs were as follows:

Severance

and

Employment
(in thousands) Costs Other Total
December 31, 1999 $ — $ 2,125 § 2125
Expense Recorded 23,968 — 23,968
Payments (22,907)  (2,125) (25.032)
December 31, 2000 1,061 —_ 1,061
Expense Recorded 22,450 7.136 29,586
Payments (5.584) (3.723) (9.307)
Accrual Adjustments (3,522) 3,522 —
December 31, 2001 14,405 6,935 21,340
Expense Recorded 861 — 861
Payments (14,300)  (3,976) (18.276)
Accrual Adjustments — (655) (655)
December 31, 2002 $ 966 § 2,304 $ 3,270

NQOTE (2. LEASE COMMITHENTS

LQ Corporation, exc.usive of its controlled subsidiaries, [eases
hotel facilities from L.Q Properties and its subsidiaries. The hotel
faciiity lease agreements between LQ Corporation and LQ
Properties are for a five-year term expiring July 2003. Through
March 31, 2002, the leases provided for a fixed payment of base
rent plus a percentage rent based on room and other revenues and
required LQ Properties to assume costs attributable to property
taxes and insurance and to fund certain capital expenditures. Total
rental expense recognized by LQ Corporation under such leases was
approximately $212,850,000, $275,359,000 and $278,379,000
for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respec-
tively, of which approximately $6,034,000, $34,719,000 and
$45,651,000, respectively, was contingent rent. LQ Corporation
has operated at a substantial loss due in part to the lease payments
required to be made under the intercompany leases. We believe that
the intercompany leases conformed with normal business practices
at the time they were entered into and were consistent with leases
entered into on an arm’s length basis. Due to the unexpected short-
fall in the operating revenues generated by the hotels compared to
the operating revenues anticipated under the original lease agree-
ments, LQ Properties and LQ Corporation modified the lease
agreements, effective April 1, 2002.

The modified lesse agreements provide for a percentage rent
payment only in an amount equal to 40% of the gross revenues
from the hotel facilitizs. The obligations of LQ Praperties to pay
property taxes and insurance and to fund certain capital expendi-
tures remain substantially unchanged in the modified leases. The
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lease modifications described above have resulted in a decline in
revenue for LQ Properties. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, LQ
Corporation owed LQ Properties $148,058,000 and $163,633,000,
respectively, related to these lease agreements.

LQ Properties also leases properties it owns to third-parties,
which are generally operated as restaurants. These leases are
accounted for as operating leases and expire over a period from 2002
to 2021 and provide for minimum rent and contingent rent based on
a percentage of annual sales in excess of stipulated amounts.

LQ Properties’ future minimum rents at December 31, 2002,

to be received under non-cancelable operating leases, are as follows:

Non-Cancelable
Operating Leases

(In thousands)
Year ended December 31,

2003 $ 4,397
2004 4,015
2005 3,652
2006 3,048
2007 2,324
Thereafter 10,079
Total $27,515

Total properties rental income for the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000 was $5,788,000, $6,240,000 and $6,182,000,
respectively, of which $860,000, $993,000 and $393,000, respec-
tively, was contingent rent.

LQ Properties is also committed to third-parties for certain
ground lease arrangements which contain contingent rent provi-
sions based upon revenues and also certain renewal options at fair
market value at the conclusion of the initial lease terms. The
leases extend for varying periods through 2014. Future minimum
rental payments required under operating ground leases that have
initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one

year are as follows:

(In thousands)
Year ended December 31,

Operating
Ground Leases

2003 $ 582
2004 582
2005 505
2006 505
2007 505
Thereafter 8,172
Total $10,851

Total rent for ground leases was $703,000, $474,000 and
$516,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively.
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LQ Corporation leases certain non-hotel real estate and
equipment for the hotels” operations under various lease agree-
ments. The leases extend for varying periods through 2009 and
generally are for a fixed monthly amount. LQ Corporation’s
future minimum rents at December 31, 2002, payable under non-
hotel non-cancelable operating leases, are as follows:

(In thousands)
Year ended December 31,

Non-Hotel Non-
Cancelable Operating Leases

2003 $ 2,585
2004 1,738
2005 1,534
2006 1,534
2007 1,534
Thereafter 2,557
Toral $11,482

Total rent expense for operating leases was approximately
$2,848,000, $2,887,000 and $2,834,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

NOTZ 13, COMMITMEINTS AND CONTINGENCIES

We had approximately $208 million of liquidity, which was com-
posed of $10 million of cash and $198 million of unused capac-
ity under our $225 million revolving Credit Facility as of
December 31, 2002 after giving effect to approximately $27 mil-
lion of letters of credit issued thereunder. Of the $27 million of
lecters of credit, approximately $23 million support insurance
arrangements and $4 million guarantee the payment of principal
and interest on industrial revenue bonds, which are the obligation
of an unrelaced third party. The letter of credit supporting the
industrial revenue bonds expired in January 2003. Because the
bonds require fuli-year extensions of the letter of credit and since
our Credic Facility matures on May 31, 2003 (without consider-
ing extension options), we did not renew the letter of credit. As a
result, we funded the repurchase of the bonds in January 2003.
This is similar to what we did in June 2001, which was subse-
quently followed by a reissuance of the bonds. The guarantee of
the bonds was a condition of the sale of a healthcare asset by us
to a third party in September 1995.

On December 7, 2000, a legal action was filed in the United
States District Court for the District of Colorado, entitled Erie
Potteiger v. La Quinta Inns, Inc. and The Meditrust Companies (Civ.
Action No. 00-D-2456). On December 7, 2000, a legal action was
filed in the District Court, Denver County, State of Colorado, enti-
tled Amy Bronn and Mike Bronn v. La Quinta Inns, Inc. and The Meditrust
Companies (Cause No. 00CV9364) (remanded to Colorado State
Court in February 2002). On March 29, 2001, a legal action was
filed in the United States District Court for the District of
Colorado. entitled Dawn Grawe v. La Quinta Inns, Inc. and The
Meditrust Companies (Civ. Action No. 01-B-552). We are named as
a defendant in each of the complaints. Plaintiffs in each of these

Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

suits seek to recover compensatory and punitive damages from us
for injuries which they allegedly sustained in October 2000 as a
tesult of carbon monoxide exposure which they experienced while
guests at a La Quinta Inn & Suites. We have insurance coverage
that may be available to cover some or all of the potential losses
resulting from such incidents although losses characterized as
punitive or similar damages may not be covered by customary
insurance coverage such as ours. On July 17, 2001, the Potteiger
and Grawe matters were consolidated. On October 7, 2002, the
defendants entered into a confidential settlement agreement with
Amy Bronn and Mike Bronn. On February 3, 2003, La Quinta
Inns, Inc. entered into a confidential settlement agreement with
Dawn Grawe. We believe that La Quinta Inns, Inc. has meritori-
ous defenses to the remaining lawsuit, that may satisfy all or part
of any potential liability that may be found against La Quinta
Inns, Inc. We intend to vigorously contest and defend this case.
On June 27, 2001, a complaint was filed in the United
States District Courr for the District of Massachusertts, entitled
Steadfast Insurance Co. v. Meditrust Corp., et al. (Civ. Action No. 01-
CV-11115-MEL). On November 30, 2001 that complaint was
amended, and the amended complaint was entitled Steadfast
Insurance Co. v. La Quinta Properties, Inc. (Civ. Action No. 01-CV-
11115-MEL). The complaint and the amended complaint were
filed by plaintiff under seal. LQ Properties accepted service of the
amended complaint on December 19, 2001 and filed an answer
and counterclaim on April 3, 2002. The plaintiff, which claims to
be the subrogee or assignee of the claims of various entities,
alleges purported causes of action including breach of contract,
negligence, violation of 15 USC § 771, violation of Mass, Gen.
L. c. 110 § 410, negligent misrepresentation and violation of
Mass. Gen. L. c. 93A, § 11, arising out of an alleged misrepresen-
tation in the offering memorandum for Meditrust Corporation’s
7.114% Exercisable Put Option Securities. The amended com-
plainc seeks approximately $15 million plus other potential dam-
ages. We believe that LQ Properties has meritorious defenses to
the lawsuit, as well as claims against a third-party defendant and
non-parties to the lawsuit that may satisfy all or part of any
patential liability that may be found against LQ Properties. We
intend to continue vigorously contesting and defending this case.
In January 2002, KSL Desert Resorts, Inc. filed a legal
action in the United States District Court for the Central
District of California against LQ Corporation, et al. (No. CV-
02-007 RT (SGLx)). The plaintiff, which uses the name “La
Quinta Resort & Club” for a destination resort and country club
located in La Quinta, California, claims that LQ Corporation has
infringed its alleged trademark rights, among other allegations,
notwithstanding our prior “incontestable” federal trademark reg-
istrations of the mark “La Quinta” and other marks including the
mark “La Quinta” for hotel and motel services. The plainriff
seeks an injunction to prevent La Quinta, our agents, servants,
employees, and our attorneys from using the mark “La Quinta”
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in Palm Springs, in the Coachella Valley, or throughout the
United States. The plaintiff also seeks to cancel our federal
trademark registratiors that include the phrase “La Quinta” and
to require destruction of any items under our control which
include the phrase “La Quinta.” The proceedings were stayed
while the parties attempred to negotiate a mutually agreeable res-
olution. While the parties reached a tentative settlement in March
2002, it failed to result in a final and binding agreement.
Consequently, in October 2002, the defendants filed an answer
denying the material allegations in the complaint and filed coun-
terclaims seeking to cancel plaintiff's federal trademark registra-
tions using the “La Cuinta” name for its destination resort and
club. The action remains in the pre-trial stage, and we intend to
vigorously defend the complaint and pursue our counterclaims.

On March 17, 1997, New York New York Hotel and Casino
LLC ("NYNY") purchased from La Quinta Development
Partners, L.P Inn #536 located in Las Vegas, Nevada. La Quinta
then leased this hotel back from INYINY. The lease was terminated
with proper notice and the property was returned to NYNY on
July 31, 2002. On December 4, 2002, NYNY filed suit against
La Quinta Development Partners, L.E and La Quinta Inns, Inc. in
the District Court for Clark County, Nevada (Case No.
A460092) aﬂeging, among other claims, breach of contract relat-
ing to the hotel leased from NYNY. NYNY alleges that the hotel
was not returned in the condition required under the lease and the
property would have to be demolished. This matter was removed
to the United States District Court for the Srate of Nevada on
December 13, 2002 (Case No. CV-S-1639-KJD-R]]). La Quinta
believes it has meritorious defenses to the allegations charged in
this matter and intends to vigorously contest and defend this case.

We are party to certain claims involving healthcare facilities
formerly owned by LQ Properties that were leased to and oper-
ated by third party operators. Although we required our chird
party operators to maintain insurance coverage insuring LQ
Properties’ interests in the facilities as well as their own, this
insurance coverage may not be adequate to fully protect us. We
have been notified that one of the companies providing such
insurance coverage, Feliance Insurance Company, was ordered
into liquidation on October 3, 2001. Although we cannot predict
what effect the liquidarion of Reliance Insurance Company will
have on pending claims, we do not consider our ultimate liability
with respect to any of these claims or lawsuits, as well as any
other claims and lawsuits arising in the normal course of our
business, to be materiz! in relation to our consolidated financial
condition or operations.

We are party to a number of other claims and lawsuits aris-
ing out of the normal course of business. We regularly evaluate
our ultimate liability and attendant costs with respect to these
claims and lawsuits. Cruring the year ended December 31, 2002,
we increased the estimate of our potential exposure on certain
claims related to our lodging operations.
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Under certain franchise agreements or joint venture agree-
ments, we are committed to provide certain incentives payments,
loans, reimbursements, rebates and other payments, to help
defray the cost of construction, marketing and other costs associ-
ated with opening and operating a La Quinta hotel. Our obliga-
tion to fund these commitments is contingent upon certain
conditions set forth in the respective franchise or joint venture
agreements. As of December 31, 2002, we had $9.8 million in
outstanding commitments of financial assistance to various fran-
chisees, of which $4.9 million has been funded. The unamortized
balance of amounts funded on incentive payments is included in
Other Non-current Assets. These agreements generally require
that, in the event that the franchise relationship is terminated,
the franchisee either repay the outstanding loan balance or
unamortized portion of the incentive payment, or transfer to us
any equipment, computer or other property purchased by the
franchisee with the incentive payment.

LQ Properties had purchase commitments related to certain
new construction and renovation projects in the lodging segment
of approximately $2,832,000 at December 31, 2002.

NOQTE [4. STOCK-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION
Stock Option and Incentive Plan

On December 20, 2001, our shareholders approved the La
Quinta Corporation 2002 Stock Option and Incentive Plan {the
“2002 Stock Option Plan”). The 2002 Stock Option Plan
authorized LQ Corporation and LQ Properties (see note 1) to
issue, pursuant to various types of stock incentive awards, a max-
imum amount of 6,900,000 paired shares (the "Available
Shares”). No more than 25% of the Available Shares will be avail-
able for grants in the form of awards other than options. The
number of paired shares reserved for issuance under the 2002
Stock Option Plan is subject to adjustment for stock splits,
stock dividends and similar events.

The 2002 Stock Option Plan replaced the La Quinta
Properties, Inc. Amended and Restated 1995 Share Award Plan
(the “La Quinta Properties 1995 Plan”) and the La Quinta
Corporation Amended and Restated 1995 Share Award Plan (the
“La Quinta Corporation 1995 Plan") (collectively the “1995
Plans”) although it will not affect any awards previously granted
under either of these plans and forfeited shares from the La
Quinta Properties 1995 Plan and the La Quinta Corporation
1995 Plan shall be available for reissue under the 2002 Stock
Option Plan. Shares forfeited under the 1995 plans will be added
back into the 2002 Option Plan. As of December 31, 2002,
1,928,000 options and 100,000 restricted shares were outstand-
ing under the 2002 Stock Option Plan; 3,476,000 options and
542,000 restricted shares were outstanding under the La Quinta
Properties 1995 Plan; and 4,090,000 options and 793,000

restricted shares were outstanding under the La Quinta
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Corporation 1995 Plan, At December 31, 2002, 5,784,000
shares were available for future grant under the 2002 Stock
Option Plan.

Eligibility under the 2002 Stock Option Plan is limited to
full or part-time officers, other employees, independent directors
and key persons (including consultants and prospective employ-
ees) of the companies and its subsidiaries as selected from time
to time by the Compensation Committee of the Boards of
Directors of La Quinta (the “Committce") in its sole discretion.
In the event of "mergers and other transactions,” as defined by
the 2002 Stock Option Plan, all outstanding options gramed
under the plan shall cerminate, with the grantee having the right
to exercise all outstanding oprions held by the grantee within a
specified period of time prior to the consummation of the “sale
event,” as defined by the 2002 Stock Option Plan. In the event
of a “change of control,” as defined by the 2002 Stock Option
Plan, (1) each option shall become fully vested, (2) all shares of
rescricted stock and all deferred stock awards shall immediately
vest free of restrictions, and (3) each performance share award
shall become payable to the grantee.

Stock options granted under the 2002 Stock Option Plan
may be either incentive stock options or non-qualified stock
options. Incentive stock options may be granted only to employ-
ees of the companies or any of their subsidiary corporations. To
the extent that any option does not qualify as an incentive stock
option, it shall be deemed a non-qualified stock option. The exer-
cise price per paired share for each stock option grant shall not be
less than 100% of the fair market value on the date of grant. The
term of each stock option shall be fixed by the Committee, but
no stock option shall be exercisable more than ten years after its
granc date. Options granted under the 2002 Stock Option Plan
vest according to a schedule determined by the Committee. The

Committee has discretion to accelerate the exercisability of all or
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any portion of any stock option grant. Options outstanding at
December 31, 2002 expire in 2003 through 2012,

The companies apply the provisions of APB 25 in account-
ing for stock-based awards. Accordingly, no compensation cost
has been recognized for the fixed stock option plans.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In 2001, LQ Corporation initiated a non-qualified Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (the "ESPP") for all eligible employees.
Employees are eligible if they are, on the first day of the offering
period, (1) full-time employees of the LQ Corporation or a des-
ignated subsidiary as defined by the ESPP, or (2) part-time
employees working more than 20 hours per week for more than
five months per year, and (3) have been employed for at least 30
consecutive days. Under the ESPP shares of the companies’ com-
mon stock may be purchased at 85% of the market value, as
defined by the ESPP on the day of purchase. Employees may pur-
chase attached shares having a value not to exceed 10% of their
annual gross compensation or $25,000 whichever is lower. The
first offering under the ESPP occurred on March 1, 2002 and will
end on February 28, 2003 (the date at which the ESPP will pur-
chase its initial shares). There were no shares purchased under the
ESPP during 2002 or 2001. At December 31, 2002, 500,000

shares were reserved for future issuance under the ESPP

Restricted Stock Performance Awards

Restricted stock performance awards have been granted under the
plans. The shares carry voting and dividend rights; however, sale
of the shares is restricted priot to vesting. Subject to continued
employment, vesting occurs over three years from the date of
grant upon the passage of time, achievement of performance

goals as defined, or as the Boards of Directors may determine.

A summary of the companies’ restricted stock activity and relaced information follows:

For the year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Grant Date Grant Darte Grant Date
Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
{000’s) Per Share {(000’s) Per Share (000%) Per Share
Outstanding at beginning of year 1,664 $3 1,710 $ 4 395 $21
Granted 400 5 213 3 1,760 4
Vested (468) 6 —_— —_ (395) 16
Forfeited (161) 4 (259) 3 (50) 15
Qutstanding at end of year 1,435 $3 1,664 $ 3 1,710 $ 4
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Unearned compensation was charged for the market value of
the restricted shares on the date of grant and is being amortized
over the restricted period. The unamortized unearned compensation
value is shown as a reduction of shareholders’ equity in the accom-
panying consolidated and combined balance sheets. For the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, amortization of
unearned restricted stock compensation was $2,533,000,
$2,007,000 and $1,668,000, respective[y. In January 2000, we
executed a separation and consulring agreement with the Chief
Executive Officer, President and Treasurer of LQ Properties and
reduced the number of employees in the financial and legal groups
of the companies’ Needham, MA offices. Under the terms of certain
severance agreements related to these separations, vesting of
395,000 restricted paired common shares was accelerated, such that

A summary of the companies’ stock option activity and related
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the shares were unrestricted at December 31, 2000. Accordingly,
during the year ended December 31, 2000, we recorded § 5,240,000

of accelerated amortization of unearned compensation.

Stock Option Awards

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of
grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the fol-
lowing weighted average assumptions used for grants in 2002,
2001 and 2000: dividend yield of 0.0% and expected volatility
factor of the expected market price of our common stock was
57%, 58% and 50%, respectively. Other assumptions used in the
Black-Scholes analysis include risk-free interest rates of 2.9%,
3.4% and 5.9% in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively and an
expected life of four years for each grant.

information follows:

For the year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Weighted Weighred Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
(600’s) Per Share {000%) Per Share (000%) Per Share
Qutstanding at beginning of year 8,921 $ 7 8,116 $ 10 4,311 $ 21
Granted 1,827 5 3,003 5 5,532 4
Exercised (427) 2 (23) 3 — —_
Forfeited/cancelled (827) 8 (2,175) 15 (1,727) 20
Ourtstanding at end of year 9,494 $ 7 8,921 $ 7 8,116 $ 10

Options exercisable at year end 4,326 2,277 1,374

Weighted average fair value of

options granted during the year $2.41 $2.44 $0.89

The weighted average exercise price equals or exceeds the weighted average fair market value on the date of grant.

The following table summarizes information about fixed stock

Options Qutstanding

options outstanding at December 31, 2002:

Options Exercisable

Weighted

Number Average Weighted Number Weighted
Qutstanding Remaining Average Exercisable Average
at 12/31/02 Contractual Exercise at 12/31/02 Exercise
(000's) Life Price (000%) Price

Range of exercise prices-
$0.00-$ 3.87 2,109,504 8 $3.07 1,374,998 $2.99
$3.88—% 5.99 5,031,316 9 5.01 1,270,108 5.05
$6.00-$ 8.38 1,400,880 7 6.80 734,381 6.87
$8.89-§32.77 952,724 2 22.21 946,874 22.27
9,494,424 8 $6.57 4,326,361 $8.47
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Weighted average fair values were calculated based on a the-
oretical pricing model. As our options are not traded on any
exchange, employees receive no value from holding them without
an increase in the stock price of the attached shares.

NOTE 135, PENS!ON PLAN, RETIREMENT AND

R3

The companies have savings plans that qualify under Section
401 (k) of the Code under which eligible employees are entitled
to participate up to a specified annual maximum contribution
level. The companies match a portion of such contributions that
amounted to $1,018,000, $1,095,000 and $369,000, for the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
During 2000, the Boards of Directors approved enhancements to
benefits provided to employees under the 401 (k) Plan. These
enhancements include an increase in La Quinta’s match of
employee contributions and a change in vesting requirements
which allow employees more favorable vesting terms.

LQ Properties entered into the Retirement Plan during
1996. On December 31, 1998, the La Quinta Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan ("SERP”) was established with a
prior service cost of $3,004,000. During 1999, a significant por-
tion of the executives covered under the SERP terminated
employment resulting in a decrease in the projected benefic obli-
gation of $1,420,000 and an acceleration of prior service cost
recognition of $1,355,000. The impact on the statement of
operations was a gain of $56,000. On October 23, 2000, the
Boards of Directors approved the termination of the SERP and
the Rerirement Plan effective December 31, 2000. In 2001, we
recorded $1,173,000 of expense related to the Retirement Plan.
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Prior to January I, 1999, the Retirement Plan was a defined
benefit pension plan covering all La Quinta employees. Benefits
accrued to the participant according to a career average benefit
formula integrated with Social Security benefits. The companies’
funding policy for this plan was to annually contribute the mini-
mum amount required by federal law. Effective January I, 1999,
the companies converted their existing Retirement Plan to a cash
balance or defined contribution pension plan. Existing accrued
benefits under the Retirement Plan were converted into a begin-
ning account balance as of January 1, 1999, which decreased the
projected benefit obligation by $1,122,000. Under the cash bal-
ance pension plan, the companies make quarterly contributions to
the account based on a percentage of quarterly employee compen-
sation and years of service. Interest credits to the account balances
are based on rates for one-year U.S. Treasury Securities. The
account balances are available to employees after they reach age 55.

The companies expect to make a final contribution to the
Retirement Plan prior to the distribution of its assets to the par-
ticipants. The final amount of this distribution and obligation
may vary from amounts estimated due to the impact of changes
in interest rates over the time period through the date the com-
panies receive the final determination letter from the IRS. We
may incur additional expenses upon distribution of up to
$3,000,000 based on actuarial estimates to date.

On November I, 2001, the companies entered into a SERP
agreement with an executive granting the executive a retirement
benefit of $8,638,000 upon retirement, as defined in the agree-
ment. In December 2002, the companies funded $1,514,000 of
the obligation in the form of a Rabbi Trust, which is presented in
Other Non-current Assets. The companies recorded liabilities
under the agreement of approximately $1,885,000 and $276,000
for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively,
which is presented in Other Non-current Liabilities.
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During 1995, L.Q Properties entered into a Split-Dollar
Life Insurance Agreement with a trust established by the then
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to which LQ
Properties has agreed to advance policy premiums on life insur-
ance policies paying a death benefit to the trust. LQ Properties is
entitled to reimbursement of the amounts advanced, without
interest, which right is collateralized by an assignment of the life
insurance policies and a personal guarantee of the former
Chairman in the amcunt of the excess, if any, of the premiums
paid by LQ Properties over the cash surrender value of the insur-
ance policies. The cash surrender value of the life insurance poli-
cies are included in other assets. As of December 31, 2002, LQ
Properties had taken .oans of $14,000,000 against the cash sur-
render value of the policies (which we believe will be substantially
equal to or exceed the amount of the loans), which were included
in other liabilities,

The following table provides detail of the changes in benefit
.obligacions, components of benefit costs and weighted average
assumptions for the Retirement Plan at December 31, 2002

and 2001:
December 31,

(In thowsands) 2002 2001

Change in Benefit Obligarion:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $19,176 $20,067
Interest cost 1,091 1,329
Actuarial loss(gain) 463 (111)
Benefits paid (1,549) (2,109)
Benefit obligation at end of year $19,181 $19,176

Change in Plan Assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $18,413 $18,220
Actual return on plan assets (63) 379
Employer contribution — 1,922
Benefits paid (1,549) (2,108)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $16,801 $18,413
Funded status ‘ $(2,380) § (763)
Unrecognized actuarial loss 1,727 852

Net amount recognized

$ (653) 5 89

Amounts Recognized in the Statement of
Financial Position Censist of:

Accrued benefit liability $(2,380) 8 (763)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (1,727 (852)
Net amount recognized $ (653) % 89

Weighted Average Assumptions:

Discount rate as of end of year 5.00% 6.00%
Expected return on plan assets for the year 2.00% 2.00%
Rare of compensation increase as of end of year
Management employees N/A N/A
Non-management zmployees N/A N/A
Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost:
Interest cost $ 1,091 $ 1,329
Expected return on plan assets (348) (359)
Net periodic benefit cost $ 743 $ 970
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NOTE 16, INCOME TAXES

LQ Properties has elected to be treated as a REIT under the Code.
During the year ended December 31, 2002, LQ Properties recog-
nized a net operating loss and had no distributable “earnings and
profits.” Accordingly, distributions to LQ Properties’ preferred
shareholders during 2002 have been characterized as a return of
capital. The financial statements for LQ Properties reflect a tax
provision and related balance sheet accounts recorded for
TeleMatrix and other taxable REIT subsidiaries, as well as rever-
sal of an income tax accrual of $5,500,000 recorded at the time
of the La Quinta Restructuring and taxes payable of $177,000
with respect to recognized built-in gains. On December 31,
2001, the IRS released revised temporary and proposed regula-
tions concerning the treatment of net built-in gain of C-corpora-
tion assets that become assets of a REIT in a carryover basis
transaction. The regulations generally require the C-corporation
to recognize gain and be subject to corporate-level tax as if it had
sold all the assets transferred at fair market value. In lieu of this
creatment, the regulations permit the REIT to elect to be subject
to the rules of Section 1374 of the Code. These rules generally
subject the REIT to corporate-level tax on built-in gains recog-
nized from the sale of transferred assets within ten years. LQ
Properties has determined that the regulations are applicable to
assets transferred from La Quinta and has elected co be subject to
the rules of Section 1374 of the Code for built-in gains recog-
nized within ten years of the La Quinta merger date.

LQ Properties has elected to treat what was formerly a non-
taxable REIT subsidiary as a taxable REIT subsidiary in order to
ensure continued compliance with the REIT qualification
requirements. As a result of this election, the subsidiary will be
able to urilize a net deferred tax asset previously available only to
LQ Corporation. Accordingly, L.Q Properties has recognized a net
tax benefit of approximately $9,975,000, comprised of the benefit
transferred, $12,754,000, less a valuation allowance of $2,779,000.
There is no effect on the consolidated income of LQ Corporation
other than the establishment of the valuation allowance of
$2,779,000, which is included in income tax expense.

Section 382 of the Code restricts a corporation’s ability to
use its NOL carryforwards following certain “ownership changes.”
LQ Corporation determined that such an ownership change
occurred and accordingly a portion of the NOL carryforwards
available for use in any particular taxable year will be limited. To
the extent that LQ Corporation does not utilize the full amount
of the annual NOL limit, the unused amount may be used to
offset taxable income in future years. NOL carryforwards expire
20 years after the year in which they arise (15 years for NOLs
arising prior to 1998}, and the last of LQ Corporation's NOL
carryforwards will expire in 2022.
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As of December 31, 2002, our total federal NOL carryfor-
wards were approximately $424,300,000, of which approximately
$167,900,000 is available to LQ Properties and its raxable REIT
subsidiaries. No valuation allowance has been provided for
federal NOL carryforwards available to LQ Properties and LQ
Corporation. A valuation allowance of $2,560,000 was recorded
during the 12 months ended December 31, 2002 with respect to
certain state operating loss carryovers that were determined not
to satisfy the “more likely than not” realization criterion of SFAS
109, "Accounting for Income Taxes.” LQ Properties and its tax-
able REIT subsidiaries have recorded a full valuation allowance
for capital loss carryforwards of approximately $40,400,000 as
utilization of these losses within the statutory five-year carryover
period is not reasonably assured. LQ Properties has also recorded
a full valuation allowance with respect to federal tax credits of
approximately $6,600,000 (primarily alternative minimum tax)
made available to LQ Properties as a result of the La Quinta
Restructuring,

The LQ Corporation consolidated tax provision amounts
disclosed below as of and for the year ended December 31, 2001
are a sum of separate amounts for LQ Properties (and its raxable
REIT subsidiaries) and LQ Corporation as our new legal struc-
ture was not effective until January 2, 2002 (see note 3 for pro
forma consolidated results of the January 2, 2002 Restructuring
of the companies).

The components of deferred income taxes for LQ Properties
as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

December 31,

(In thousands) 2002 2001
Deferred tax liabilities for continuing operations:
Fixed assets $ 286 $ 345
Total deferred tax liabilities 286 345
Deferred tax assets for continuing operations:
Receivable valuation reserves 1,530 6,210
Non-compete covenant 160 110
Expense accruals deductible when paid 92 44
Net operating loss carryforward 10,152 —_
Capital loss carryforward 5,706 —
Total deferred tax assets 17,640 6,364
Valuation allowance (6,463) (4.473)
Ner deferred tax asset $10,861 § 1,546
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Components of deferred income taxes for LQ Corporation
as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

December 31,

(In thousands) 2002 2001
Deferred tax liabilities for
continuing operations:
Fixed assets $ 337,295 ¢ 5,850
Trademark 29,368 —
Deferred gain 806 —
Total deferred tax liabilities 367,469 5,850
Deferred tax assets for
continuing operations:
Federal and state net
operating loss carryovers 160,347 82,270
Capital loss carryovers 15,368 —
Tax credits 7,894 —_
Self-insurance deductible when paid 9,651 9,551
Compensation accruals 4,734 4,847
Receivable valuation reserves 4,061 7,249
Orther 9,986 3,756
Total deferred tax assets 212,041 107,673
Valuation allowance (29,116)  (100.277)
Net deferred rax (liability) asset §(184,544) $ 1,546

A reconciliation of LQ Properties’ total income tax provi-
sion for the calendar year 2002, 2001 and 2000 to the statutory
federal corporation income tax rate and applicable state tax rates

is as follows:
For the year ended
December 31,

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Computed “expected” tax provision®  § (5,272) $(1.468) $(128)
Deferred tax asset transferred
to taxable REIT subsidiary (12,754) —_ —_—
Nondeductible goodwill impairment 6,324 —_ —_
Reverse federal income tax
accrued at La Quinta merger (5,500) — —
Change in valuation allowances
for capital losses and
state loss carryovers 1,990 _ -—
Tax payable on net built-in gains 177 — —
Initial deferred tax provision — 1,282 384
Other 151 674 373
Total income tax
(benefit) expense $(14,884) $ 438 $ 629
() The expected provision relates only to taxable REIT subsidiaries.
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A reconciliation of LQ Corporation’s total income tax provision for calendar year 2002, 2001 and 2000 to the statucory federal

corporation income tax rate of 35% and applicable state tax rates as follows:
For the year ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2¢02 2001 2000
Computed “expected” tax provision $(114,380) $ (37.057) $ (21.650)
Record initial deferred rax 1iabi1ity 196,520 1,747 384
Nondeductible goodswill impairment 93,249 —_— —
Preferred dividends providing no tax benefit 6,300 —_— —
Reverse federal income tax accrued at La Quinta merger (5,509) — —
Change in valuation allowances for capital losses and state loss carryovers 4,500 _ —
Nondeductible compensation 1,154 — —
Tax payable on net built-in gains 177 I —
State tax provision, net of federal effect (245) (2.873) (1,854)
Write-off paired share intangible — 10,889 —
Valuation allowance —_ 35,781 23,465
Other (922) (7.999) 284
Total income tax expense $ 180,952 $ 488 $ 629

Income tax for the twelve months ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 consisted of the following:
December 31,

2032 2001
Net deferred tax liability recorded as a result of restructuring $(196,529) $ —
Current income tax benefit (expense) 6,402 —
Deferred income tax benefit (expense) Q) 9,166 (488)
Total income tax benefir (expense) $(180,952) $ (488)

(a) Amount includes other non-cash adjustments to deferred tax assets primarily related to the tax benefit resulting from the exercise of non-gualified stock optiens during 2002.

17, ZARNINGS PER SHARE

Combined consolidated earnings per share for the companies is computed as follows:
For the year ended December 31,

(In thousands, except for per shars amounts) 2002 2001 2000
Loss from continuing operations $(248,796) $(283,216) $(334,156)
Preferred stock dividends(® — (18,000) (18.000)
Loss available to common shareholders before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle  (248,796) (301,216) (352.156)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (258,957) 856 —
Net loss available to common shareholders $(507,753) $(300,360) $(352,156)
Average ourstanding equivalent shares of paired common stock 143,088 143,011 141,854

Dilutive effect of:
Stock options — _ —

Average outstanding equivalent shares of paired common stock 143,088 143,011 141,854
Basic and Assuming Dilution:

Loss available to commion shareholders before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle  § (1.74) $  (2.a11) $ (248
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (1.81) 0.01 —
Ner loss available to common shareholders $  (3.55) $ (2.10) $ (2.48)

(a) Subsequent to our Restructuriag, Series A and Series B preferred stock remain outstanding securities of LQ Properties and represent a minority interest in LQ Properties. Therefore, the redemption value of these preferred

stock securities and the related preferred stock dividends bave been presented as minority interests in the accompartying consolidated financial statements of LQ Corporation for the period ending December 31, 2002,
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Options to purchase 2,223,000, 2,651,000, and 7,498,000
paired common shares at prices ranging from $6.08 to $32.77
(in 2002) were outstanding during the years ended December
31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, but were not included in
the computation of diluted earnings per share (“"EPS”) because
the options’ exercise prices were equal to or greater than the aver-
age marker price of the common shares and because the inclusion
would result in an antidilutive effect in periods where a loss was
incurred. The options, which expire on dates ranging from
September 2004 to December 2012, were still outstanding at
December 31, 2002,

In addition, options to purchase 7,151,000 paired common
shares (weighted average effect of 1,602,000 shares for the year
ended December 31, 2002) at prices ranging from $1.94 to
$6.00 were outstanding during fiscal year 2002 and were not
included in the computation of diluted EPS because their inclu-
sion would result in an antidilutive per-share amount as the com-
panies reported a loss from continuing operations available to
common shareholders for the year ended December 31, 2002.

In addition, eptions to purchase 6,270,000 and 618,000
paired common shares (weighted average effect of 1,522,000 and
95,000 shares for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively) at prices ranging from $1.94 to $5.38 for 2001 and
$1.81 ro $2.81 for 2000 were outstanding during fiscal years
2001 and 2000, respectively and were not included in the com-
purtation of dilured EPS because their inclusion would result in
an antidilutive per-share amount as the companies reported a loss
from continuing operations available to common shareholders for
both years.

Convertible debentures outstanding for the years ended
December 31, 2000, of 5,118,000 paired common shares, and
Convertible Preferred Stock for the years ended December 31,
2001 and 2000 of 2,680,000 paired common shares are not
included in the computation of diluted EPS because the inclusion
would result in an antidilutive effect. During 2001. the companies

repaid the remaining convertible debentures (see note 9).
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NOTE 18. TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN LQ PROPERTIES
AND LO CORFORATION

LQ Corporation, exclusive of its controlled subsidiaries, leases hotel
facilities from LQ Properties and its subsidiaries. The hotel facility
lease arrangements between LQ Corporation and LQ Properties
are for a five year term (expiring July 2003), include base and
additional rent provisions and require LQ Properties to assume
costs attributable to property taxes and insurance and to fund
certain capital expenditures. At December 31, 2002 and 2001,
LQ Corporation owed LQ Properties $148,058,000 and
$163,633,000, respectively, related to these hotel leases. LQ
Corporation operates at a substantial loss due in part to the lease
payments required to be made under the intercompany leases. The
companies believe that the intercompany leases conformed with nor-
mal business practices at the time they were entered into and were
consistent with leases entered into on an arm’s length basis. Due to
the unexpected shortfall in the operating revenues generated by the
leased hotels, LQ Properties and LQ Corporation modified the
intercompany leases, which has resulted in a decline in revenue for
LQ Properties and a decline in expenses for LQ Corporation. LQ
Properties and LQ Corporation intend to enter into a new set of
leases when the current leases, as modified, expire in July 2003.

A subsidiary of LQ Corporation also has a royalty arrange-
ment with a subsidiary of LQ Properties for the use of the La
Quinta® tradename at a rate of 2.5% of gross revenue, as defined
in the royalty agreement. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, LQ
Corporation owed LQ Properties $7,870,000 related to the roy-
alty arrangement.

In connection with certain acquisitions, LQ Corporation
tssued shares to LQ Properties to be paired with LQ Properties
shares. Also, LQ Corporation owned 1,305,000 unpaired com-
mon shares of LQ Properties that were eliminated as a result of
the January 2, 2002 restructure (see note 1).

LQ Corporation provides certain management services to
LQ Properties primarily related to executive management, general
tax preparation and consulting, legal, accounting and certain
aspects of human resources. LQ Properties compensates LQ
Corporation for the direct costs of providing such services,
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In June 2001, L.Q Properties contributed its 60% invest-
ment in a partnership for a 100% interest in a limited liabilicy
company (the “LLC") created to hold the investment in the part-
nership. LQ Corporation then exchanged a note payable due to
LQ Properties for $2,901,000 for 83% of LQ Properties’ intet-
est in the LLC. The transaction was recorded at historical bal-
ances as both LQ Froperties and LQ Corporation are under
common control and there was no change in shareholder ownes-
ship percentages.

In December 2001, LQ Properties contributed its entire
investment in a partnership to LQ Corporation in exchange fora
note payable due to [.Q Properties for $1,700,000. The transac-
tion was recorded ar historical balances as both LQ Properties
and L.Q Corporation are under common control and there was no
change in shareholder ownership percentages.

As a part of the Restructuring completed on January 2, 2002,
LQ Properties exchanged its interest in two limited liability com-
panies, which held brand intangibles and related rights, for
9,430,000 unpaired shares of LQ Corporation common stock.

NOTE [9. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

La Quinta Corporation

LQ Properties has elected to treat what was formerly a non-
taxable REIT subsidiary as a taxable REIT subsidiary in order to
ensure continued compliance with the REIT qualification require-
ments. As a result of this election, the subsidiary will be able to
utilize a ner deferred tax asset previously available only to LQ
Corporation. Accordingly, LQ Properties has recognized a net tax
benefit of approximately $5.975.000, comprised of the benefit
transferred, $12,754,000, less a
$2,779,000. There is no effect on the consolidated income of LQ
Corporation other than the establishment of the valuation

valuation allowance of

allowance of $2,779,000, which is included in income tax expense.

For the year ended December 31, 2002, LQ Properties paid
dividends of $60,575,000 to holders of its class A common
stock. LQ Corporation is the sole holder of LQ Properties class A
common stock. LQ Corporation used the dividends to pay accrued
interest and a portion of the principal balance of a revolving note
payable to LQ Properties, as well as $15,575,000 of deferred rent
and royalties. After these payments, the balance of the revolving
note was $5,416,000.

The following quarteriy financial data summarizes the unaudited quarterly results for the companies for the year ended December 31, 2002:

Year
Quarter ended 2002 Ended
(In thousands, except per share data) March 31 j'une 30 September 30 December 31 2002
Revenue $ 138,338 $145,640 §136,736 $116,214 $ 536,928
Income (loss) from continuing operations (200,871) 5,516 (26,648) (26,793) (248,796)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (258,957) — — — (258,957)
Net income (loss) (459,828) 5,516 (26,648) (26,793) (507,753)
Lodging Statistics:
Occupancy 58.9% 65.4% 61.1% 51.5% 59.2%
Average Daily Rate $  6LII $ 59.64 $  60.22 $ 58.87 $  59.99
RevPAR®) $ 3597 § 39.00 $ 3677 $ 3034 § 3553
Earnings per share:
Basic and assuming dilution income (loss) per
Paired Common Share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $  (141) $  0.04 $ (0.19) $ (0.18) $  (1L.74)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (1.81) — — — (1.81)
Net income (loss) $  (3.22) § 0.04 $  (0.19) $ (0.18) §  (3.55)
(a) RevPAR is the measurement of revenue per available room. It is cqual to the average daily rate multiplied by the occupancy percentage.
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The following quarterly financial data summarizes the unaudited quarterly results for the companies for the year ended

December 31, 2001:

Year
Quarter ended 2001 Ended
(In thousands, except per share data) March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 2001
Revenue $188,974 $174,749 $160,015 $ 124,578 $ 648,316
Income (loss) from continuing operations (12,172) (12,473) (6,498) (252,073) (283,216)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 856 —_ — — 856
Net income (loss) (11,316) (12,473) (6.498) (252,073) (282,360)
Lodging Statistics:
Occupancy 64.4% 68.3% 63.0% 53.2% 62.2%
Average Daily Rate 5 63.19 $ 61.80 3 60.62 $ 57.69 $ 60.98
RevPAR(® $ 4067 % 4221 $ 3820 $ 30638 $ 3795
Earnings per share:
Basic and assuming dilution income (loss) per
Paired Common Share:
Income {loss) from continuing operations $  (012) § (0.12) $  (0.08) $ (1.79) $ (2.11)
Cumulacive effect of change in accounting principle 0.01 —_— — — 0.01
Net income (loss) $  (0.11) § (0.12) $  (0.08) $  (1.79) $  (2.10)

(a) RevPAR is the measurement of revenue per available room. It is equal to the average daily rate multiplied by the oceupancy percentage.

NOTE 20. SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments

The companies previously reported two operating segments,
lodging and healthcare. The lodging segment represents a net-
work of owned and franchised hotels operated under the “La
Quinta Inn®” and “La Quinta Inn & Suites®” trademarks. The
healthcare segment represents the remaining assets of our health-
care real estate financing business. Consistent with management’s
strategic plan to divest the companies of substantially all health-
care assets and related operations, this segment’s revenues, results
of operations and assets are no longer significant to the compa-
nies as defined by the reportability criteria outlined in SFAS No.
131, "Disclosures about Segment Reporting” ("SFAS 1317). As
a result, the healthcare segment has been included in the "All
Other” grouping for segment reporting purposes. Prior year seg-
ment amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current

ear presentation.
year p
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Description of the types of products and services from which each
reportable segment derives its revenues

The companies evaluate performance based on contribution from
each reportable segment. The companies define contribution as
income from operations before interest expense, depreciation,
amortization, gains and losses on sales of assers, provisions for
losses on disposal or impairment of assets, income or loss from
unconsolidated entities, income taxes and certain nonrecurring
income and expenses. The measurement of each of these segments is
made on a combined basis including revenue from external customers
and excludes lease and royalty income between LQ Properties and
LQ Corporation. The companies account for LQ Properties
and LQ Corporation transactions at current market prices, as if
the transactions were to third parties. Cerrain administrative,
legal, accounting and tax expenses are allocated to the healthcare
segment that benefit the healthcare operations or are related to
public company expense in order to maintain presentation that is
consistent with historical segment information. A portion of
these allocated expenses will continue beyond the disposition of
healthcare assets. These allocations amounted to $3,393,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2002.
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The following table presents information used by management by reported segment. The companies do not allocate interest expense,

income taxes Or nonrecurring items to segments:
For the year ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Lodging(®:
Revenue $ 524,295 $ 574,837 $ 604,224
Expenses (358,759) (364,778) (375281
Lodging contribution 165,536 210,059 228,043
All Other(®):
Revenue 12,633 73,479 207,727
Expenses (6,928) (12,194) (14,443)
All other contribution 5,705 61,285 193,284
Combined contribution 171,241 271,344 422,227
Reconciliation to Combined Consolidated Financial Statements:
Interest, net 65,021 98,327 183,385
Depreciation and amort:zation
Lodging 124,904 112,643 122,664
Other 125 4,909 24,343
Amortization of goodwill — 21,412 22,755
Impairment on property, plant and equipment, mortgages and notes receivable 37,134 115,347 186,829
Impairment of goodwill 8,000 —_ —_
Paired share intangible write-off — 169,421 —
Provision for loss on equity securities — — 50,279
Other(©® (14,621) 31,428 164,870
220,563 553,487 755,125
Loss before minority interest, income taxes and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (49,322) (282,143) (332,898)
Minority interest (18'522) (585) (629)
Income tax expense (180,952) (488) (629)
Loss before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (248,796) (283,216) (334,156)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (258,957) 856 —
Net loss (507,753)  (282,360)  (334.156)
Preferred stock dividends — (18,000) (18,000)
Net loss available to cornmon shareholders $(507,753)  $(300,360)  $(352,156)

(a) Lodging contribution includes TeleMatrix, a provider of telepbone software and equipment for the lodging industry. TeleMatrix was acquired in October 1999. Operations of TeleMatrix have been included in the
lodging revenue and expense catégories of the combined and consolidated statements since consummation of the acquisition. Lodgmg contribution also includes results qfowfmnfbia‘ing operations.
(6) All Oher contribution includes the healthrare operating segmuent.

(¢) Seenote 11 for discussion of Otber Expenses.

The following table reconciles revenue to the accompanying financial statements:
For the year ended December 31,

{In thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Lodging:

Room revenue $ 488,688 $ 532,876 $ 566,347

Guest services franckise and other 23,470 22,983 21,298

Other 12,137 18,978 16,579
Total lodging revenue 524,295 574,837 604,224
All Other():

Rental income 5,102 49,713 116,040

Interest income 7,531 23,766 91,687
Total all other revenue 12,633 73.479 207,727
Total revenue $ 536,928 $ 648,316 $ 811,951

(a) Represents revenue from Healtocare,
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The following table presents assets by reported segment and
in the aggregate:
December 31,

(In thousands) 2002 2001
Lodging:
Intangible assets $ 77639 $ 81,703
Goodwill, net — 266,957
Property, plant and equipment 2,310,089 2,386,445
Mortgages and other notes receivable 813 3,052
Total Lodging 2,388,541 2,738,157
All Other:
Property, plant and equipment — 153,131
Mortgages and other notes receivable 59,330 113,886
Total All Other® 59,330 267,017
Cash and cash equivalents 9,647 137,716
Fees, interest and other receivables 24,874 27,078
Deferred income taxes, net 17,389 1,546
Other assets 47,759 43,936
Total assets $2,547,540  §$3,215,450

(a) The deerease in All Other assers is the result of divestitures of bealtheare assets during 2002. These divesti-

tures are consistent with management’s strategic business plan to_focus the companies on lodging aperations.

Capital expenditures of $118,605,000 and $93,286,000 for
the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively,
related solely to the Jodging segment.

NOTE 21. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Effective January 3, 2003, LQ Properties acquired property in
Des Plaines, lllinois for approximately §3,300,000. We intend to
develop the property into a La Quinta Inn & Suites® in a venture

with a suitable venture partner.

Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

Effective January 1, 2003, LQ Corporation completed a change
in its franchising operations corporate structure in anticipation of
increased demand for its product. As a result, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of LQ Corporation, La Quinta Inns, Inc. {"LQ Inns™)
formed two new entities, La Quinta Franchising LLC ("LQ
Franchising”) and La Quinta Management Services LLC. The
entities were formed on December 17, 2002, for the purpose of
franchising La Quinta Inn®, La Quinta Inn & Suites®, and
related trademarks (collectively, the “Trademark™) in connection
with franchise operation and management of hotels.

On January 1, 2003, LQ Inns assigned its rights under all
pre-existing franchise agreements and franchise assets to LQ
Franchising. The assignment effectively transfers all the rights to
revenues and costs incurred on behalf of those assets, obligations,
and agreements. LQ Inns retained the right to use the Trademark
in connection with ongoing management of hotels owned by LQ
Properties and its affiliates.

LQ Franchising intends to register its Uniform Franchise
Offering Circular (UFOC) in March 2003 with certain states
that require the UFOC be registered with them prior to offering
franchises for sale within the state. The UFOC provides certain
information about LQ Franchising and the terms on which it will
offer franchises in the United States of America.

From January I, 2003 to February 24, 2003, LQ
Corporation borrowed $33,000,000 under its Credit Facility.

On Fébruary 3, 2003 LQ Inns entered into a confidential
settlement agreement with Dawn Grawe, the plaintiff in a legal
action filed on March 29, 2001 (see note 13).
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To che Shareholders and Boards of Directors of
La Quinta Corporat:on and La Quinta Properties, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
and the related consolidated statements of operations, of changes
in shareholders’ equity and cash flows present fairly, in all mate-
rial respects, the financial position of La Quinta Corporation and
La Quinta Properties, Inc. and subsidiaries (collectively the
“Companies”) at December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2002, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the Unired
States of America. Taese financial statements are the responsibil-
ity of the Compan:es’ management; our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducred our audits of these statements in accord-
ance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which require that we plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

2002 AR

statements are free of material misstarement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note I to the consolidated financial state-
ments, the Companies adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”
during 2002.

oo D

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
February 10, 2003
Dallas, Texas
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SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATICN

The following tables set forth, among other information, selected financial information for LQ Corporation and LQ Properties. All
significant intercompany and inter-entiry balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Likewise, the consolidated
financial information for LQ Properties includes the accounts of the respective company and its majority owned partnerships after
elimination of all significant intercompany accounts and transactions. Financial information related to resules of operations for
Cobblestone Golf Group and Santa Anita Racetrack have been reflected as discontinued operations. This information is based on and
should be read in conjunction with the information set forth in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations” and che financial statements and the notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this report.

LA QUINTA CORPORATION
Years ended December 31,

(In thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001() 20000 1999(2) [998(“' b)
Operating Data:
Revenue $ 536,928 § 648316 $ 8I1,951 § 905304 $ 635037
(Loss) income before discontinued operations and

cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (248,796) (283,216) (334,156) 59,412 141,080
Discontinued operations, net — — — 30,413 (294,227)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (258,957) 856 — — —
Ner (loss) income (567,753) (282,360) (334,156) 89,825 (153,147)
Net (loss) income available to common shareholders $ (507,753) $ (300,360) $ (352,156) $ 73,542 § (I161,591)

Earnings Per Share—Basic
(Loss) income available to common shareholders
before discontinued operations and cumulacive
effect of change in accounting principle $ (1.74) $ (2.11) 8 (2.48) s 030 § 1.10

Net (loss) income § (3.55) % (2.10) % (2.48) § 0.52 § (1.34)

Earnings Per Share—Diluted
(Loss) income available to common shareholders
before discontinued operations and cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle $ (1.74) (211) 8 (2.48) ¢ 030 § 1.06
Net (loss) income $ (3.55) & (z.10) § (248) s 051 8 (1.29)
Cash Flow Data:

Distributions paid $ — 3 — 3 — $ 1.84 % 3.34

Cash provided by operating activities $ 100,187 § 151,637 $ 234986 § 256431 § 179,049

Cash provided by (used in) investing activicies $ 129,207 § 571412 § 818839 8§ 550268 $(1,106,670)
Balance Sheet Data:

Property, plant and equipment, net $2,310,089  $2,539,576 $3,169,345  $3,646,582 $ 3,900,865

Total assets 2,547,540 3,215,450 4,100,254 5,437,755 6,438,346

Indebredness 665,041 1,000,238 1,596,991 2,613,764 3,301,722

Minority interest(<) 206,450 6,657 6,611 6,563 6,125

Toral liabilities 1,027,803 1,184,230 1,770,832 2,807,979 3,531,293

Total sharcholders’ equity 1,313,287  2,024563 2322811  2,673213 2950928

(a) Certain reclassifications have been made 10 the 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998 presentation to conform to the presentation of the financial position and results of operations as of and for the year ended December 31,
2002 including the change to a classified balance sheei presentation, Additionally, these figures were reported for “The La Quinta Companies—Combined,” which bas been replaced by “LQ Corporation—
Consolidated” for the current year presentation,

(b) Financial results for 1998 include lodging sgment results for the period from the date of the La Quinta Merger, July 17 through December 31.

() Includes $200 million of liguidation preference on preferred stock in 2002.
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Selected Financial Information (Continued)

LA QUINTA PROPERTIES, INC.

Year ended December 31,

La Quinta Corporation

(In thousands, exeept per share data) 2002 2001(a) 2000(a) 1999(a) 1998(ab)
Operating Data:
Revenue $ 248,392 $ 379,336 $ 518,567 $ 604987 § 514,532
(Loss) income before discontinued operarions and

cumulative effect of ::hange in accounting principle 15,436 (181,532) (272,665) 89,914 160,931
Discontinued operations, net — — — 40,216 (295.875)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (258,957) 856 — — —
Net (loss) income (243,521) (180,676) (272.665) 130,130 (134,944)
Net (loss) income availible to common shareholders $ (261,521) § (198,676) 8 (290,665) $ 113.847 & (143,388)
Earnings Per Share—Basic
(Loss) income available to common shareholders

before discontinued operations and cumulative

effect of change in aczounting principle $ (0.02) § (1.39) $ (z03) $ 051§ 1.25
Net (loss) income $ (1.83) 3 (1.38) s (2.03) % 0.79 % (1.18)
Earnings Per Share—Diluted
(Loss) income available to common shareholders

before discontinued ¢perations and cumulative

effect of change in aczounting principle $ (0.02) 3 (1.39) % (2.03) § 051 % 1.20
Nert (loss) income $ (1.83) % (1.38) s (2.03) § 079 % (1.13)
Cash Flow Data:
Distributions paid $ —{© 3 —_— $ — $ 1.84 % 3.34
Cash provided by operating activities $ 82,168 $ 139,950 $ 233,535 $ 261,184 ¢ 187,874
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities $ 144,480 $ 582,226 $ 832,069 $ 550,661 §(1.128.412)
Bafance Sheet Data:
Property, plant and equipment, net $2,243,548  $2,467,215 $3.132,729  $3,614,941 $ 3,889,489
Total assets 2,589,554 3,290,963 4,072,091 5,391,375 6,343,700
Indebtedness 665,041 1,000,238 1,596,991 2,613,764 3,301,722
Minority interest 27,514 — 6,611 6,563 6,125
Total liabilicies 755,993 1,122,946 1,700,283 2,747,034 3,464,222
Total shareholders’ equizy 1,806,047 2,168,017 2,365,588 2,637,778 2,873,353

(a) Certain reclassifications bave oeen made to the 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998 presentation to conform to the presentation of the financial position and results of operations as of and for the year ended December 31,

12002, including the change to a classified balance sheet presentation.

(&) Financial results for 1998 include lodging segment reswlts for the period from the date of the La Quinta Merger, July 17, through December 31.

{¢) Does not include dividends pard by LQ Properties to LQ) Corporation, the sole holder of its class A common stock.
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Designed by Curran & Connors, Inc. / www.curtan-connors.com

Corporate Headquarters
909 Hidden Ridge

Suite 600

Irving, TX 75038
www.LQ.com

General Inquiries
214-492-6600

Investor Relations

877-777-6560

Franchise/Development
866-832-6574

Reservations
800-531-5900 or

www.LQ.com

Independent Accountants

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Dallas, TX

Corporate Counsel

Goodwin Procter LLP
Boston, MA

Transfer Agent

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.

If you have questions concern-

ing stock holdings, address
changes, transfer or exchange

procedures or other stock

account mateters, please contact

our transfer agent at:

EquiServe Trust
Company, N.A.
PO Box 43010
Providence, RI 02940
366-897-1804

www.equiserve.com

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of stock-
holders is scheduled to be held
at 10:00 a.m. local time on
May 22, 2003 at:

La Quinta Inn & Suites—
DFW Airport South

4105 West Atrport Freeway
Irving, TX 75062

Form 10-K

Stockholders who wish to
receive a copy of La Quinta’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K,
as filed wich the Securities
and Exchange Commission,
may do so without charge

by calling 877-777-6560

or by writing to:

Investor Relations

La Quinta Corporation
909 Hidden Ridge
Suite 600

Trving, TX 75038

Common Stock

The Paired Common Stock of La Quinta Corporation is

listed

on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “LQL"

There were approximately 10,182 holders of record as of
February 24, 2003.

2002 High Low
First Quarter $7.40 $5.60
Second Quarter 7.98 6.83
Third Quarter 6.99 4.61
Fourth Quarter 5.21 4.10
2001 High Low
First Quarter $4.08 $2.44
Second Quarter 6.05 3.80
Third Quarter 6.02 3.95
Fourth Quarter 6.42 4.21

Preferred Stock

The Series A Preferred Stock of La Quinta Properties, Inc. is
listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol

“LQIPR. As of February 24, 2003 there were approximately
205 holders of record of La Quinta Properties, Inc. Series A

Preferred Stock.

2002 High Low  Dividend
First Quarter $23.75  $21.50 $0.5625
Second Quarter 25.00 23.20 0.5625
Third Quarter 24.10 21.00 0.5625
Fourth Quarter 23.44 20.95 0.5625
2001 High Low  Dividend
First Quarter $18.45 §14.19 $0.5625
Second Quarter 21.00 18.00 0.5625
Third Quarter 22.49 16.83 0.5625
Fourth Quarter 23.15 19.75 Q0.5625
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